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Feasibility Study
Mountain Supply Reservoir No. 10

Rehabilitation Project
January, 2017

Introduction (Need for the Project)

The North Poudre Irrigation Company (NPIC), located in Larimer County,
Colorado owns and operates Mountain Supply Reservoir No. 10 as an irrigation
water storage reservoir for the benefit of the shareholders. The reservoir is
located in section 13, township 6 north, range 60 west of the sixth prime meridian
and has a storage decree of 344 acre feet. The dam was constructed in 1905
and a major rehabilitation of the dam completed in the 1973.

In August of 2015 there was a failure in the CMP outlet tube approximately 15
feet downstream of the intake headgate. All water in the reservoir drained
through the hole in the outlet tube but at a rate slow enough that all water was
contained in the outlet ditch and no damage was sustained. The State Engineers
Office (SEQ) put a zero storage hold on the reservoir on August 20, 2015 until
repairs could be made. NPIC made temporary repairs to the outlet tube in
January and February of 2016 and the SEO granted NPIC permission to store
water to gage height six feet (approximately 80 acre feet) for two years while
permanent repairs were designed and made. Documentation of the CMP failure,
temporary repairs, SEO storage restriction, and the most current (2014)
Engineering Inspection Report are found in Appendix A.

Lifting the SEO restriction on the reservoir is essential to NPIC’s irrigation
deliveries. There are 48 shareholders who collectively own 81 shares of NPIC
stock that receive water from Mountain Supply Reservoir No. 10 through the
Lower 10 ditch. Approximately 600 acre foot of water is delivered annually to
these shareholders.

Project Sponsor

NPIC is a mutual ditch company and a non-profit corporation registered in the
State of Colorado. There are 570 shareholders and 10,000 shares of stock.
NPIC has the power to set annual assessments to be paid by the shareholders,
the power to cut off water deliveries to shareholders that fail to pay their
assessments, and the power to offer stock for sale to pay back assessments.
NPIC articles of incorporation and bylaws are included in Appendix B.

Project Service Area and Facilities

NPIC has an office in Wellington, Colorado and operates 21 storage reservoirs,
five flood control dams, and approximately 200 miles of ditches. NPIC also owns



a large machine shop, equipment including trucks, excavators, pickups, front-end
loader, motor graders, and various other pieces of equipment.

The service area encompasses approximately 300 square miles (shown in
Appendix C) and additional service area covering 14 communities and municipal
water providers that own NPIC shares (Ft. Collins, Windsor, Ault, Severance,
Eaton, Thornton, North Weld County Water District, East Larimer County Water
District, Northern Colorado Water Association, Fort Collins Loveland Water
District, West Fort Collins Water District, Sunset Water District, Nunn and
Pierce). The NPIC infrastructure is important to North Central Colorado
economy.

Hydrology and Water Rights

NPIC Mountain Supply Reservoir No. 10 is an off stream reservoir with a
drainage basin of approximately 0.14 square miles. The reservoir is fed by the
Upper 10 Ditch which is in turn fed by numerous other ditches in the NPIC
system, the ultimate source of the water being the North Fork of the Cache la
Poudre River and the Cache la Poudre River. Mountain Supply Reservoir No. 10
(a.k.a. Railroad Reservoir No. 3) has decreed water rights for storage of 344 acre
feet, priority No. 82, dated May 15, 1905. This water decree is shown in
Appendix D.

Project Description

NPIC contracted with Tessara Water, LLC in September of 2015 to investigate
alternatives for repairs and upgrades that will remove the storage restriction
imposed by the SEO. As part of this investigation Tessara Water has performed
a document and plan review, conducted a geotechnical investigation, surveyed
the site to construct a storage volume table, completed a hydrology study of the
reservoir, conducted numerous site inspections, consulted with the SEO’s Dam
Safety Engineer, and met with NPIC personnel to discuss operating needs and
procedures.

Results of the investigation have shown that there is a need to repair the inlet
structure at the end of the Upper 10 ditch that controls flows into the reservoir,
make repairs to the inlet pipeline that extends from the inlet structure to the
reservoir, provide a dissipation structure at the end of the pipeline to prevent
further erosion, remove silt and straighten the channel from the dissipation
structure to the new gate tower, remove the existing concrete intake structure
and gate along with the temporary patch to the outlet conduit, make permanent
repairs to the outlet conduit, replace the removed intake structure with a new
gate tower, and construct a new spillway control wall. Figure 1 shows the
locations of the proposed work.
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Figure 1. Locations of Proposed Work.




The existing concrete inlet structure
at the end of the Upper 10 ditch
serves as a check structure for
" deliveries to two irrigation headgates
and the entrance to the 30-inch
diameter RCP inlet pipeline to the
reservoir. Water from the ditch to the
W pipeline is checked using

& cumbersome wood checkboards.
# Currently the shareholder to the east
is using a pump to supplement his
# deliveries as the headgate will not

i C ! deliver the required flow. It is
Existing Inlet Structure believed that the headgate to the
west is abandoned. Replacement of
the concrete structure, replacement
of the 12-inch headgate to the east with an 18-inch headgate, and replacing the
checkboard system with a 36-inch canal gate are recommended.

The 500-foot long 30-inch diameter RCP pipeline that extends from the inlet
structure to the reservoir is at a grade of approximately four percent. This steep
rade results in velocities of 16 feet per second at the downstream end of the
pipe. There is no energy dissipation
structure at the end of the pipe and
e ~ the over the years the extreme
velocity has eroded the soil at the end
of the pipe to the extent that several
sections of the RCP have been
displaced and removed. Inspection of
the pipeline shows that in addition to
¢ the four 8-foot sections of RCP pipe
.~ that have been displaced another four
® to eight sections have moved
] ¥ i © significantly enough that there is
Downstream End of Existing 30-Inch RCP Inlet leakage in the joints. It is

recommended that the most
downstream sections of pipe that show significant movement be replaced, an
additional four 8-sections of pipe be added to the end of the pipeline, and an
energy dissipation structure be added at the end of the pipeline. The entire length
of the pipeline, from inlet structure to dissipation structure should then be lined
using CIPP methods.

Along with construction of the pipeline the eroded area at the end of pipeline
should be filled with compacted soil and riprap used to protect the area
immediately downstream of the dissipation structure. The section of channel
from the dissipation structure to the reservoir dead pool along with the section of
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channel from the dead pool to the new gate tower should be straightened and
over-excavated to control and allow for future siltation.

The existing intake structure consists of a concrete structure encasing the
upturned end of the 24-inch CMP outlet conduit. The upturned end is beveled to
the 3:1 slope of the dam. The control gate is mounted on the sloped structure
and connected by a stem passing
through a buried encasement pipe to
the operator at the dam crest. A trash
rack covers the control gate and
\ Jersey barriers have been placed
%4 around the structure to prevent riprap
= from rolling onto the gate and silt from
== building up on the upstream face. The
= 2016 repairs were made immediately
—~ downstream of the intake structure. It
-~ is recommended that the intake
s structure and repaired section of the
bl - outlet conduit be removed and
Existing Intake Structure replaced with a gate tower accessible
from the dam crest by a walkway. The
section of damaged CMP outlet conduit would be replaced with new CMP on the
same grade as the existing, and then the entire outlet conduit lined using CIPP
methods. The outlet conduit would connect to the downstream side of the new
gate tower at elevation 5165.7 feet and be controlled by a gate and operator. An
additional gate and operator would be placed on the upstream side of the gate
tower at elevation 5170 feet which is at the minimum elevation that would provide
full capacity to the reservoir (after the addition of the spillway control wall). The
proposed gate tower, walkway, gates, and outlet conduit configuration is shown
in Appendix D.

Although there is approximately four feet of silt in the bottom of the reservoir the
topographic survey of the area shows that there is 323 acre feet of storage in the
reservoir between elevation 5170 feet (the elevation to which the reservoir can
be effectively drained) and the spillway elevation of 5180 feet. Currently, the
spillway is not well defined. By constructing a concrete control wall with the top
of wall at elevation 5185.5 feet the added six inches of storage would bring the
reservoir capacity to the decreed 344 acre feet. This could be accomplished
without removal of silt. The existing outlet gate which is at elevation 5167.94 feet
would be raised to elevation 5170 feet.

Alternatives
NPIC’s most pressing need is to lift the SEO storage restriction so that irrigation

water deliveries may continue to downstream users. Lifting the restriction
involves repair of the outlet conduit. An alternative to the CIPP lining of the



existing CMP is an open cut breach of the dam and replace the outlet conduit
with a new pipe. This would involve the removal and replacement of
approximately 4,000 cubic yards of dam embankment material, placement of a
mud mat, installation of 130 lineal feet of concrete-encased steel pipe,
construction of a new outlet structure, and installation of a cutoff trench and sand
collar all at an estimated cost of $105,000. A camera inspection of the outlet
conduit revealed no structural deficiencies in the conduit downstream of the
repair area and as there have been no operational issues with outlet structure the
CIPP alternative was selected at a cost of approximately $25,000.

An alternative to the selected gate tower and walkway is a gate tower within the
dam embankment with a control gate in the tower and the secondary gate at an
inlet structure with a grade beam supporting the gate stem and vent extending
from the structure to the dam crest. This would only be a viable alternative if the
dam were to be breached. The gate tower costs would be approximately the
same in this scenario and the inlet structure and grade beam would have to
offset the cost of the walkway. The gate tower with walkway was selected
because the design was successfully used on NPIC’s nearby, and very similar,
Reservoir No. 10 so engineering and design costs were reduced. A drawing of
the proposed gate tower, walkway, and outlet conduit may be found in Appendix
E.

As previously mentioned, the construction of a concrete spillway to raise the
storage level of the reservoir six inches was chosen over the alternative of
removing 20 acre feet of silt from the reservoir. The cost of the removing the silt
at three dollars per cubic yard would be approximately $125,000 while the cost of
the control wall is estimated to be less than $15,000.

Replacement of the approximate 500 lineal foot of 30-inch diameter RCP would
involve excavation and removal of the existing pipe, placement of pipe bedding,
purchase and placement of new pipe, and backfilling and seeding of the area. A
construction easement for the excavation operations would need to be obtained
from the adjacent landowner. The cost of replacement of the pipe is estimated to
be approximately $90,000. The chosen CIPP lining of the existing pipe is only
slightly lower in cost but is a much quicker and simpler construction method with
fewer unknown cost variables.

Table 1 presents the cost estimate for the chosen alternatives.



Table 1

Cost Estimate Mountain Supply Res. No. 10

I[t\cla(;n Item Description Quantity | Units | Unit Price | Amount
1 Geotechnical Survey 1 L.S. $3,250 $3,250
> Pre-Construction and 1
Topographic Survey L.S. $9,970 $9,970
3 | Mobilization 1 L.S. $27,000 $27,000
4 | Construction Surveying 1 L.S. $3,500 $3,500
5 | Dewatering and Erosion Control 1 L.S. $7,000 $7,000
6 Inlet Structure 15 C.Y. $1,200 $18,000
7 | 30-Inch RCP Repairs 1 L.S. $6,000 $6,000
8 | 30-inch CIPP 485 L.F. $182 $88,270
9 | Dissipation Structure 16 C.Y. $1,200 $19,200
10 | Excavate Inlet and Intake Channel 1 L.S. $12,000 $12,000

11 Clearing G_rL_Jbbing and Stripping 1
and Demolition L.S. $3,000 $3,000

12 24-Inch CMP Replacement and 1
Encasement L.S. $12,000 $12,000
13 | 24-inch CIPP Lining 130 L.S. $200 $26,000
14 | Gate Tower 25 C.Y. $1,200 $30,000
15 | Gates and Operators 1 L.S. $40,000 $40,000
16 | Walkway, Trash Racks 1 L.S. $38,000 $38,000
17 | Spillway Control Wall 1 L.S. $15,000 $15,000
18 | Riprap 600 Ton $45 $27,000
19 | Bedding 140 Ton $44 $6,160
20 | Seeding 1 L.S. $3,000 $3,000
Subtotal | $394,350

Engineering, Legal, and o
21 Co%tingenc?y ° 25% L.S. $98,588
TOTAL | $492,938

Implementation Schedule

Drawings and Specification for the project will be submitted to the SEO by the
end of March 2017. Upon approval of the design the project will be put out to bid
and construction completed before the 2018 irrigation season.

Easements

NPIC has full access to the project area and no additional easements are
required to complete the project.

Permitting

No permitting is expected to be required to complete the project.
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Institutional Considerations

Entities that are, or may be, involved in the design, construction, and financing of
the project include:

The North Poudre Irrigation Company/Scott Hummer — administration
and financing;

Tessara Water, LLC, Tara Schutter, P.E., Engineering and Project
Management

Colorado Water Conservation Board — financing.

NPIC will be the lead for the financing, design, and construction of the project
and will be the entity entering into contracts and agreements with the various
entities for the services provide by each party shown above.

Financial Analysis

NPIC is requesting a 30-year loan from the Colorado Water Conservation Board
(CWCB) in the amount of $494,900 ($490,000 project cost plus $4,900 loan
service fee) to cover 100% of the estimated total cost of the project.

There are 10,000 outstanding shares of NPIC stock. An estimated blended
interest rate of 2.50% was calculated according to the classification of ownership
shown in Table 3. We understand the CWCB staff will determine the actual
distribution of the shareholder classifications and determine an interest rate.
These values are used for illustration purposes.

Table 2
North Poudre Irrigation Company Stock Ownership
Classification Number of % . Interest | Blended
Shares Ownership | Rate Rate

Total number of shares: 10,000
Commercial 10 0.10% 6.00% 0.006%
Low income municipal 134.50 1.34% 2.40% 0.032%
Middle income municipal 6,693.00 | 66.93% 2.75% 1.840%
High income municipal 477.00 4.77% 3.10% 0.148%
Ag 2,685.50 | 26.86% 1.70% 0.457%
Blended Interest Rate (30 year) 2.48%
Blended Interest Rate (Rounded) 2.50%

At an interest rate of 2.50%, annual payments on a loan of $494,900 are
$23,645. Added to the first 10 payments is 10% of the payment to be deposited
in a reserve account making the first ten payments $28,594. The annual
assessment would increase $2.86 per share. The $2.86 per share increase in
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assessment cost represents an increase of $0.64 per acre foot of water based on
the historic average of 4.44 acre feet of water delivered per share. A summary of
the project’s cost is shown in Table 4.

Table 3
Financial Summary

Project Cost + 1% Loan Service Fee $494,900
CWCB Loan Payment $23,645
CWCB Loan Payment Amount (Including 10% Reserve) $28,594
Number of Shareholders 570
Number of Shares of Stock 10,000
Loan Payment per Share of Stock $2.86
Current Assessments per Share* $216.35
Future Assessments per Share $219.21
Annual Increased Cost Per Acre Foot (Avg. Annual Delivery:

4.44 AF) $0.64

*The 2015 assessment was $200. There are three pending loans in disbursement with total estimated
annual payments of $216,348 which will raise the annual assessment to $216.35 before the addition of this
loan.

Credit worthiness: NPIC assesses shareholder fee’s annually (February 1)
based on the projected operating costs, debt service, and water assessment
costs for the year. If it is evident that there will be surplus funds at the end of the
fiscal year (October 31), the Board of Directors typically refunds the money to the
shareholders in the form of cash or allows shareholders to apply the refund to the
next year’'s assessment. If expenses exceed the projected amount NPIC draws
funds from a $500,000 unsecured line of credit from the First National Bank in
Fort Collins. The loan amount is included in the next years projected expenses
and repaid when the first assessments are received. This method of operation
results in financial ratios of 100% with or without the project.

NPIC has eight outstanding loans with the CWCB dating to 1985. NPIC has
made all scheduled payments on each of these loans. In addition to these eight
loans NPIC has three additional loans in progress with the CWCB. The existing
and pending loans are summarized in Table 5. Of the three pending loans, NPIC
could potentially recover $495,000 in FEMA grant money for the Fossil Creek
Reservoir Inlet Diversion Structure project, the NPIC Reservoir No. 4
Rehabilitation Project is ready for closeout and is approximately $150,000 under
the approved loan amount, and the Livermore Tunnel Project is currently on track
to be completed within budget.

NPIC has no other long term debt.



TABLE 4

EXISTING DEBT
CWCB LOAN | ORIGINAL | CURRENT | ANNUAL | MATURITY PROJECT
# BALANCE | BALANCE | PAYMENT DATE
C153833 $500,000 $133,807 $36,889 9/1/2019 NPIC Res. No. 5 & 6
C153385 $1,331,704 $551,644 $77,612 5/1/2024 Fossil Creek Res.
Res. No. 6 Outlet
C150013 $623,778 $341,858 $46,061 5/1/2024 Indian Creek Res.
Res. No. 5 Spillway
C153449 $1,152,909 $558,114 $67,192 5/1/2026 Res. No. 15
C150170 $735,280 $495,961 $50,572 2/1/2027 NPIC Res. No. 1
C153496 $404,502 $231,034 $23,574 5/1/2029 Clark Lake
C153572 $340,551 $215,094 $19,847 5/1/2031 NPIC Res. No. 2
C153637 $1,761,096 | $1,052,676 $64,378 5/1/2035 NPIC Res. No. 5 & 6
Subtotal (Existing Debt): $3,580,188 | $386,125
Three Loans in Progress:
Fossil Creek Res. Inlet
C150368 $876,680 $44,220 Diversion Structure
C150378 $2,263,410 $105,062 NPIC Res. No. 4
CT2017-1402 | $1,451,673 $67,066 Livermore Tunnel
Subtotal Loans In Progress: | $216,348
Estimated Total All Loans: | $602,473

NPIC uses revenue from recreation leases on their reservoirs to help make
CWCB loan payments. In 2016 the income from these leases was approximately
$400,000 and is expected to remain near that amount. Typically the leases are
for three years and are increased 2% when they are renewed. In addition to the
recreational leases NPIC receives annual payments of $188,224 for the sale of
the Halligan Reservoir site to the City of Fort Collins.

Assessments are used to fund operations and maintenance as well as water
assessments and fees for shares in other ditch companies, including the
$1.50/unit for 40,000 units of Colorado Big Thompson.

Complete financial information may be found in NPIC’s Annual Reports. The
financial statements from the Annual Reports for 2013, 2014, and 2015 are found
in Appendix F.

Alternative financing considerations:

NPIC has investigated alternative financing sources.
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Collateral:

As security for the CWCB loan, NPIC can pledge assessment income, lease
income and the project itself.

Economic Analysis:

The economic benefit of the project is considerable. By rehabilitating the
reservoir NPIC will be able to store their full decree of 344 acre feet of water.
Using an estimated cost of $3,000/AF for building new storage the value of the
project is $1,032,000 compared to the estimated cost of $495,000.

Social, Environmental, Physical Impacts:

Forty-eight shareholders rely on the delivery of 600 acre feet of water through
Mountain Supply Reservoir No. 10 to irrigate agricultural crops. The livelihood of
these shareholders is dependent on the ability of NPIC to deliver water through
the reservoir. Additionally there is the potential for water trades and exchanges
to Windsor Reservoir No. 8 which is located immediately below Mountain supply
Reservoir No. 10.

Environmental and physical impacts will be minimal as the project will only
restore the reservoir to its previous condition.

Conclusions

1. NPIC is an incorporated entity in the State of Colorado with the ability

to enter into a contract with the CWCB for the purpose of obtaining a

Construction fund loan.

NPIC has full access to complete the work.

The project would provide for additional storage of water for the

beneficial use of the shareholders and ensure that NPIC retains its full

decree of water dating to 1905.

4. The total estimated cost of the project is $594,900 of which 100% will
be financed by a loan from the CWCB Construction Fund.

5. The project is technically and financially feasible.

6. Mountain Supply Reservoir No. 10 is essential to water deliveries to 48
shareholders owning 81 shares of NPIC stock.

7. The cost per acre foot of storage water and water delivered is very low.

A

The CWCB Water Project Loan Application may be found in Appendix G.
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Appendix A

Engineering Inspection Reports and SEO Correspondence



ICOLORADO

Division of Water Resources

Departrment of Natural Resources

Dam Safety Branch

November 12, 2014

Mr. Scott Hummer

North Poudre Irr Co.

P.O. Box 100

Wellington, CO 80549
npicscott@qwestoffice.net

VIA EMAIL

When replying, please refer to:
Mountain Supply #10 Dam

(aka North Poudre #10), DAMID 030404
Water Division 1, Water District 3

SUBJECT: 2014 Engineer’s Inspection Report
Dear Scott,

| recently performed the inspection of Mountain Supply #10 Dam with Rob McNaughton on
October 8, 2014. This inspection was in accordance with Section 37-87-107 of the Colorado
Revised Statutes, which assigns to the State Engineer responsibility for determining safe storage
levels for all reservoirs in the State of Colorado. Conditions observed during the dam safety
inspection resulted in a recommended safe storage level of Full Storage.

Attached are copies of the Engineer’s Inspection Report and photographs taken during the
inspection. Please see page 3 of the report for actions required by you to maintain and/or
improve the safety of this dam. Once you have reviewed the report, please return a signed
copy of the signature page, via electronic or regular mail, to the Division 1 Office. Lastly,
please feel free to contact me (970) 352-8712 ext 1218, regarding any dam safety issues, or to
discuss any part of this inspection.

Sincerely,
Kallie Bauer, P.E.

Dam Safety Engineer

ec: Bill McCormick, Chief, Dam Safety Branch
Mark Simpson, District 3 Water Commissioner

810 9'" Street, suite 200, Greeley, CO 80631 P 970.352.8712 F 970.392.1816 www.water.state.co.us




INSPECTOR: KEB
ENGINEER'S INSPECTION REPORT
OFFICE OF THE STATE ENGINEER - DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES - DAM SAFETY BRANCH 1313 SHERMAN STREET, ROOM 818, DENVER, CO 80203, (303) 866-3581
DAM NAME: MOUNTAIN SUPPLY #10 T. 080N R: 0690W S: 13 COUNTY: LARIMER DATE OF INSPECTION: 10/8/2014
DAM ID: 030404 YRCompl: 1974 DAM HEIGHT(FT): 22.0 SPILLWAY WIDTH(FT): 150.0 PREVIOUS INSPECTION: 8/27/2008
CLASS: Low hazard DAM LENGTH(FT):  944.0 SPILLWAY CAPACITY(CFS):  6538.0 NORMAL STORAGE (AF): 344.0
DIV: 1 WD: 3 CRESTWIDTH(FT):  20.0 FREEBOARD (FT): 6.5 SURFACE AREA(AC): 48.0
EAP: Not Required CRESTELEV(FT): 5130.0 DRAINAGE AREA (AC.): 170.0 OUTLET INSPECTED:
CURRENT RESTRICTION: -- NONE --
OWNER: NORTH POUDRE IRR. CO. OWNER REP.: SCOTT HUMMER
ADDRESS: P. O. BOX 100 CONTACT NAME: SCOTT HUMMER
WELLINGTON CO 80549-0000 CONTACT PHONE: (970) 568-3612
INSPECTION PARTY Rob McNaughton Kallie Bauer
REPRESENTING : NPIC co-DNR-Dam Safety
FIELD 10 - 2.7 10.4
CONDITIONS WATER LEVEL: BELOW DAM CREST FT. Below Spillway . FT. GAGE ROD READING .
OBSERVED GROUND MOISTURE CONDITION: DRY [ ] wer [ ] snowcover OTHER
DIRECTIONS:  MARK AN X FOR CONDITIONS FOUND AND UNDERLINE WORDS THAT APPLY

PROBLEMS NOTED [ (ONONE

[ ](3) CRACKS WITH DISPLACEMENT [ | (4) SINKHOLE

D (8) CONCRETE FACING - HOLES CRACKS, DISPLACED, UNDERMINED

UPSTREAM SLOPE

D (1)RIPRAP - MISSING, SPARSE, DISPLACED, WEATHERED

[ ] (5) APPEARS TOO STEEP

(9) OTHER

[ ] (2) WAVE EROSION - WITH SCARPS
[ ](6) DEPRESSION OR BULGES [ | (7) SLIDES

vegetation

The upstream slope has large riprap and appears stable. There is some brush on the upstream slope that has been sprayed. The weeds and

dying and should be removed as they die. Dead woody debris and brush can attract rodents.

Some sand has blown on to the riprap this is not a dam safely issue but may encourage vegetation growth.

CONDITIONS OBSERVED:

PROBLEMS NOTED (10) NONE
[ ](15) NOT WIDE ENOUGH

The crest is at gage height 20.2

[ ]@1 RUTS OR PUDDLES

[ ]@6)Low AREA

I:l Good

[ ]@2) EROSION

[ ](a7) MISALIGNMENT [ ]as)mp

Acceptable
CREST

[ ](13) CRACKS - WITH DISPLACEMENT

I:l Poor

[ ]@4) SINKHOLES

ROPER SURFACE DRAINAGE || (19) OTHER

No problems noted. The crest is a dirt road and is graded to the upstream slope.

CONDITIONS OBSERVED:

Good

I:I Acceptable

I:l Poor

PROBLEMS NOTED |_](20) NONE [_](21) LIVESTOCK DAMAGE || (22) EROSION OR GULLIES | _|(23) CRACKS - WITH DISPLACEMENT

[ ](25) APPEARS TOO STEEP | |(26) DEPRESSION OR BULGES | |(27)SLIDE [ ](28) SOFT AREAS

DOWNSTREAM SLOPE

[ ](24) SINKHOLE

(29) OTHER  yegetation

Downstream slope has lots of brush and vegetation on the slope. The brush has been sprayed and is dying it will be removed once it is dead.

There is an area near the crest where a different spray was used that killed everything the ground is bare.

CONDITIONS OBSERVED:

PROBLEMS NOTED |_](30) NONE [ _](31) SATURATED EMBANKMENT AREA

D (33) SEEPAGE EXITS AT POINT SOURCE

DRAIN OUTFALLS SEEN [/]no [ |ves
[ ](39) OTHER

indicate

I:l Good

[ ](32) seEl

No seepage observed during the inspection.

There are no drains at this site.

CONDITIONS OBSERVED:

I:l Good Acci

Page 1 of 4

Acceptable
SEEPAGE

D Poor

PAGE EXITS ON EMBANKMENT

[ ](34) SEEPAGE AREA AT TOE |_|(35) FLOW ADJACENT TO OUTLET | _](36) SEEPAGE INCREASED / MUDDY

Show location of drains on sketch and
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ENGINEER'S INSPECTION REPORT

DATE. 10/8/2014
DAM NAME: MOUNTAIN SUPPLY #10

DAM I.D.: 030404

OUTLET

PROBLEMS NOTED | _|(40)NONE [ |(41)NO OUTLET FOUND | |(42) POOR OPERATING ACCESS [ | (43) INOPERABLE

[ ](44) UPSTREAM OR DOWNSTREAM STRUCTURE DETERIORATED  (45) OUTLET OPERATED DURING INSPECTION | |YES [V]NO
INTERIOR INSPECTED [w](120)NO [ ](121)YES [ |(46) CONDUIT DETERIORATED OR COLLAPSED | _](47) JOINTS DISPLACED
[ ]9 OTHER

(48) VALVE LEAKAGE

Outlet operated through the full cycle annually with no problems noted. The outlet was not releasing at the time of inspections.

Outlet pipe has water sitting in it the owner reports the head gate leaks.

It is recommended that an interior outlet inspection be performed due to the age of the structure. It is the best way to determine the condition
of the outlet pipe.

There are some cattails in downstream outlet channel the owner_is encouraged to remove the cattails below the outlet especially where it has
become overgrown and thick. The standing water in the pipe can greatly reduce the life of the pipe.

CONDITIONS OBSERVED: [] cood Acceptable [] Poor

SPILLWAY

PROBLEMS NOTED |_|(50) NONE [_](51) NO EMERGENCY SPILLWAY FOUND | ](52) EROSION WITH BACKCUTTING [ _|(53) CRACK - WITH DISPLACEMENT
[ ](54) APPEARS TO BE STRUCTURALLY INADEQUATE || (55) APPEARS TOO SMALL

[ ](58) CONCRETE DETERIORATED / UNDERMINED || (59) OTHER

[ ] (56) INADEQUATE FREEBOARD | | (57) FLOW OBSTRUCTED

The service spillway is at gage height 12.71, the emergency spillway is at gage height 13.69

Spillway is earthen swale with no grade control- It is recommended to periodically survey the spillway to ensure the proper elevation is
maintained.

The spillway should be evaluated to determine the hydraulic capacity. The tributary is small and is likely adequate but should be confirmed.
CONDITIONS OBSERVED: Good [] Acceptable [] Poor

MONITORING

EXISTING INSTRUMENTATION FOUND | |(110)NONE [ ](111) GAGEROD [ ](112) PIEZOMETERS | |(113) SEEPAGE WEIRS / FLUMES
[ ](114) SURVEY MONUMENTS | ] (115) OTHER

MONITORING OF INSTRUMENTATION D (116) NO (117) YES PERIODIC INSPECTIONS BY: (118) OWNER D(ng) ENGINEER
There is no instrumentation at this dam.

No gage rod on this dam. The Rules and Regulations require a gage rod at all reservoirs.

CONDITIONS OBSERVED: "~ Good | Acceptable X Poor

MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS
PROBLEMS NOTED D (60 NONE D (61) ACCESS ROAD NEEDS MAINTENANCE D (62) LIVESTOCK DAMAGE
(63) BRUSH ON UPSTREAM SLOPE, CREST DOWNSTREAM SLOPE, TOE D (64) TREES ON UPSTREAM SLOPE, CREST DOWNSTREAM SLOPE, TOE

D (65) RODENT ACTIVITY ON UPSTREAM SLOPE, CREST DOWNSTREAM SLOPE, TOE D (66) DETERIORATED CONCRETE - FACING, OUTLET SPILLWAY

[ ](67) GATE AND OPERATING MECHANISM NEED MAINTENANCE || (68) OTHER

Please continue to work on vegetation removal on the dam.

CONDITIONS OBSERVED: Good X Acceptable Poor

Go to next page for Overall Conditions and Items Requiring Actions
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ENGINEER'S INSPECTION REPORT DATE. 10/8/2014
DAM NAME: MOUNTAIN SUPPLY #10 DAM I.D.: 030404

OVERALL CONDITIONS

Overall dam is in Satisfactory Condition, thank you for your efforts in spraying the vegetation. To make this work the most effective please
remove the dead brush from the dam. The outlet channel should be cleared so the water does not back up in to the outlet pipe this can
reduce the life of the pipe. Given the age of the outlet pipe an internal outlet inspection is recommended. A staff gage should be installed to
meet the requirements of Rule 5.5.2

Based on this Safety Inspection and recent file review, the overall condition is determined to be:
(71) SATISFACTORY [ ](72) CONDITIONALLY SATISFACTORY [ ](73) UNSATISFACTORY

ITEMS REQUIRING ACTION BY OWNER TO IMPROVE THE SAFETY OF THE DAM

MAINTENANCE - MINOR REPAIR - MONITORING

[ ](80) PROVIDE ADDITIONAL RIPRAP:

(81) LUBRICATE AND OPERATE OUTLET GATES THROUGH FULL CYCLE annually

(82) CLEAR TREES AND/OR BRUSH FROM: s|opes and outlet channel
D (83) INITIATE RODENT CONTROL PROGRAM AND PROPERLY BACKFILL EXISTING HOLES:

[ ](84) GRADE CREST TO A UNIFORM ELEVATION WITH DRAINAGE TO THE UPSTREAM SLOPE:
[](85) PROVIDE SURFACE DRAINAGE FOR:
[]@6) MONITOR:
[ ](67) DEVELOP AND SUBMIT AN EMERGENCY ACTION PLAN:
(88) OTHER install staff gage
(89) OTHER

ENGINEERING - EMPLOY AN ENGINEER EXPERIENCED IN DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF DAMS TO:  (Plans and Specifications must be approved by State Engineer prior to construction.

D (90) PREPARE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR REHABILITATION OF THE DAM:

D (91) PREPARE AS -BUILT DRAWINGS OF:

(96) PERFORM AN INTERNAL INSPECTION OF THE OUTLET: recommended not required

[ ](97) OTHER:
[ ](98) OTHER:
[ ](99) OTHER:

SAFE STORAGE LEVEL: RECOMMENDED AS A RESULT OF THIS INSPECTION

respansibility Far the safety of this dam rests with the reservair owner ar operator,
whio should take every step necessary to prevent damages caused by leakage or
cerflow of waters from the reseraair or floods resulting from a Failure of the dam.

The State Engineer, by providing this dam safety inspection repart, does not
a=zsume responsibility for any unsafe condition of the subject dam. The sole

(101) FULL STORAGE FT. BELOW DAM CREST
[ ](102) CONDITIONAL FULL STORAGE FT. BELOW SPILLWAY CREST
[ ](103) RECOMMENDED RESTRICTION ~> FT. GAGE HEIGHT
u NO STORAGE-MAINTAIN OUTLET FULLY OPEN
[ ](104) CONTINUE EXISTING RESTRICTION u

REASON FOR RESTRICTION

ACTIONS REQUIRED FOR CONDITIONAL FULL STORAGE OR CONTINUED STORAGE AT THE RESTRICTED LEVEL:

Engineers M/LU\ & ﬁ/«»/\/ Owner's
" Signature .
Signature INSPECTED BY 9 OWNER/OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE DATE:

Page 3 of 4



ENGINEER'S INSPECTION REPORT

DATE. 10/8/2014
DAM I.D.: 030404

DAM NAME: MOUNTAIN SUPPLY #10
GUIDELINES FOR DETERMINING CONDITIONS
CONDITIONS OBSERVED - APPLIES TO UPSTREAM SLOPE, CREST, DOWNSTREAM SLOPE, OUTLET, SPILLWAY
GOOD ACCEPTABLE POOR

In general, this part of the structure has a near new
appearance, and conditions observed in this area do not
appear to threaten the safety of the dam.

GOOD

No evidence of uncontrolled seepage. No unexplained
increase in flows from designed drains. All seepage is
clear. Seepage conditions do not appear to threaten the
safety of the dam.

GOOD

Monitoring includes movement surveys and leakage
measurements for all dams, and piezometer readings for
High hazard dams. Instrumentation is in reliable, working
condition. A plan for monitoring the instrumentation and
analyzing results by the owner's engineer is in effect.
Periodic inspections by owner's engineer.

Although general cross-section is maintained, surfaces
may be irregular, eroded, rutted, spalled, or otherwise not
in new condition. Conditions in this area do not currently
appear to threaten the safety of the dam.

CONDITIONS OBSERVED - APPLIES TO SEEPAGE

ACCEPTABLE

Some seepage exists at areas other than the drain
outfalls, or other designed drains. No unexplained
increase in seepage. All seepage is clear. Seepage
conditions observed do not currently appear to threaten
the safety of the dam.

Conditions observed in this area appear to threaten the
safety of the dam.

POOR

Seepage conditions observed appear to threaten the
safety of the dam. Examples:

1) Designed drain or seepage flows have increased
without increase in reservoir level.

2) Drain or seepage flows contain sediment, i.e., muddy
water or particles in jar samples.

3) Widespread seepage, concentrated seepage, or
ponding appears to threaten the safety of the dam.

CONDITIONS OBSERVED - APPLIES TO MONITORING

ACCEPTABLE

Monitoring includes movement surveys and leakage
measurements for High and Significant hazard dams;
leakage measurements for Low hazard dams.
Instrumentation is in serviceable condition. A plan for
monitoring instrumentation is in effect by owner. Periodic
inspections by owner or representative. OR, NO
MONITORING REQUIRED.

POOR

All instrumentation and monitoring described under
"ACCEPTABLE" here for each class of dam, are not
provided, or required periodic readings are not being
made, or unexplained changes in readings are not reacted
to by the owner.

CONDITIONS OBSERVED - APPLIES TO MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR

GOOD

Dam appears to receive effective on-going maintenance
and repair, and only a few minor items may need to be
addressed.

SATISFACTORY

The safety inspection indicates no conditions that appear
to threaten the safety of the dam, and the dam is
expected to perform satisfactorily under all design loading
conditions. Most of the required monitoring is being
performed.

FULL STORAGE
Dam may be used to full capacity with no conditions
attached.

High hazard
Loss of human life is expected in the event of failure of
the dam, while the reservoir is at the high water line.

ACCEPTABLE

Dam appears to receive maintenance, but some
maintenance items need to be addressed. No major
repairs are requirecl

OVERALL CONDITIONS

CONDITIONALLY SATISFACTORY

The safety inspection indicates symptoms of structural
distress (seepage, evidence of minor displacements, etc.),
which, if conditions worsen, could lead to the failure of the
dam. Essential monitoring, inspection, and maintenance
must be performed as a requirement for continued full
storage in the reservoir.

SAFE STORAGE LEVEL

CONDITIONAL FULL STORAGE
Dam may be used to full storage if certain monitoring,
maintenance, or operational conditions are met.

HAZARD CLASSIFICATION OF DAMS

Significant hazard

Significant damage to improved property is expected in
the event of failure of the dam while the reservoir is at the
high water line, but no loss of human life is expected.

POOR

Dam does not appear to receive adequate maintenance.
One or more items needing maintenance or repair has
begun to threaten the safety of the dam.

UNSATISFACTORY

The safety inspection indicates definite signs of structural
distress (excessive seepage, cracks, slides, sinkholes,
severe deterioration, etc.), which could lead to the failure
of the dam if the reservoir is used to full capacity. The
dam is judged unsafe for full storage of water.

RESTRICTION

Dam may not be used to full capacity, but must be
operated at some reduced level in the interest of public
safety.

Low hazard

Loss of human life is not expected, and damage to
improved property is expected to be small, in the event
of failure of the dam while the reservoir is at high water
fine.

NPH hazard - No loss of life or damage to improved property, or loss of downstream resource is expected in the event of failure
of the dam while the reservoir is at the high water line.
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Photo 1. Upstream slope with some riprap and
some vegetation

Photo 2. Crest looking north

Photo 3. Downstream slope with
vegetation

Mountain Supply #10 Dam Inspection Report
Water Division 1, District 3, DAMID: 030404
Photo page 1 of 3



Photo 4. Downstream slopewith some
bare areas

Photo 5. On crest looking toward
Spillway

Photo 6. On crest looking downstream
at outlet

Mountain Supply #10 Dam Inspection Report
Water Division 1, District 3, DAMID: 030404
Photo page 2 of 3



Photo 7. Looking at downstream end of
outlet

Photo 8. Service Spillway

Photo 9. Standing on spillway looking upstream

Mountain Supply #10 Dam Inspection Report
Water Division 1, District 3, DAMID: 030404
Photo page 3 of 3



COLORADO

DNR
‘4 Division of Water Resources
L/

Department of Natural Resources

August 20, 2015

Mr. Scott Hummer

North Poudre Irr Co.

P.O. Box 100

Wellington, CO 80549
npicscott@qwestoffice.net

Via Email
When replying, please refer to:
Mountain Supply #10 Dam
(aka North Poudre #10), DAMID 030404
Water Division 1, Water District 3

SUBJECT:  Guidance on Dam rehabilitation in Response to the State Engineer’s Reservoir
Restriction Order

Dear Mr. Hummer,

On August 6, 2015 we were notified of a problem at Mountain Supply #10 Dam and we
performed an inspection to evaluate the reported conditions. Upon inspection we found the
outlet pipe had failed near the upstream gate. Based on observations of the empty reservoir
it appears there is a hole in the 24” Corrugated Metal Pipe, CMP outlet pipe. It appears near
the intake structure the condition of the rest of the pipe is unknown. Since the reservoir
drained out the outlet pipe and in the outlet ditch no damage was caused to downstream
property.

You will be receiving a zero-storage restriction order from the State Engineer formally
documenting the restricted reservoir level for Mountain Supply #10 (aka North Poudre #10)
Reservoir as a result of damage to the outlet.

To date the reservoir has been emptied to the level of the outlet. There is small amount of
water passing through the reservoir. The outlet gate is fully open. Repair of the dam and
removal of the restriction will require the design and oversight by a qualified engineer. The
following bullet points relate to what we see as the most efficient means of repair of the
project and the quickest path back to full storage.

e The gate should remain fully open. And the reservoir should be monitored to ensure
that water is not being stored against the outlet structure or embankment.

e The outlet conduit should have a video inspection performed to determine the
condition of the entire conduit

810 9™ Street, suite 200, Greeley, CO 80631 P 970.352.8712 F 970.392.1816 www.water.state.co.us




Mr. Scott Hummer

Mountain Supply #10 Reservoir Restriction Guidance
DAMID 030404

August 20, 2015

Page 2 of 2

¢ The owner needs to hire a Professional Engineer registered in the State of Colorado
and experienced in dam engineering and construction to develop alternatives to repair
the dam and select an alternative

e Submit Plans and Specifications to our office for review and approval

e Repair work must be constructed and accepted by our office before the storage
restriction can be lifted.

The regulatory process for repairing and modifying dams in Colorado is detailed in Rule 6 of
the Rules and Regulations for Dam Safety and Construction, which is available on our website
(http://water.state.co.us/damsafety/dams.asp). | am available to clarify any of the details
and processes required in Rule 6 with you and your engineer as needed.

Our office appreciates your cooperation in this matter and we look forward to working with
you to determine the most efficient an effective way to rehabilitate this dam and return it to

safe, full storage condition. If you or your engineer should have any questions, please contact
me at (970) 352-8712 xt 1218.

Sincerely,

Kallie E. Bauer, P.E.
Dam Safety Engineer

ec: Bill McCormick, Chief, Dam Safety Branch
Dave Nettles, Division Engineer, Water Division 1
Mark Simpson, District 3 Water Commissioner

810 9™ Street, suite 200, Greeley, CO 80631 P 970.352.8712 F 970.392.1816 www.water.state.co.us




Mr. Scott Hummer

Mountain Supply #10 Reservoir Restriction Guidance
DAMID 030404

August 20, 2015

Page 2 of 2

e The owner needs to hire a Professional Engineer registered in the State of Colorado

and experienced in dam engineering and construction to develop alternatives to repair
the dam and select an alternative

e Submit Plans and Specifications to our office for review and approval

e Repair work must be constructed and accepted by our office before the storage
restriction can be lifted.

The regulatory process for repairing and modifying dams in Colorado is detailed in Rule 6 of
the Rules and Regulations for Dam Safety and Construction, which is available on our website
(http://water.state.co.us/damsafety/dams.asp). | am available to clarify any of the details
and processes required in Rule 6 with you and your engineer as needed.

Our office appreciates your cooperation in this matter and we look forward to working with
you to determine the most efficient an effective way to rehabilitate this dam and return it to

safe, full storage condition. If you or your engineer should have any questions, please contact
me at (970) 352-8712 xt 1218.

Sincerely,

Ko, & Bacn?

Kallie E. Bauer, P.E.
Dam Safety Engineer

ec: Bill McCormick, Chief, Dam Safety Branch
Dave Nettles, Division Engineer, Water Division 1
Mark Simpson, District 3 Water Commissioner

810 9" Street, suite 200, Greeley, CO 80631 P 970.352.8712 F 970.392.1816 www.water.state.co.us




LYW COLORADO
Division of Water Resources

Department of Natural Resources

Dam Safety Branch

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION REPORT
PROJECT INFORMATION

Dam Name: Mountain Supply #10 Inspector: KEB

DAMID: 030404 Date: 02/29/16

C-#: C- Time on Site: 1:30-2:30

Dam Owner: North Poudre Irrigation Contact: Rob MacNaughton

Engineer: Contact:

Contractor: Contact:

Approved Plans & Specifications On-site? ¥ Yes [ No Engineer Following Const. Obs. Plan? ¥ Yes I No

INSPECTION PARTICIPANTS

Inspection
Participants:

CONDITIONS

Rob MacNaughton (NPIC); Kallie Bauer (SEQ)

Reservoir: empty
Weather: Cool, mid-40s, sunny, windy
Equipment: Excavator,
Work Completed 1. Excavated a trench to expose the outlet pipe
to Date: 2. Wrapped pipe for temporary fix
3. Put one side of form for the encasement
Work in Progress: | Finishing the forming of the encasement
Work Planned and | Plan to pour tomorrow
est. Timeframe:

OBSERVATIONS AND DISCUSSION

Purpose of Inspect the excavation on the pipe

Inspection:

Items Inspected: 1. The excavation appears to expose the pipe and the encasement appears to be adequate for a
temporary repair

Items not in

compliance with

approved

plans/specs:
Problems/Concerns: | Still waiting for letter from Engineer detailing the temporary repair and permanent

Change Orders:

Minor Changes:

Issues Discussed: 1. The concrete should be allowed to cure for a few days before the forms are stripped
recommend taking a cylinder that can be broken if planning on trying to strip forms early

2. The backfill placed around the encasement should be consistent and uniform material
placed in lifts and compacted and tested

1313 Sherman Street, Room 821, Denver, CO 80203 P 303.866.3581 F 303.866.2223 www.water.state.co.us




CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION REPORT DATE: 02/29/16

DAM NAME: Mountain Supply #10 KEB DAMID: 030404, C-

OBSERVATIONS AND DISCUSSION

Resolution of
Deficiencies:
Action Items: 1. Submit the video inspection of pipe
2. Submit construction plans
3. Submit specification - include liner, backfill requirements
4. Sequence of work - excavation, lining, extension
5. Discuss if the extension of the pipe is required and tie in detail
6. Submit sheet on plastic used for temporary fix
7. Submit notes on the temporary repair work performed
Recommendations:
Conclusions: Submit request for temporary repair as soon as possible
Next Inspection: TBD

PHOTOGRAPHS

Standing on Dam Crest looking down at
upstream slope




CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION REPORT DATE: 02/29/16

DAM NAME: Mountain Supply #10 KEB DAMID: 030404, C-

PHOTOGRAPHS

Looking toward dam at the pipe
wrapped and the rebar and one side
of forms

Looking upstream showing forms at a
slight camber to allow for better
compaction




CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION REPORT

DAM NAME: Mountain Supply #10

Metal was existing this will all be
removed during final repair

KEB

PHOTOGRAPHS

&

DATE: 02/29/16

DAMID: 030404, C-




COLORADO

Division of Water Resources

Jo\4

Department of Natural Resources

Dam Safety Branch

April 9, 2016

Mr. David Rau, P.E.

Paragon Consulting Group, Inc.
1103 Oak Park Drive, Suite 110
Fort Collins, CO 80525
dmrau@paragoncg.com

VIA EMAIL
When replying, please refer to:
MOUNTAIN SUPPLY #10 DAM
(aka North Poudre #10), DAMID 030404
Water Division 1, Water District 3

SUBJECT: Temporary Approval to Store Water
Dear Mr. Rau,

Our office is in receipt of your submittal dated March 9, 2016 requesting approval for
temporary partial fill of Mountain Supply #10 Dam. The reservoir was restricted on August 17,
2015, because of a hole in the outlet pipe near the intake structure. The letter requests a 2-
year temporary fill allowance to gage height 6 while the long term repair is designed and
constructed. The letter outlines the temporary and long term repair plans for the Dam.

Based on your letter and inspections performed by Kallie Bauer the following work is being or
has already been completed for the temporary repair:
e Aninternal outlet inspection was performed
e« The embankment was excavated back about two feet beyond the hole in the outlet
conduit. The outlet was then wrapped in plastic wrap. The conduit was then fully
encased in concrete. The encasement was then backfilled using the removed
material. This material was sampled and tested in the lab so optimum moisture and
density could be tested in the field as the material was re-placed.
¢ NPIC personnel will monitor weekly and report monthly to SEO office

The long term repair will include:

e Removal of the temporary repair
Removal of the elbow at the upstream end of the outlet conduit
Lining of the outlet conduit
Construction of new outlet gate tower with primary spillway
Evaluation of the emergency spillway to ensure adequacy

The following schedule was proposed in your letter:
e Summer 2016 - Hire qualified engineer to perform design

7405 Highway 50, Salida, CO 81201 P 719.530.5536 F 719.530.5554 www.water.state.co.us
John W. Hickenlooper, Governor | Robert Randall, DNR Interim Executive Director




Mr. David Rau, P.E.

Mountain Supply #10 Dam - Temporary Fill Approval Letter
DAMID 030404

April 9, 2016

Page 2 of 3

Fall 2016 - Submit to Design to SEO for Review

Winter 2017- Request loans and grants to help complete the work
Winter 2017/Spring 2018 - Construction

Spring 2018 - Construction complete

As stated in the restriction letter, a Professional Engineer registered in the State of Colorado
and experienced in dam engineering and construction is required to develop design and
construction documents for this repair project. Plans and specifications will need to be
reviewed by our office before any repair work can be done. The regulatory process for
repairing and modifying dams in Colorado is detailed in Rule 6 of the Rules and Regulations
for Dam Safety and Construction, which is available on our website
(http://water.state.co.us/damsafety/dams.asp). We are available to clarify any of the
details and processes required in Rule 6 with you and your engineer as needed.

Based on our observations during our inspections, the temporary repair plan appears to be
adequate to safely allow for minimum storage for a two year period. However, continued
regular monitoring by NPIC is required and it is understood that if conditions change for the
worse the reservoir will have to be emptied.

Therefore, the owner is granted conditional approval to store water, when it becomes legally
and physically available, to gage height 6, approximately 80ac-ft, with the understanding that
if the work described above is not completed in two years, the zero storage restriction will be
reinstated. This temporary approval to store was previously issued verbally on March 22, 2016.
This letter serves as the official notice of the approval. We are hopeful that the dam owner has
been able to capture water in storage in the time between verbal and official approvals. We
apologize for the delay in issuing this official approval.

Please note, this temporary approval to store water does not constitute final acceptance of
the project. Final acceptance of the project and approval for full use of the dam and reservoir
will not be granted until a design and construction documents have been submitted and
approved by our office and the project built and approved.

The State Engineer, by providing this temporary fill allowance does not assume responsibility
for any unsafe condition of the subject dam. The sole responsibility for the safety of this dam
rests with the reservoir owner and operator, who should take every step necessary to prevent
damages caused by leakage or overflow of waters from the reservoir or floods resulting from a
failure of the dam. Therefore, it is in the owner’s best interest to operate and maintain the
facility in a manner such that the safety of the dam and the general public are not jeopardized.

We are enclosing a copy of Rules 12 and 15 of the Rules and Regulations for the owner’s
reference and use. These rules pertain to general maintenance items and the owner’s
responsibilities, respectively.

7405 Highway 50, Salida, CO 81201 P 719.530.5536 F 719.530.5554 www.water.state.co.us
John W. Hickenlooper, Governor Robert Randall, DNR Interim Executive Director




Mr. David Rau, P.E.

Mountain Supply #10 Dam - Temporary Fill Approval Letter
DAMID 030404

April 9, 2016

Page 3 of 3

Our office appreciates your cooperation in this matter and we look forward to working with
you to determine the most efficient an effective way to rehabilitate this dam and return it to
safe, full storage condition. If you or your engineer should have any questions, please contact
Kallie Bauer in our Greeley Office at (970) 352-8712 ext 1218.

Sincerely,

0Pz

William T. McCormick lll, P.E., P.G.
Chief, Dam Safety Branch
for, Deputy State Engineer

Enc: Copy of Rules 12 and 15 of the “Rules and Regulations for Dam Safety and Dam Construction”

ec: Dave Nettles, Division Engineer, Water Division 1
Mark Simpson, District 3 Water Commissioner
Kallie Bauer, Dam Safety Engineer
Jeremy Franz, Design Review Engineer
Scott Hummer, North Poudre Irrigation Company, npicscott@qwestoffice.net

7405 Highway 50, Salida, CO 81201 P 719.530.5536 F 719.530.5554 www.water.state.co.us
John W. Hickenlooper, Governor | Robert Randall, DNR Interim Executive Director




Appendix B

Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws



(BEFICEOETIE/SECRETARY OF STATE)

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,| ss. , )
STATE OF COLORADO. CERTIFICATE

7 Bpron €. Snderson, (%Zgé/%;;/ '
St Gotbrastssationad yeonifdlas

the annexed ave fu?l, true and complete copies of Articles of Imcorporation and Articles
of Amendments to the Articles of Incorporation of

THE NORTH POUDRE IRRIGATION COMPANY

as filed in this aoffice and admiited to record.
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Ay . . "

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF %1% NORTH POTDRE"

IRRIGATION COMPANY.

Know 211 men by these presents, that we, Burton D. Sanborm,

Geoxrge M. Houston, end Hentw C. Luther, residenls of the state of R
Colorzdo, have associated ourselvew together under the name and style
o;f': THE NORTH POUDRZ IPsué_AIION CEPANY, - for the purpose of Lecomire g
body corporate and politic urder and by virtue of the laws of the sfé.fcg'
of Colorade: and in acc;ordance with the provisions of the laws-of

sald stete, we do hereby mai{e, execute and ackzowledpe ir triplicate
this certifricate in writing of our intention so to hecome a body cor-

porate, undor and by virtus of szid laws, and in so 2oing, do herebyr

certify as follows:
. . 1.

The corpoxete nsgmo' and style ol our szaid co:p'oration shalll be
TEE NORTH POUDXE IRRIGATION. COMPANY.
IY.
The objects znd purposes.for which our sald compay is formed
and incorporated,.ars aé follows:

(28) To accuire the canals, reservoirs an lands situated in
Larimer c-oxmty; i.n"the stete of Colorade, heretofore omred and operated
by The North .‘L’oud:ce Land, Canal and P.esér.roir Company, its sutccessors
il assigns,,éoget&:er with all rights, rights of way, reservolr si.t%fa',
privileges, i‘ranch.isos » water rights %_*_E}_p;_pg;gprintions of water, Lrom ite
Hortk Fork of the Cache 1z Pouﬁ;z:e river-and its txibutaries, and all
structures, flumes, headgates, applimnces and facil_i‘cies cor.z:.octed
thorewith and appurteramt thersto; to own, cultlvate angd develop said
Innds,,.and to operate and develop tho said cenal and reservoir system,
and to apply the water rliw.ror‘ced thereby and stoa;*er} in said reservoirs
to t.hc-s cultlvation off xaid lands, the promotiom of amrleulture by ixr-

rigation, and for othor beneficial uses;



——

— .

. _- ._....-_-ﬁ-.a...—q%u\-.a...._.,;.

2

(b} o5 builg, Construet, ang cmplete,% Tor tng
storage or vater for irrig&tion', SO Tar as tpe Saize ray Terain up.

constructeg angd i.m:mnploted, six rose:c-.roirs, Upen tre sald langg

volr System, towit, Tessrvalsp Lumber opg (1}, heing locatey 0n section
twenty-o::e (21) in township nize (9) north, Tenge Sixty-ning (69)

83t orf tng Sixth (61H) P, ; Tessrvoir Moabhor tyg (2) being locatgg
o sectiong twe:w_ty-rour and twentynrive (R4 ang 25} in to*rmship ning
{9} ROTWR, ransg 3 yening (69) west, ang Soctions nlneteen 211 thir.
ty {18 ang 30) in tom:si:ip Ning {9) nortih, Tanze sixty—-eig):t (68) .
west of the sixth (6th) P.H.; Teservoir Buaber trrge {3) being Situnt ey
0n sectiong ®ighteen aid ningtegn in towman ip Liing north, TRIe gixtya
8ight west ; Teserve iy ~umber rour (4) being ; tuateq on Sectiong
‘tventy-mi::e (23) 'tov.ms.hip nine (9) norty, Tan:e si:cty-oigzzt (68) west
O tho sixty (Gtx) P.i; Teservoirg mmber 2ive gug 3dx (5 ang €},
theser being treated gg ore, ang being 3ituated oy Twetiong thirty ong
a8d thirty. ty,e (81 ang 32) in township nine (9) nerth, ang saa:t_ioms

Tive ang Six (5 apg 8) in township elght (8) north, Tangg si:;ty-eigr,ht

eight intowns.hip r.irng (9 NeIth, range glrctyagiant 88) west of theg
gat) { JUM > 3-28; &=t (88)

slcty (8th) Pe;  ang to 8cquirg, othep Teservoirs ang Teservolp

irrigntlon tl:roug,h. &nd by meansg oy salg tanals a:g TOSETVY [1g Irom the

Cacho 14 Povdre riyvgn e ity tributa;r-iea, and Lrom Tloeds, stoms,
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and seepage water vherover round aveilable and not theretofiore -
propriated.

{4y To acgulre la_mds for rights of woy for its esnels, inlet,
suprly, discharge, and lateral ditches, and ror sites for 1ts reser-
voirs from the public domain. over state 1ands and from private cvmers
mmder omd by virtue of the jaws of the simte of colorale, snd of tke

United States, by zrenit, purchase, cordemnation or otherwise, and tuy

* pthor wators; as sroresaid, both uader approprisiions alrealy made,

and appropriations Jereafisr 1o bo acquired, and to 2pply the same to
the lands owred by szid company, an?d Tor the irrigation ana cultivation
of the same, and to scll and aispose of ihe zight %o the uso of said
waters for irrigation,. Gomestic and other purposes, to sueh
persors aud corporet lons &5 WLy require tlic use of the szmo, upon such
prices =nd upon such 1.;ems and corditionms ac mny herenfter be grreed
and detemined upon, exd for il:at purpose” te melc sonmtxects of sale
‘and p;;ovide for the conveyance of water rights and privileges, eithexr
as connected with the sale of tho stock of soid comparn), ©T otFarwise,
as may be determined from time to time, hy ihc :oerd of :”tiractors; or
as its by-laws duly enacted, shell prescribe.

(o) To acquire lzm,ds. by great, purchase, lgase,, or otherwise,
from tho state, United States, or from private pexrsons, rnd to use,

cultivate, sell; lease, dlspose of, and lmprove theo same, in cornectlon

with soid canal and Treservolr systen under ané by virtue of the laws:
of the stnte of Colorado.
(£} To promot o tho_roregoing purpeses by the sxercise of rll the

powers LecessaTy IOT the devolopment and suespusful operatiow of said

enterprise; %o szell, rortgope, and plodge the property and fran-

chises of sald compfmj;, and any and gvery part thereof: 1o horrow mcm?‘

gnd to socure such lomRns end procure funds upon tho seeurity of its oed
i
s2id property for the coTrporate purposcs of our said corpony, and

genorally to d@o sand perfoxm all things nesoossry to bo done under md ‘



4
by virtue of its corporazto powsrs and to do the bisiness and carry out
the objects and prrposes hereinbefore se;h Torik.
Ill.

fhe natural stream from which water io telen to supsly said
canals and reserveoirs, and the supply of waler for o Eaurpo:csﬂ‘_orein—
before naned;.and from vhich further approrristions sre to be made,.is
the Cacheo la Poudre :r:.iver, and its tributaries, particulerly the North )
Pork of the Cache la Poudre river. Water is zlso to bo talien and sup-
plied for s2id purposes direectly from any and 1l of itho tributaries,
water sheds, draws, Tlood water charntels, ond water ways, intercepted
by the maln cacal of the compeny, hknown a&s ihce Hortih Poudre Canal, snd
by other aitches consiructed, and csuitabie Lo no nosstructed Tor the
diversion erd storage of water foxr irrigetion L: llie reservoirs of our °
said company.

v,

The mein line of the canal, axd tre hweadzete thereof, which

" heas heretofore been comstructed, and to be aczulred by this compeny; is

an irrigating cenal described as follows, low~wit: the leadgate of
sald canal, belng mown as ‘the North Fork canal, hasfrts headzate o:':. ;
the west side of the North Fork of the Cache la Poudre river, situated
35° 4% B, wvariation 15° E., 508 feet, from the scuthwest comer of

‘section 18, tomship 10, north, range 70, went of the sixth. (&6th)

. principal meridian: the sald canal extands thence in an easterly course-

1

through the county of Larimer and s'tato of Coloraia, the desecriptiom
of wilch more fully appears in those certrin proceedings then pend-~
ing in theo disiriet court of Larimer county, vierein, on the eleventn
day of ApTil, 1882,' a decree of mriority of gprropriation was
rendered in favor of szld cenel for irrigation purpeses, ond re'rcroncn
to rleh is hero made, soid canal boing .usedq‘_‘or botkx tie direct

irrigatior of lands lying therounder, and for o inlot or supnly ditch

PRVRCIN

tc tho rezervolrs of =nld company hereinbefore rientlonoedl and doseribeds




&
that the waters, water rights and apprcvprj.aticanso divorted ami
stored are to bo used and distributed for r_ior-lestic purposes ilor
irrigation and other bLeneficinl uses, both directly fronm said ditel,.
and indiroctly throuyl: and by means ol storage In said reasorveir to
and upox the lands belonging to stla compeny, anl to other lands lying
under sald systeﬁ under and by virtus of proper and lawful :contr_ac'ts
of sale or leass and under proper regulations for the use thereol,

Ve

That the amount of tlio cepital stoci: of our sald compay is

" one hundred end rifty thousand (§150000) dollers, and shall bo divided

into three tliousand (3030) shares of the par ralue of Tifty dellars
(§50) for each szHare.
vI.

The term of existence of our sald compor.. shall be twenty
(20) years, with power therenfter to extend tho lerm of e:r:is‘cencé- in:
rém end mmrer as{provided by the laws of the stato of Colorado.-

VIL.

That the ai‘f_airs and management of our sald corpeany shall. be
conirolled by a board of directors concistirg of five persons, and the
names of the Loard of direct.ora who shall maonape the affalrs of the saic{
company for the first year of its existence, and wctil the Cirst Morday’
in February, 1902, and uwrtil their succesnors are July elected and
qualified are H. C. Andrews, Burton D.Sanborn, G'eorge M.Houston,

E3dwin 5.Pinroeoy and Raymond F.Walter. ‘
VIII,

The priasipel ofrlce and place of Lusiness of our sald cowme
p-ny £hall he gt Greeley, Veld zounty, Colorado. The company may also
have ac-doc:u;)y en of"ice et the ciiy of Ft.Colilns, Larimer county,
Coleorede, and the princinal busineas ef our said compos :111a1'1 be

carried on in tle nsouwntles of Larimer and Weld, il the state of Celow

redo, where the canals,reservolrs emd principal p‘:.I"b ol tho propertiy’



orf our company is loczted.
IX.
The board oI directors ol said compeny shell have power to

a

ma¥e svch prudential by-laws as it may decm pToper for lhe iranngement
of the affairs of said company, not incozsistent writh the laws of
tke state of Coloralo, for the purposes of carrying on the branches

of busiress of szid company as above set forth.

I¥ WITNESS THIRECF we have hereunto set our hands znd seals

tkis thirts-rirst dey ofg LD.,IGOj/

In presezce of

State of Colorale) -
: 55

Comty o Weld. )

A R 3 notery public in

and for said cowmty, il the stato aforesaid, do Zereby cortify that.
Burtern D.Sanborn, George !LLEoustorn end Henry C.Luther, of Greeley,Weld
coxmty,Coleorade, who are personnlly kmowm to me to be the persons
Wlicse names &re subscerlibed to tho within and foregoing cexrtificate of .

incorporation; ap-eared before me this day in person, and ackrnowledped

that they sigred, sealed and delivered iho said instrument of writing

as thelr free azdvolunmtary cet, for the uses and purpossc thereln set
i‘ortl.:. : ' . /Z/

I further Cc"'t.lfj ..__Lt v cormission expiros. ?’{W'gﬁ"/ﬁdﬁ/
Aty I V I M -under my hend and ﬁ)‘éﬂﬁ&/ﬂﬂo‘u o his 1nirt -

/ﬁ;zf néﬂ

HMotery publiec. i Tor tiho cewnty of Weld and stabde
alorado.
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STATE OF COLORADO, )

COUNTY OF LARIMER. )

J SSD

I, BLAIHB HgMMOND do hershy’ cer%i¢y thst

I am Gonnty Assesssr qf the county of Larimar‘and state

of COLorado, aad’that’%ha Horth Poudre Irriéation Com-
. peny is & mutual,&itph compeny owning o syst .

cenals. end reservoirs used for the purpose of'deliv%

. e

2 .._..‘.‘

zing

water to its stockhgiéers, snd 80 far as I am informed”

is engagad in no. other business whatsoever;.

-

the Horth Poudre Irrigation Company does not an taxas\

on any of 1its aitch and reservolr nroperty.

hand snd effixed ths ssal of my office.

s 0o |

IN WITHESS WHERZOF I have hereunto set my
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CERTIFICATE OF AMNENDMYENT S
to
CRRTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
of
THE NORTE POUDRE IRRIGATION COMPANY.

fﬁ 1s hereby certlfied by The FHorth Poudre Irrigaﬁion Company,
& corporetion duly organiéeﬁ under the laws of the State of Coloradoe,
and by Burton D. Sénborn, ite President; that the certifleate of incor-
poration of pald Company héretofcre filea in the cffice of the Secre-
tary of State of the State of Colcrado, on the - ;ﬁo/L-‘““ dey of

Auguet 1901 has been duly amended as followa‘
1st. Article V of smid certificate of incorporaticn hss been
amended so that the same shall read: .
‘ “Thet the smount ﬁf the capital stock of our zajid Cempany shell
be Four Fundred Thoussnd Dollars ($400,000), which shall be divided _
into Eight thousand shares of the par value of Fifty Dollers (&50,00)
for each share.®

Znd. Article II of eaid certificate of incorporation has been
smended by &dﬂing thﬁreto another sub-paragreph nvubered (G),
reading as rollows.

“{G) To acquirs and beoome the owner, of, by grant, purchaaa;
lease or otherwise, the land embraced in the site of whﬁ; iz commonly
¥known as Foesil Cresk reservoir besin, in TLarimer County, Colerado,
being a part of tha fellcging daﬁcribed government subdivisions, yiz.w
Sacﬁions 8ixteen (16) and Seventeén (17) the South Emat quartsr and
the Bast half of the South Test quarter of Section ¥ine (9), the
douth VWest quarter o% Section Ton (I0), and the West half of Section
Fifteen (15),- all in Township Six (6) Forth, of Range Sixty Eight
(68) Went of the Sixth Principal Meridian; also to develop said baain,



having an ertimated acreage at high water mark of 705.3 ascres snd a
cubleal capacity for helding 490,000,000 cubic feet of water, by the
construction of dams, embanknmﬁts, outlet delivery gates, waste ways,
and outlet’ and inlet ditchems, so that the same shall be rendered a
complete and perfected irrigation reservolr; also to acquirs the
rights of way for and to construct necessary outlet and inlgt ditches;
to 11l e=id reservolr and to refill the same from time to time ine
deflnitely throughout the porporate life of this corporatien; from
the water ofharwise useppropriated from Fosail Creek and from the
Cache la Poudre River; also to sppreopriate by means of sald reservoir
end ite outlet and inlet ditches, all unappropriated waters, both from
Fossil Creek and from the Cache la Poudre River, in Irrigstion Dis-
triet ¥o. 3, for the purposes aforesaid; also to conduct water

stored in pald reservoir from time to time by the nearest practical
route to the Cache la Poudrs, andjto dispose of sald weter for irri-
gation purpeses to those desiring to use the game, and to recelve in

exchange thersfor the equiEvalent amount of water to be dsliversd at

‘the headgete of the Forth Poudre ditch of this Company, to £ill its

cther reservolrs, sand by means thereof to supplement the water -supply
of the remaining reservoir system of this Company; =&lso %0 have
power to contract fof the delivsry‘or sald water for other considera=
tione to irrigstion weter consumers who may desire to utilize the
Bame; also_io have 211 iﬂciﬁantal rowers reasonabiy necessary and
essential to own, use, operste and maintain sald Possil Creek resare
volr, either with or 1ndepcndaﬁ;ly of the other ;eéervoirs ¢ thils
corporation,® .

It is further certified thaf paid amendments have been made and
effected as the result of the following facts: e

lst. At a meeting of the Board of Dirsctors of said corporatiéﬁ;‘
duly held at the office of the Ccﬁpany in the City of Greelsy, Weld
County, Colcorado, on Wednesday the 23rd day of October, 190I, pursuant -
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to due notice given to each and every director, at which meeting four
directors were present, and to the actlon mﬁereof the fifth dlrector,
Farry E. O'Neill, subsequently gave Lis written assent, a resclution
was proposed and unanimously adopted, recommending and submitting
paid proposed amendments to a speclal meeting of the stockholders of
said corporstion then and there called to meet on Tuesday the 24th
day of December, 190I, at the hour of two o’cleck P, ¥, of szid day,
at the office of said Company in the City of Greelsy, Weld County,
"Colorado, for submission separately to & vote of said stockholders,
and at said meeting of sald Board of Directors the Secretary was in-
structsd to notify all stockhelders of said proposed amendments and
of the calling of sald sﬁecial stockhalders meeting, and the place,
data.and hour theresof.

ond. .In strict conformity with the statute in that behalf, the
Secretéry of the Company mailed a notice tec each and every stockholdar
of szld Company at his postoffice address, which notice included &
copy of sald proposed amendments and a statement thet the peme would
e separately voted on at sald Speclal Stocgholdera Yeeting, the date,
place and hour whereof wae in said notice specified. Said notlcesn
were mailed by the Secrstary of sald Company, as shown by his records,
énd in fact, thirty days and more next pteceding said Speclsl Stock-
helders Meeting. A 1like notice of said Special Stockholders
¥eeting, including a yerbatim copy of said ﬁroposed amendments, was
duly published in The Gresley Tribune, a newspaper of general circulaeh
tion published in Graele&, Weld County, Colorado, for ten days and
more pnext preceding sald 24th day of December, 190I, which fact 1s shown
by the publisher's affidavit of publication on file in the office of

the Secretary of szald Campany and attached to the minutes thereof,

3rd. BSpecial Stockholders Meeting of sald Company was duly con-
vened and orgeanized at tha hour br two o%clock P. M. con Tueeday ths

24th day of Decembar, 190I, at the office of said Company in Greeley,



wd-

Weld County, Colorado, being at the place, day and hour specifled
in saild call of the Board of Directors and in said melled and published
notlces given aa &ahove. At saild Special Stockholders Meeting, at

which there wers present in person and b& proxy 52()2.§/ sheres

of the stock of said Company, being more than two-thirds of all the
stock thereof then issued, subscribed and in good faith cutstanding,
gaid proposed amendmenis were severelly duly submitted to be voted
on by said stockholders, i

At paid Special Stockholéers Meeting, as shown by the minutes
thereof and in fact, the vote cast in faver of said first amendment,
viz: sald amendment to article V, was _Z 0X 4/ __ shares, and the

vote cast againset sald esmendment was — . Zrp — shares, The vote

in fevor of the adopticn of asid first amendment constitutes more
than two-thirds of 811 the stock of sald corﬁoration then and now
issued, subscribed and in good faith outatanding. Upon saild vote
_the Chairman of geld meeting, being the Prasidﬁnt of said Company,
announced said first amendment duly adepted. '
At. said Special Stockﬁnldara Yeeting, as show; by the minutes
thereof &nd in fact, the vote cast in favor of sald second awmendment,
viz: said amendment to Article XTI, was 20,’5’_5_’;____. shares, and the
vote cast against sedd amendment was __ te . shares. The vote
in favor of the mdoption of seid second amendmenf constitutes more
than two-thirds of &1l the stock of sald corporation then and now
issued, substribed and -in good faith ocutstanding. Upcn said vote
the Chalrman of sald meeting, b;_ing the President of sald Compahy,

announced said second amendment duly adopted.

IN¥ WITNESS WHEREOF, saild The ¥orth Poudre Irrigation Company

has caused 1ts corporate name to be hereunto subscribed, by its
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President, and ite corporate seal affixed attested by 1lts Secretary,
and paid Burton D. Sanborn has also heresunto subscriked his name,

this 26th day of December, A. D.; 1901, in triplicate.

THE N POUDHE IRRIGATION COMPANY,

4§¢¢héi7;;&§72;gagz223;* President.
é;%;25¢agz;igzéigéaw«é%rvhvﬂ;_/

Fresicent of The North Foudre
Irrigation Company.

Secretery.,

s'rm c-p gpi.omo )
a8,
County or weld. )

R “;. Burton D. Sanborn, being Ffirst duly
aworn, ¢o oath deposgs and says} I am Presicdent of The North Poudre
.Irrigaiion Company, & corperaiicn organized pursusnt to the lawse of the
.State of Colorado. I have read the certificate of sx)endments to
the certificate of incorporastion of saild The North Poudrs Irrigaticn
Company annexed hereto, and well know the contents thereof, Al
and singular_the-allbgations,'matteru and -facts in sald certificate
set forth are true of my own Imowledge.

l,;_‘ . ' (:;QEZaZQQQZ.Cﬁz7éz¢4A¢;“r7t“/

.\‘

Subscrlhﬁd hna wworn to before me this

26£h qay ot December. A Do, 1901,

,-ﬂ., -,-q-... . P -ur. a--—-—- -

I fu;%hcn Q&?tify my ¥o

ial Commission explres

L

Hctary

-
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state of Colorsdo, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I am the Bresi-

. duly organized and existing under the lawa of the Stats: -

- of Celorado, which ﬁgs heretofore f£iled its original i
}‘kﬁxﬁicles of‘inoorpgration and certain Amendkenta thereto g

a8 provided by lew.

4 \../\,L
AMENDMERNTZ
W

ORIGINAL ARPICLES OF INCORPORAPION

- of—

THE NORTH POUDRE IRRIGATICH COMPANY ' - S
v s ) ) Qe e

I. L. C. HBORE, of the County of Larimer and

dont of THE ¥ORTH POUDEE IRRIGATION COMPANY, & corporation,

I DO FURTHER CERTIFY that in the call for the
Ragnlar Annnal Maetins of the Stockholdsrs of said TEE

HOBTH POUDRg IRRIGATION COMPAHY hald yursuant to the )

. Stockholders of gald THE HORTH POUDRE IHRIGAEIOE COHEAHY
B @ proposal to amend A:ticla 51?& fﬁ) of the Articlss . S FueTy

A:ticles of Incorporation and By-laws of gaid- Company on’
the Eth dey of Fahrnary, A. D. 1512, notice was givan
that at said meeting there would be submitted to the T : K

ST oaers M B 7 -.,‘ oL T - RN .-‘“)-_p?. - eT T 4. '--- "'-hl;“\‘-:.gr'ﬂg

b R
LS 5

of Incorporation by incrﬁaaing the ocapital stocl of said
Company from elght thousend (8000) aharea, of the par [_ .;‘— :1 ;

value of fifty {($50. 00) dollars per shere, to ten thoussnd . ;i- -
(10000) shares, of the par value of firty ($50.00) dol- 3

G
B
PR N

lars per share, esnd that, as required by the By-laws of
L 1”



Firticle 5. That the amount of the capital
;.. stock of our sald: Cowpany shall bte five bhundred
thousand ($500,000. Og? dollars, which shall be
~.dlvided intp ten thousand: {10,000} shares of the -
. par value o:t fifty ($50 00} dollars for each share.®

. 2nd.- That the President be, and he :Ls,
R ~: .- hereby directed to0 :cause a,gertificate of said .. .
T amendment, signed by him, verified by his affi-

: 4 . davit and atbeeted by the Seoretary,. with the .
o . seal of the- corporation thereunto affixed, to . - .
R . .be £1led for record .in the; office of the Secro : Coe,
T tary of State, and a 1lik¥e- certificste to be
e . £iled in the office of the recorder of sach County
wherein the oz'iginal Ar‘ticles oi’ Incorporation C
ars filed.™ = | . . .. - s -y

I DO ‘«"URTEER CEBTIFY tha.t the vote om said T8=

Boin‘tion wes taken by hallot enc't that the tofal num‘nar : é
of *m‘tes ‘cast on said "ballot vra.s seven thousand 'two Tun- B
‘ . _ dred fifty—aix and si%¥ tenths {‘7.256.6}; that the total

o _ npmber of vo‘tea cq.s"_'ij_‘_in :fa.vor of .the adoption of the re-- .

- Bol’zrt:ion wap five, 'bhousancl four hundred ninpty-one:. anﬂ. s . TR
i tonths.{5,491.6); that. the botal mumber of vobes, cas't
a,gainst “the: adoption; of eaid mgolution was one thousan&t . -
geyan- hunﬂ:aa. slxty- _;C;Lva Il,vssl 'that said, va‘t& wae duly
&nnoxmced hy th& telle:ca appuj:nte& to canvaasa tha aamer= = ~“ :
an.d-othat no objeotiou or e:rcap‘tion was taken there‘to‘ a:mi

-_ that i‘h am:earing th&‘t more tha.n Wo-third.s of all s‘hock ;:

i o .
" ‘of the corporation au‘bscri‘bed' and 111 good. :Ea.ith ontstandi.ng
~!"r‘ Vo, " ‘-Q-f- - "
was voted for ‘.:he a:loption of aaid resolution, ‘th& aaic!
Voo teoaaTy e .

. resol‘u.tion was duly 5.6'0’1818-5. :a&optad 'by ‘bha Presid.ent. A

-to‘s

‘\)" -

e @ e o i .'4'.' 3
N - l - -i‘ ,-s..;... R .'..4.- v ". +

e LDO mm CERTIFY fhat st s B.egu&ar Anm&l L
L{eeting ot the Stookhcl&a;s of 'rhe Torth I’i:rmlra Irrigation o
Company, beld on tHar 5;-111':'1@ % Bpbruszy, .A,.h P 1913, due’ i

?----- "..'\ Cu

notice having been givan -in thc:c;-cz;ll of said Ann‘n.al Yseting

e
xn.-|

.. A T
+hat the raaolution pssa&@ emanding the kr’ciclaa of Incor-

pora‘t_:ion as a:forasaid.. 'no'a.la be s aubject mattar for dis-

_u.% s

‘“'_.—lr;....-:.-.--_--. o
t
£ e



cuesion, snd reconsideration if desired, and on resolution
dquly offered im that bébalf and by vote taken by ballot,
the said resolution.smending the Articles of Incorporation

25 hereinabove set fnrth waes unanimously reaffirmed.

I¥ TESTIMONY WEEREQCFR, I, 1. C. Moore, President
of TEE NORTH POUDRE IRRIGATIOH COHPANY, pursuant to the

’5_ vided, have hereunto .set my hand, a3 Preasident of said

Corporation, and ceuaed the seal of s&id corporation to

be hereunto affixed, attested by the Secretary thereof,

S 4. D, 1913.

THE NORTE POUDRE IRRIGATION COMPANY

By @M e e Y *-—'/
Freaident.

Secrefary.

lews of the State of.Colorade in this behelf made and pro- -

]
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'
1
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STATE OF COLORADC )
COUNTY OF LARTMER )

ok L. C. MOORE, eppearing beroremw

2 Hotary Public in and for =aid County, in the State afors-
gald, and being first duly sworm, deposes and says:

= - Phat he has read =and well lnows all of the
facts, statements and metters and things in the foregoing
Certificate of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation
‘ of The Horth Poudre Irrigation Company contained, smd that
o all of the facta, statementa, matters and things therein

contalned are true of his own knowledge.

Subsoribed and sworn to tefore me
this [E* day of JPCrsct S, A, D. 1913,
._;'.:Hg-mmission expires @/m s/ /érlglﬁl-
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CYRTIFICATE OF RENEWAL OF THE
IHCORPORATION OF
THE NORTHE PCUDRE IRRIGATIOHN COMPANY

THr UNDIRSISNED, who are respectively President sand
Secretary of the NORTH POUDIE IRRIGLTICH COMPANY, do here-
by certify:

That 8 specisl meeting of the stockholders of the
North Poudre Irrligetion Company was duly called to meet at
Fort Collins, Colorade, on the &th day of Pebruary, 1922,
by stockbolders of ssid company representing more than 10%
of the capitsl stock thereof.

That the call for said meeting and notice thereof,
was duly published for twoe successive weeks .prior to ssid
meeting 1n the "Wellington Sun™, the newspaper published
ngarest to the place where the principsl operations of
8ald company are carried . on and that notice of said meet-
ing was duly given by mail more then 30 days prior 1o
the date of said meeting to esch stockholder, said notices
88 published and mailed, stating thet gaid meeting was
sslled to convene at Fort Collins on the 6th dey of Feb~
ruary, 1922, for the purpose of passing upon the guestion
as to wnether or not the articles o¢f incorporation of ths
North Poudre Irrigation Corpeny shouwld be renewed.

We do further certify that on the 6th day of Feh~
ruary, &% the hour of 10 o’clock A.M., a Speciel meeting
of the stockholders was held at Fort Collins, Colorado,
for ssid purpose snd that there were present at sald meet-
ing, in person or by vroxy, 6528.8 shares, the same being
more then 2 majority of the cepitsl stock of sald company,
-issned snd ontstanding, snd more than a majority of the
totel capitslization of said company.

We do further certify that et said mesting the fol-
lowing resolution was duly passed and sdopted by unani-
mous vote, towit: .

RESOLUTION OF THE STOCKHOLDERS
OF THX NORTH POUDRE IRRIGATION COMPANY

WHEREAS, the corporate existence of the North
Poudre Irrigation Company has expired by, limitation,
snd,

WHEREAS, &8 specisl meeting of the stockholders
of said company has been called ty the holders of more
than 10¢ of the entlre capital stock of gsid cowmpany,
23 well ss by resolution of the la=zt Bosrd of Directors
of said Compeny to meét ai Fort Collins on the 6th day
of Feby, 1922, for the purpose of considering the
guestion a8 to whether or not the corporate existencs
of said company rhaell be extended for an addi ticpal
period of 20 yesrs, and

1,
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WEEREAS, said mesting has been 4
at Baid time ang plece, and it has been afcertained

HOW, YHKREFORK BK IT FESOLVED by the Btoakholders
of the North Poudre Irrigation Company that the term
of existence of saig company shall be and tha same

18 herseby extended for an additionsl Pericd of 20
yeers.

and in the office of the Count
of Lacimer Counnty, Colorado.

And the undersigned, pursunant to said resolution 8o
passed and adopted, do herehy certify to the facts here
inabove stated and that the corporatas 1life of said the
Noxrth Foudre Irrigation Company, has by proper action
of its 8tookholders, at 3pecial meeting duly called for
that purpose, been ang the same ig hereby extended for

80 additional period of 20 years, ahd the articles of
incorporation Tenewsd,

IN WITnNESs WHEREOF the unﬁerﬂ;gned, J.F.Vandewark,

-M.Newell, as Seoretary, havs hereun-~
. 10 88t their hands ang ceused to be affixed hereto the
carporate sesl of anig corporation, thism

Lo e ocrar J

Cy Prealdent i ¥

Y

Jedretary
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The undearaigued,. who aye respeotively President ond
Sesretary of The Ferth.Povdre Irrzigation Company, & ditsh come
pany orgenised mpd sxisting under the laws of the mt@ of
Celorads, do heraby sertifys

1, That & speeizl meeting of the stoskholders of
The North Poudre Irrigation Compsny w3 duly ¢slled to meed
at Fort Collinsz, Colorsdo, on the R6th dsy of Oatebsy, 4. Do
1938.

2, Thet the call for seid meeting =md notise there-
of %s'duly publizhed for two s’uocgsqiva woeks price to gaid
Beoging, in the ¥ort Collins Lemder, a weekly newspaper printed
and‘publiahsd in the City o:" Fori Colling, Lerimer Gountyy
" Btate of Colorade, being the newspaper published nezrest tn the
plage whare the.é?in@ipal operations of the company ere @wﬁ,e&
em, tnd that notise of zaid meebing wus dui‘y givea_l:-ry mall
oF deﬁ%@ws.wr@ ‘ben thirty days prior te the dets of said
ting, to each steekhalder, sald notices gs'mrélisbed, eailed
and delivered stating that said meeting wag called to Gomveno
a2t ths Munieipal Couys Reom in the City Hall in the Gi%y ef
Fort Collins, Larimer County, Colorade, 2% tbe hour of 10 cleleal
A, He on szid dey, for %hs purpess of passing upon 4he m@%im-

83 to whether or not Artiels VI of the certifica%e of ingorpora~
..Iwig&ticn Company should be &

%ion of Ths Horth ¥

po that said Artiche ¥esheil roed as followne




I=x.

Our s2id compeny shall have porpstusl existence.

. That on the 28¢th day of Ootober, A, D, 1888, at
the hour of 10 ofcloeck A. H,, a special meeting of the stook-
holders of The Horth Poudre Irrigation Company was held: at
the Munieipal Court Room in the City Hall, in the City of
Fort Collins, Lerimer County, Colorado, rof the purposs absve
deseribed, and that there were yresent at sald seeting, in -
person or by proxy, 65;76.531 ahsres; the samé being

.moro than & majority of the oapital stock of sald dompany

ismued and ‘outstending, and more than & mejority of the tofal
capitalization of said cospany.

4o That aé 2aid meeting the following resolution
wag duly pzassed and adopted by unanimons vota, to-wits

BBEBOQLYZITILR

WHEREAB, by the terms of 1tz articlos of ingorpera~
tion- and various emendments therato, ths co rate 1ife of -
Ths North Poudre Irrigation Company will, 088 renoued,
expire on, to-wit, the first day of Amguat, 1841) and

: WHEREAS, tnder the laws of the State of Colerade
now existing, the stsskholders of this corporation may, by
apprepriate aotlon, provide that the sorporation 2ay have
porpetpel)l oxistense) and .

WHEREAS, the eorporate activities of ths company
require thet the compeny hamve perpetual existences

¥OW, THEREPORE, BE IT RESOLVED by tho stockholders
of The Horth Poudre Irrigation Companys

1. That Article VI of the gertificate of incorporae

tion of The Forth Poudre Irrigation Company be emended 2o thas
saild Article VI shall read op followas

¥I.
Our ssid company ghall have perpetuel existenss.
2. That the Prepident.amd EBeoretary of this poEpEny

shall, under tho corporate seal of sazid company, certify the
fact of saild smemdment, and shall make 25 many certificates as

2.
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may be necessary, #0 as to file one in the office of the
Reoorder of Deeds in each county where the company may do busi-
ness, and one in the offlce of the Bocretary of Btate of the
Btate of Colorado.

5. That the President, Beoretary and other proper

.officers of this corporstion be znd they are hereby authorined

and directed to do all things regulizite or proper for the pur-
pose of effactusting the proviszions of this resolution.

B, That the undersigned, pursuant to said resolu~
tion so presented and adopted, do hereby certify to the faots
kereinabove atated, and that Artisle VI of the cortificate
of incorporation of The Horth Poudres Irrigation Company has
been omended so thag said Article VI now reads as followss
. -

Our said company shall have perpetual existence.

-

I¥ WITHNE3B WHEREOF, the undersigned, E. F. Munroce,
as Presi{dent, end Btella M. Wewell, as Becretary, have hereunto
get their handg and caussd to be affixed hersto the corporate

]

seal of said corporaticen, this,ZéE? day of _Celalor

N .

Pregident,

Beeretary,

8.

S
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AMENDMENT
TO .
ORIGINAL ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
THE NORTH POUDREOI.ERIGATION COMPANTY

I, Harlan Seaworth, of the County of Larimer and State of Colorado, do
hereby certify that I am the President ofv The North Poudre Irrigation Company,

a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado,
which has heretofore filed Its original Articles of Incorporation and certain
Amendments thereto as provided by law.

I do further certify that in the call for the regular annual meeting of the
stockholders of said The North Poudre Irrigation Company, held pursuant to the
Articles of Incc;rporation and By-Laws of said Company on Februaxy 7, 1966,
notice was given that at said meeting there would be submitted to the stockholders
of sald The North Paudre Irrigation Compary the proposal to amend a part of
Article II of the Articles of Incorporation granting the right of sald corporation to
borrow money from the United States of America under its Small Reclamation
Projects Act of 1956 as Amended for the improvement of the Company’s system;
and that as required by the By-Laws of said Company and the Statutes of the State,
.-sa.id notice of said regular annual :.‘necting was published not less than ten days
previous thereto in the Fort Collins Coloradoan, a newspaper publizhed in the
City of Fort Collins, which is the City next closest to the principal office of nald
Company, and by delivering personally and depositing in the post office thirty (30)
days before such meeting said nt;)tice pro_pc.rly addressed to each stockholder, signed
by the President and Secretary, stating the time, place and, Inter alia, as one _o;E
the objects of said meeting the proposed amcndrr;.ent to said Articles of Incorporation

hereinabove referred to,
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I do further certify that at the regular annual meeting of the stockholders
of sald The North Poudre Irrigntion Company, held on the 7th day of February,
1966, out of the 10,000 shares comprising the stock of said Company there was
represented In person and by proxy 7, 354, 95,

I do further certify that at said regular annual meeting of the stockholders
of said The North Poudre Irrigation Company so held on the 7th day of February,
1966, and pursuant to the call therefor, and notice thereof, the following Resolution
was presented and duly adopted as follows, to-wit:

"BE IT RESOLVED by the stockholders of North Poudre

Irrigation Company at zaid company's regular annual meeting

held in the company office at Wellingten, Colorado, on Mondzy,

February 7, 1966, aa follows:

That Article II{f) be amended to include, among other

powers, the right to borrow money from The United States of

Amerlea under its Small Reclamation Projects Act of 1956

28 amended, for the improvement of the company's system.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the President be and

he iz hereby directed to cause a certificate of said amendment

slgned by him, verified by hiz affidavit, and attested by the

secretary, with the seal of the company thereunto affixed, to

be filed for record in the office of the Secretary of State, and

a Hke certificate to be flled in the office of the Recorder of

each County wherein the original Articles of Incorporation are

ﬁled "

Ido further certify that the vote on sald resolution was taken by ballot
and that the total number of votes cast on said ballots was T, 354. 95 shares and
that 211 of the total of said votes were cast in favor of the adé;‘:tion of the Resolution;
that said vote wag duly announced hy the tellers-appointed to canvass the same and

that no objection or exception was taken thereto; and that it appearing that more

than two~thirda of all stock of the Corperation subscribed and In good falth outsanding

was voted for the adoption of said Resclution, the said Resolutlon was duly declared

adopted by the Presldent.



IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I, Harlan Seaworth, President of The
North Poudre Irrigation Company, pursuant to the laws of the State of Colorada
in this behalf made and provided, have hereunto set my hand, 25 President of
said Corpoeration, and caused the seal of sald Corporation to be hereunto affixed,

w
attested by the Secretary thereof, this ¢~ day of March, A. D, 1966,

THE NOR’I‘H POUDRE IRRIGATION COMPANY

B‘Y /" / e

Prestdent

STATE OF COLORADGC )
) ss.
COUNTY OF LARIMER )
Harlan Seaworth, appearing before William C. Stover, a Notary Public in
and for sald County in the State aforesald, and being first duly sworn, deposes

and saya:

That he has read and well knows all of the facts, . statements and matters

and things in the foregoing Certificate of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation -

of The North Poudre Irrigation Company contained, and that all of the facts, state-

menta, matters and things therein contained are true of his own knowledge,

/% , / i

.."'~ (VR “)

RN fhk‘bﬁcrlbed and aworn to before me this f] = day of March, A. DL 1966
'y U - C: +
: a L y

M‘pcom.rniasion expires July 1, 1967,
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L
CAPITAL STOCK

The Capital stock of said company is, and shall be, Five Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00), which shall be divided into Ten Thousand
(10,000) shares of the par value of Fifty Dollars ($50.00) for each share.

I,
AMENDMENTS TO ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

Any proposed amendment or amendments may be voted upon by the
stockholders at their regular annual meeling; provided, that the published
nolice of such meeting shall have contained information that such amend-
ment, giving the purpose of the same, would be presented and acted upon
at such meeting; or any proposed amendment or amendments may be
voted upon at a meeting of the stockhalders, called by the Board of Direc-
tors, for the purpose of making such amendment, the purpose of such
amendment having been stated in such notice.

Provided, whenever the holder or holders of one-third of the outstand-
ing stock, as shown by the stock book of the Company, shall, in writing
request the President to call a special meeting of the stockholders for the
purpose of considering any proposed amendment or amendments, the
President shall, without delay, call a meeling of the Board of Direciors and
present the same to it, and thereupon the Board shall call a special meeting
of the stockhaolders for the purpose of considering the proposed amend-
ment or amendments lo the articles of incorporation,

A two-thirds vote of all the capital stock subscribed and outstanding
shall be required in favor of an amendment to said articles of incorporation
before the same shall be declared adopted.

I,
STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

The annual meeting of the stockholders shall be held on or about the
first Monday in February of each year al a place in Larimer County selected
by the Board of Directors, and such meeting shalt be called to order be-
lween nine and eleven o'clock A.M,, at the discretion of the Board of
Directors, Reasanable advance written notice shall be given by the Board
as lo time, place and general purpose of the meeting.

The President of the Board of Directors shall call the meeting to order
and appoint a commitiee on credentials, and when it is found by the report
of said committee, or olherwise, the majority of the stock is represented
in person or by proxy, at such meeting or adjourned meeting, the stock-
holders’ meeting shall proceed.

A, QUORUM. A majority of all of the stock of the Company outstand-
Ing must be represented in person or by proxy to constitute a quorum to
transact any business,



B. PROKXIES. Each stockholder shall have the right to appoint, in wiiting,
any person of his or her choice 10 vote for him or her by proxy. Such proxies
must be registered with the Credentials Committee prior to the opening
of the ballot boxes for election of Directors at the stockholders’ meeting.

C. DUTIES OF OFFICERS AND COMMITTEES.

1. The President of the Board of Directors, or in his or her absence,
the Vice-President, shall preside at all stockholders’ meetings;
provided, that if neither is present, the stockholders may elect
a chairperson from among their number,

. The Secretary of the Board of Directors shall acl as Secretary of
all stockholders” meetings and keep all minutes of such meet-
ings; provided, that when he or she is absent the stockholders
may choose a Secretary from among their number for such
meeting.

3. The Credentials Commitiee shall register all members attending
the stockholders” meeling and shall register all proxies. The
Committee shall determine the number of votes to be cast by
each member and proxy holder, and shalt be responsible for
counting the ballots cast for those nominated to the Board of
Directors,

D. ORDER OF BUSINESS. The order of business at the stockholders’
meeling shall be as follows:

1. Meeting called to order by the Chairperson.

2. Appointment of three slockholders of the Company as a Cre-
dentials Committee.

. Registration of proxies with Credentials Committee.

. Report of Credentials Commitlee.

. Annual report.

. Nomination of Directors.

. Opening of polls for election of Directors.

. Old business.

. New Business (must include vole on assessment {or the follow-
ing year).

E. FIXING OF.RECORD DATE. For the purpose of determining share-
holders entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of shareholders or
any adjournment thereof or in order 1o make a determination of share-
holders for any other proper purpose including their qualifications to serve
as director, the stock transfer books shall be closed as of the close of the
last business day at least 15 days prior 1o the meeting, but as near 15 days
as possible. Business day means any day other than a national holiday,
Salurday and Sunday.

N

(Y- =~ RN R o RV I N ]

V.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A, MEMBERSHIP OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. Membership of
the Board of Direclors shall consist of five persons who shall be stockholders,

2

and who shall have his or her home within a radius of 30 miles from the
Town of Wellington and who shall be elected as hereafier provided and
hold office until their successors are elected and qualified. This residency
requirement has been considered by the entire Board and is adopted
because of the desirability of having a Director familiar with the area that
the Company serves and residency in the radius aforementioned should
assure that the person has an acquaintance or will become acquainted
with the area, the geography, the people and the problems of the North
Poudre irrigation Company.

B. ELECTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. The Directors to fill
expiring terms are elected at the annual stockholders’ meeting, Terms are
for three years except when elected to fill a vacancy. Regular terms for two
Direclors expire in February of 1972 and in February of 1973, and the term
for one Director expires in February of 1974.

Each stockholder shall have the right 1o nominate a member for the
Board of Directors, and election shall be by ballot on the nominations
except for an election by unanimous acclamation,

The polls shall be open for at least one hour; each stockholder having
the right to vote in person or by proxy the number of shares owned by him
or her, and may vote said number of shares for as many Directors as are to
be elected, or may accumulate such shares and give to one candidate as
many voles as the number of his or her shares multiplied by the number of
Directors to be elected, or may distribute his or her votes among as many
candidates and in such proportion as he or she may desire,

All baliots shall contain the name of the Director or Directors for whom
the ballot is cast and clearly set forth the number of votes cast for each
Director if the ballot be cast for more than one,

The ballot shall be signed by the person casting same. Once a ballol is
placed in the ballot box, it shall not be withdrawn.

The Credentials Committee shall count and certify the vote. Any ballot
not completed and signed as required in these By-Laws shall be invalid and
shall not be counted.

The person or persons having the highest number of votes for any
vacancy or vacancies, as certified by the Credentials Committee, shall be
declared elected to the Board of Directors for the term being filled.

Any other matter involving the propriety and the authenticily of a
ballot shall be resolved by majority vole of the Credentials Committee
during the count of the ballots and shall be binding on all concerned unless
such determination be arbitrary and capricious.

C. VACANCIES ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. In the event a va-
cancy occurs on the Board of Directors, the remaining members of the
Board shall have the right, at the next regular Board meeting following the
creation of such vacancy, to elect from among the stockholders of the
Company a successor in such office, who shall assume and discharge the
duties of such office until the next ensuing annual stockholders’ meeting,



at which time a successor shall be elecled by the stockholders to fill the
unexpired term, if any, of such Director.

If the Board of Directors shall for any reason be unable 1o agree upon,
or to select a successor to fill such vacancy, they may, in their discretion,
call a special meeling of the stockholders of said Company for the purpose
of making a choice 1o fill such vacancy; or if the Board of Directors has
failed to fill such vacancy, or fails or refuses to call a special meeting of the
stockholders 1o fill such vacancy, on the written request of the stockholders
holding ten per cent (10%) of the shares of said Company, notice by the
President shall be given of a special meeting of the stockholders to be held
for the purpose of efecling a stockhelder to fill the vacancy on the Board of
Directors; such election to be held as at the annual stockholders’ meeling,

D. OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. Al the first regular
meeling of the Board of Directors following the annual meeting of the
stockholders, the Board shalt organize and elect a President and a Vice
President from their number. Such election shall be by ballot, and the
affirmative vote of the majority of the whole Board shall be required for
each election.

When a vacancy shall occur in the office of President or Vice President,
it shall be filled at the regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors
called for that purpose by a vote of a majority of the whole Board. Each
member of the Board shall be nolified of the proposed election.

E. REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. The Board
of Directors shall hold its r--gular meeting on the first Wednesday after the
first Monday of each month, beginning al such hour as may be designated
from time to time,

F. SPECIAL MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. Special

meelings of the Board of Direclors may be called al any time by the Presi-
dent, and shall be called by the President upon request, in writing, of any
two Direclors,

G. QUORUM. At a meeting of the Board of Directors three members
present in person shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

H. POWERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. All corporate powers
shall be and hereby are vested in and shall be exercised by the Board of
Directors, who shall have full control and authority over the Corporation,
and shall have power:

1. To appoinl and remove at pleasure all employees and agents of
the Company, prescribe their duties and fix their compensa-
tion;

2. To call special meetings of the stockholders;

3. To make all rules and regulations for the guidance of the
officers, and for the management of the affairs of the
Corporation;

4. To borrow money on the credit or responsibility of the
Corporation, for the uses, needs and demands of the objectives
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and aims for which the Corporation is organized, as outlined in
its articles of incorporation, hereby conferring on said Board of
Directors, the power to mortgage or pledge all the rights,
properties and franchises of said Corporation;

5. To grant, bargain, sell and convey, in whole or in par, the
lands, franchises, rights and properties of the Corporation,
rendering the entire, full and absolute consideration therefor
to the beneficial uses and needs of the Corporation. Further, to
lease, exchange, transfer, and otherwise dispose of all or any
part of the Corporation’s property and assels:

6. To do all other things necessary to the proper management and
control of the Corporation, including the right to make pur-
chases for and on behall of the Corporation, and, in the name
of the Corporation, to enter and carry on suils at law, and to do
any and all other things not inconsistent with these rules; sub-
ject to the laws of the State of Colorado, which may sexm to
them wise and for the best interests of the Corporation;

7. To make such prudential By-Laws as they shall, from time to
time, deem proper for the management of the Corporation.

V.
OFFCERS AND EMPLOYEES

The elective officers shall be President, Vice President, and the appoin-
tive officers shall be a Secretary, a Treasurer, an attorney, and such super-
intendent or superintendents, manager, or mangers, agents, ditch riders,
keepers, custodians, or other officers as in the discretion of the Board of
Directors may, from time to time, be necessary to appoint and employ,
for the furtherance of the best interests of the corporation, subject to the
limitations of these rules and of the articles of incorporation.

The Board of Directors shall elect the President and Vice President
from their number, who shall hold office for one year, or until their succes-
sors are elected and qualified.

The office of Secretary and the office of Treasurer may be combined at
the option of the Board of Directors.

The Secretary, and all other appointive officers, clerks and employees,
shall hold office during the pleasure of the Board.

The Treasurer shall be such person or institution as in the judgment of
the Board of Directors shall be a person of integrity, worth and responsi-
bility, and unless such Treasurer shall be an institution of known responsi-
bility, subject to the examination of a bank examiner, or like officer, said
Treasurer shall be obligated to furnish 1o the Board of Directors, for the
benefit of this corporation, a good and sufficient bond in the sum of at
least Ten Thousand Dollars in each instance, which bond shall be
executed by a reputable surety company, and the Board of Directors shali

5



pay i PIEium on such bond, as an expense incurred for this Corpor-
ation; provided, if at any time the Board of Directors, on account of the
large amount of money held by such Treasurer for this Corporation, may
deem a bond of such minimum amount insufficient, they may require an
increased band of such amount as may seem best,

The Secretary shall furnish a like bond, concerning which the fore-
going regulations shall also apply.

And, il it seem best 1o the Board of Directors, they may require bonds
from any or all ather officers or employees, for such amounis as they think
best, the premiums on which bonds shall be paid as above provided.

vi.
DUTIES OF OFFICERS

A. PRESIDENT. The duties and powers of the President shall be those
usual to the executive officer of a corporation.

B. VICE PRESIDENT. The duties and powers of the Vice President shall
be the same as those of the President, but they shall be exercised only in
the absence, resignation, death or removal or other inability of the Presi-
dent.

C. SECRETARY. The duties of the Secretary shall be the usual duties of
such an officer in a corporation of this kind and nature, as modified by
these rules.

in case of the absence or inability of the Secretary to discharge the
usual duties of a Secretary at any time or place, the Board of Directors may
appoint a Secretary pro tem, or may supply the vacancy by appointment,

D. TREASURER. The Treasurer shall be the custodian of such money as
from time to time shall be deposited with the Treasurer by the Secretary or
other officers or agents of the Corporation, or by individuals or Corpor-
ations for the account of this Corporation, and shall pay out such money
only on properly drawn orders or checks, countersigned by the President
or Vice President and Secrelary or Treasurer of the Corporation, and shall,
as often as may be required by the Secretary or President, or Board of
Directors, make a written statement of the sums received on behalf of the
Corporation since the Treasurer's last report, the amount paid out on
orders as above provided, and the sum remaining to the credit of the Cor-
poration,

E. OTHER OFFICERS. The duties of the other officers and employees
of the Company shall be as from time 10 lime prescribed by the Board of
Directors.

Vil
COMPENSATION OF OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES

The officers and employees of this company shall receive such salary
and compensation or remuneration for their services as the Board of Direc-
tors, in their discretion, shall from time to time determine,
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Vilt,
ISSUE AND TRANSFER OF STOCK

Certificates of the capital stock of the Corporation shall be numbered
and registered as they are issued. They shall exhibit the holder's name,
post office address or residence when known, and the number of shares,
and shall be signed by the President and countersigned or attested by the
Secretary, and shall bear the corporate seal,

The total number of shares oulstanding shall never exceed the author-
ized capital stock of the Corporation. Guaranteed signatures shall normally
be furnished for the transfer of stock on the books of the Corporation and
shall be furnished whenever North Poudre sa requires. Transfers of stock
may also be made in the presence of the Secretary or President, by the
holder, either in person or by an attorney-in-fact, or by a legal representa.
tive who shall surrender the certificate for cancellation, which certificate
shall be cancelled and a transfer fee as set from time 1o time by the Board
of Directors paid to the Secretary, before a new certificate shall be issued
in lieu thereof. Other transfer requirements shall be as required by the
Board of Directors, The surrendered certificate shall be kept on file in the
Secretary’s office.

The mere possession of a certificate of stock as between the Corpor-
ation and the holder shali not be regarded as vesting any ownership of the
same in any person other than the registered owner until transfer thereof
is made on the books of the Corporation.

Unless waived in writing by the Board for good cause shown, no trans-
fer of stock shall be made or shall be valid, until all assessments against the
same have been fully paid. However, if any portion of the stock is being
reissued without any change in ownership, or reissued to add or delete a
spouse’s name, with the spouse’s approval, and written proof is furnished
as to who is to pay assessments, the assessments as to such stock need to
be paid only if delinquent. Assessments do not have to be paid when any
stockholder creates a voluntary lien against the stock, for example. by
security agreement or deed of trust.

Except for shares now issued which may be transferred as existing, no
certificates of stock shall be issued or transferred in any multiple other than
one-half share, and the owner of the stock according to the records of the
Company shall be liable for all assessments.

On a transfer of stock or preferred water right in Fossil Creek Reservoir
ather than through a regular assignment without the necessity of suppon-
ing documeniation the North Poudre Irrigation Company will charge such
attorney fees and expenses as are necessary to satisfy itself as to the suf-
ficiency of the transfer documents and may also require an indemnity
agreement as a condition of transfer,

Certificates for rights in Fossil Creek Reservoir shall be issued or trans-
ferred only on the basis of one preferred right per certificate, No fractional
cerlificates are allowed.



IX.
STOCK LEDGER

The Secretary shall keep a book called a stock ledger containing the
names of all persons who are or shall have been within one year, stock-
holders in the Corporation, showing their place of residence, as last known,
the number of shares of stock held by them respectively; and the time
when they respectively became the owners thereof; which book shall,
during the usual business hours of the day, be open for inspection of the
stockholders and creditors of the Corporation, and their personal repre-
sentative, al its principal office; and any and every stockholder, creditor or
representative shall have the right to make extracts from said book. The
secretary shal also keep a certificate book and stubs. The stub shall show
how the cerlificate was issued.

Upon written request of a North Poudre stockholder of record, stating
a proper purpose and payment of $25.00, such stockholder shail be en.
titled to a copy of the list of North Poudre stockholders then being used
by the Company. On written request for a list of more recent date by a
stockholder of record, North Poudre will extend the list to more recent
date upon payment in advance of the approximate cost of revising the list.
Any stockholder who uses the list and runs for office of director shall be
refunded the amount paid, whether or not elected. Any stockholder re-
questing a list shall state the purpose for which it is to be used, and shall
agree and certify in writing that the list will not be sold or released to any-
one. The Secretary may decline (o furnish the fist if, in the Secretary’s judg-
ment, the Secretary believes the request improper for any reason. Denial

of the list by the Secretary may be appealed in writing to the North Poudre .

Board within thirty days afler the written refusal to furnish same,

X.
VOTING STOCK

The stock shall be considered and treated by the Corporation as per-
sonal property, and any person pledging or mortgaging the same as security
for any debi, shall be considered as holding the same and liable accordingly
as a stockholder.

Every personal representative, legal represenlative, executor, admini-
strator, conservator and guardian shall represent the stock in his or her
hands al all stockholders” meetings, and shall vote the same as a stock-
holder, and shall be liable in the same manner and to the same extent as
the testator, intestate or ward would or should if living or competent to
act; and every person who shall pledge or mortgage his or her stock as
collateral security or as security at all for any debt shall nevertheless be
entitled to vote the same at all slockholders’ meelings while he or she re-
mains the equitable owner and until the legal and equitable title shall have
been forfeited against him or her by foreclosure.

X1,
PAID UP STOCK

The stock of the Corporation shall all be issued as fully paid stock, and
shall not be liable to future calls.

Xih
ASSESSMENTS

When the corporation shall have no income or funds sufficient 10 meet
the necessary expenses of maintenance and repairs of its property, to pay
to its officers, agents and employees, to protect and defend its rights, and
to pay its legal indebledness of whatever nature, an assessment shall be
levied on its paid up stock, pro rata, on all shares, and payable in money.
Except as provided by law, no assessment shall be made unless the ques-
tion of making the same shall have first been submitted to the stockholders
at an annual meeling, or a special meeting called for that purpose and 2
majority of the stockholders, either in person or by proxy, voting thereon,
shall vote in favor of making such assessment,

When such an assessment shall have been duly made, any stockholder
who shall fail, neglect or refuse to pay the same when due and after notice
thereof, shall not be entitled 1o draw or receive any water from the canals
or reservoirs of the Corporation or to receive other benefits of any kind or
nature by reason of his or her ownership in the capital stock of the Corpor-
ation, until assessment is fully paid.

The Board, to reduce administrative expense, may prescribe certain
minimum assessment payments which shall be made in one lump sum by
the date required.

All assessments shall be due and payable as soon as levied, and shall
be delinquent at such time as the Board of Directors shall prescribe, and
shall draw interest from the date they are delinquent until they are paid, at
such rate of interest as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors.

The interest on an unpald assessment is an integral part of the assess-
ment and no stockholder who fails, neglects or refuses to pay the interest
on a past due assessment after notice thereof shall be entitled to draw or
receive any water from the canals or reservoirs of the Corporation or re-
ceive other benefits of any kind or nature by reason of ownership in the
capital stock of the Corporation until the unpaid interest is paid in full,

When assessments are unpaid and interest has accrued thereon any
payment received by North Poudre thereafter shall first be applied to the
payment of delinquent interest and the balance, if any, toward the unpaid
assessment,

When any stockholder shall be in default in the payment of any install-
ment or assessment upon the stock pursuant to the determination and levy
of the Board of Directors for the period of thirty days after personal nolice
thereof, and demand thereof by the Secretary or after a written or printed
notice and demand therefor has been deposited in the post office, properly
addressed 1o the last known post office address of such delinquent stock-
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TS MG Ay Ul LECIULES dt dllY TNEeUNg may order that the share or
shares of stock held by such delinquent stockholder therein be sold by the
President at Public Auction at some certain time and place to be designated
in such order, to the highest bidder for cash; provided, however, that notice
of such sale shall be published in some public newspaper published in
Fort Collins, and provided further that the proceeds of any such sale over
and above the amount due on such share or shares for delinquent assess-
ments, interest, expenses, and reasonable attorney fees incurred or paid
by the company incident to such sale, shali be paid to the delinquent stock-
holder. Each stockholder shall be liable to pay all interest, costs, expenses
and reasonable attorney fees paid or incurred by the company with regard
to efforts to collect any delinquent stock assessments and the interest thereon.

The perpetual lien for assessment provided for by C.R.S. 7-42.104 shall
be prior in right to any ather lien, voluntary or involuntary, and however
created, against the stock assessed.

X,
NOTICE OF ASSESSMENTS

The Secretary shall, as early as possible afler the same is levied, notify
each stockholder of his or her assessment and demand payment thereof.
Notice shall be made by delivery to each stockholder, either personaily or
by deposiling in the post office such written notice and demand, properly
stamped, and addressed to the place last known to be the residence of
such stockholder according to North Poudre records. The stockholder
shall furnish any changes of address 1o North Poudre in writing.

XIV.
AMENDMENTS TO BY-LAWS

These By-Laws may be amended at any meeting of the Board of Direc-
tors by a majority vote of the full Board,
XV.
PARK CREEK

The Park Creek Dam was constructed by the North Poudre Irrigation
Company with an outlet that makes it possible for the Company to deliver
water from Park Creek Dam 1o a supplier of domestic water. The potential
to deliver water from Park Creek Dam for domestic purposes is a valuable
asset of The North Poudre Irrigation Company, and The North Poudre
Irrigation Company intends to receive fair and reasonable compensalion
for the delivery of any water from Park Creek Reservoir for domestic pur-
poses. Any delivery of waler from Park Creek for domestic purposes shall
be only on such terms and conditions as The North Poudre Irrigation Com-
pany approves after taking into consideration the expense of constructing
and paying for the Park Creek Dam. Accordingly, no individual stockholder
or stockholders shall be allowed 10 receive water for domestic purposes
directly from Park Creek Dam or at any paint where delivery is made pos.
sible because of the existence of Park Creek Dam, Nothing in this By-Law
shall prevent the delivery of water for irrigation purposes.

i0

This By-Law is further enacted to protect the Company from any claim
which might be made by the Northern Colorado Water Conservancy Dis-
trict, it being the Company’s present understanding that the Northern
Colorado Water Conservancy District may contend that The North Poudre
lrrigation Company cannot receive water for $1.50 per acre-foot unit if it
supplies water for domestic use. (4-7-71)

XVIL,
APPLICATION FOR A HEADGATE

No applications for a headgate will be accepted unless ten shares of
stock or more are owned and water for said shares is delivered through the
proposed headgate and measuring device. This By-Law does not require
the Company to approve a headgate even if ten shares or more are involved
but shall serve as a general guideline. (7/3/71)

Xvil.,
INDEMNIFICATION

The North Poudre Irrigation Company shall indemnify all present and
future Directors, officers and other employees of the company from liability
incurred by reason of the performance of their official duties on behalf
of the North Poudre Irrigation Company and pay all reasonable fees, costs
and expenses incurred with the authority of such attorney in defending
legal action in which liability by reason of the performance of such official
duties is alleged against such Directors, officers and employees, provided,
however, that if in the judgment of the Board of Directors of the Company
the director, ofiicer, or employee is guilty of willful or wanton misconduct,
willful or wanton neglect of duty, intentional injury, or criminal act, any
of which is essential to such asserted liability, there shall be no such in-
demnity or payment of legal fees, costs or expenses. Any Director served
with any process in any action, suit or proceeding shall immediately notify
the Company and furnish copies of all papers served upon him or her if a
Director claims or may claim that the Company must indemnify him or her
as herein provided. The allegations of any action, suit or proceeding shall
in the first instance determine the Company’s obligation hereunder but
there shall be no liability in the event there is a judgment in the Court having
jurisdiction in which it is determined that there were acts or omissions
which constitute willful or wanton risconduct, willful or wanton neglect
of duties, intentional injury, or a criminal act. (3-6-74)

XVill,

The following shall be a By-Law effective immediately governing defiv-
ery of any water within the North Poudre system, namely, that no water
shall be delivered for replacement water for any land not irrigated through
the North Poudre system of dilches and reservoirs nor shall water from
the North Poudre System be delivered where it can be used for replace-
ment water {or wells not under the North Poudre system,
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This By-Law is necessary to preserve (he rights of the North Poudre
stockholders and 1o preserve the flexibility necessary to make water ex-
changes to keep the total system functioning effectively and to avoid claimed
violation of Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District rules, policies,
or by-laws. (4-3-74)

XIX.

When no water has been delivered through a headgate for a period of
one year or more as disclosed by the Company's records or a report to the
Board of Directors, and the stock records of The North Poudre irrigation
Company and other available information indicate the stock is no longer
owned to provide water to land below the headgate, upon the direction
of the Board of Directors, the Secretary-Manager of The North Poudre
Irrigation Company shall cause the headgate to be Jocked or removed as
the Board may direct. At the end of each irrigation season, the Secretary-
Manager shall advise the Board of Directors of those headgates 10 be locked
or removed. Thereafter, the headgate may be used or replaced only if
there is compliance with the by-laws and rules and regulations of the Com-
pany regarding the installation of a new headgate. (4-9-76)

XX.

The Cache La Poudre Water Users Association has objected to the use
of water outside the Cache La Poudre Basin, citing the City of Boulder v.
the Boulder and Left Hand Ditch Company case, No. 26996, decided De-
cember 13, 1976, 192 Colo. 219, 557 P.2d, 1182 (1976}, by the Colorado
Supreme Court. The Colorado Supreme Court, in this case, again recog-
nized that junior appropriators have rights in return flow 1o the extent that
they may not be injured by a change in the place of use of the irrigation
water which provides that return flow.

The Board of Directors in considering the best interest of The North
Poudre Irrigation Company and the fact it must exchange water with other
users does not wish to cause injury to stockhalders in The Nosth Poudre
Irrigation Campany, nor to other water users in the Cache La Poudre Basin,

The Board of Directors believes and finds that it is in the best interest
of The North Poudre Irrigation Company 1o prohibit the delivery of water
which a stockholder would receive because of ownership of stock in The
Narth Poudre irrigation Company outside of the drainage basin of the
Cache La Poudre River and this by-law hereby prohibils the delivery of any
waler where the use of same would be outside the drainage basin of the
Cache La Poudre River.

This By-Law shall be effective on January 1, 1978, but stockholders of
record as of August 3, 1977 shall have until fanuary 1, 1981, before delivery
to such stockholder under this by-law is prohibited.

XXI.

Rules, regulations, palicies, and forms may be adopted, supplemented,
or amended by the Board of Directors from time o time 10 assist the oper-
ation of the company.,
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I. Capital Stock

The Capital stock of said company is, and shall be, Five Hundred Thousand Dollars,
(5500,000.00), which shall be divided into Ten Thousand (10,000) shares of the par value of
Fifty Dollars ($50.00) for each share.

II. Amendments to Articles of Incorporation

Any proposed amendment or amendments may be voted upon by the stockholders at their
regular annual meeting; provided, that the published notice of such meeting shall have
contained information that such amendment, giving the purpose of the same, would be
presented and acted upon at such meeting; or any proposed amendment or amendments may
be voted upon at a meeting of the stockholders, called by the Board of Directors, for the
purpose of making such amendment, the purpose of such amendment having been state in
such notice.

Provided, whenever the holder or holders of one-third of the outstanding stock, as shown by
the stock book of the Company, shall, in writing request the President to call a special meeting
of the stockholders for the purpose of considering any proposed amendment or amendments,
the President shall, without delay, call a meeting of the Board of Directors and present the
same to it, and thereupon the Board shall call a special meeting of the stockholders for the
purpose of considering the proposed amendment or amendments to the articles of
incorporation.

A two-thirds vote of all the capital stock subscribed and outstanding shall be required in favor
of an amendment to said articles of incorporation before the same shall be declared adopted.

III. Stockholder’s Meeting

The annual meeting of the stockholders shall be held on or about the first Monday in February
of each year at a place in Larimer County selected by the Board of Directors, and such meeting
shall be called to order between eight and eleven o’clock AM, at the discretion of the Board of
Directors. Reasonable advance written notice shall be given by the Board as to time, place and
general purpose of the meeting.

The President of the Board of Directors shall call the meeting in order to appoint a committee
on credentials, and when it is found by the report of said committee, or otherwise, the majority
of the stock is represented in person or by proxy, at such meeting or adjourned meeting, the
stockholders” meeting shall proceed.

I.  Quorum. A majority of all the stock of the Company outstanding must be
represented in person or by proxy to constitute a quorum to transact any



business.

II.  Proxies. Each stockholder shall have the right to appoint, in writing, any person
of his or her choice to vote for him or her by proxy. Such proxies must be
registered with the Credentials Committee prior to the opening of the ballot
boxes for election of Directors at the stockholder’s meeting.

Illl.  Duties of Officers and Committees.

i. The President of the Board of Directors, or in his or her absence, the Vice-
President, shall preside at all stockholders’ meetings; provided, that if
neither is present, the stockholders may elect a chairperson from among
their number.

ii. The Secretary of the Board of Directors shall act as Secretary of all
stockholders’ meetings and keep all minutes of such meetings; provided,
that when he or she is absent the stockholders may choose a Secretary
from among their number such meeting.

iii. The Credentials Committee shall register all members attending the
stockholders’ meeting and shall register all proxies. The Committee shall
determine the number of votes to be cast by each member and proxy
holder, and shall be responsible for counting the ballots cast for those

nominated to the Board of Directors.

IV.  Order of Business. The order of business at the stockholders’ meeting shall be
as follows:

i. Meeting shall be called to order by the President.

ii. Appointment of three stockholders of the Company as a Credentials
Committee.

iii. Registration of proxies with Credentials Committee.
iv. Report of the Credentials Committee
v. Annual report.
vi. Nomination of Directors.
vii. Opening of polls for election of Directors.

viii. Old Business.



ix. New Business (must include vote on assessment for the following year.)
Fixing of Record Date.

For the purpose of determining shareholders entitled to notice of or to vote at
any meeting of shareholders or any adjournment thereof or in order to make a
determination of shareholders for any other proper purpose including their
qualifications to serve as director, the stock transfer books shall be closed as of
the close of the last business day at least 15 days prior to the meeting, but as
near 15 days as possible. Business day means any day other than a national
holiday, Saturday and Sunday.

IV. Board of Directors

Membership of the Board of Directors.

Membership of the Board of Directors shall consist of five persons who shall be
stockholders and who shall have his or her home within a radius of 30 miles from
the Town of Wellington and who shall be elected as hereafter provided and hold
office until their successors are elected and qualified. This residency
requirement has been considered by the entire Board and is adopted because of
the desirability of having a Director familiar with the area that the Company
serves and residency in the radius aforementioned should assure that the person
has an acquaintance or will become acquainted with the area, geography, the
people and problems of the North Poudre Irrigation Company.

Election of the Board of Directors.

The Directors to fill expiring terms are elected at the annual stockholders’
meeting. Terms are for three years except when elected to fill a vacancy.
Regular terms for two Directors expire in February 1972 and in February 1973,
and the term for one Director expires in February of 1974.

Each stockholder shall have the right to nominate a member for the Board of
Directors, and election shall be by ballot on the nominations except for an
election by unanimous acclamation.

The polls shall be open for at least one hour, or until all votes are cast; each
stockholder having the right to vote in person or by proxy the number of shares
owned by him or her, and may vote said number of shares for as many Directors
as are to be elected, or may accumulate such shares and give to one candidate
as many votes as the number of his or her shares multiplied by the number of



the Directors to be elected, or may distribute his or her votes among as many
candidates and in such proportion as he or she may desire.

All ballots shall contain the name of the Director or Directors for whom the
ballot is cast and clearly set forth the number of votes cast for each Director if
the ballot be cast for more than one.

The ballot shall be signed by the person casting same. Once a ballot is placed in
the ballot box, it shall not be withdrawn.

The Credentials Committee shall count and certify the vote. Any ballot not
completed and signed as required in the By-Laws shall be invalid and shall not be
counted.

The person or persons having the highest number of votes for any vacancy or
vacancies, as certified by the Credentials Committee, shall be declared elected to
the Board of Directors for the term being filled.

Any other matter involving the propriety and the authenticity of a ballot shall be
resolved by majority vote of the Credentials Committee during the count of the
ballots and shall be binding on all concerned unless such determination be
arbitrary and capricious.

Vacancies on the Board of Directors.

In the event a vacancy occurs on the Board of Directors, the remaining members
of the Board shall have the right, at the next regular Board meeting following the
creation of such vacancy, to elect from among the stockholders of the Company
a successor in such office, who shall assume and discharge the duties of such
office until the next ensuing annual stockholders’” meeting, at which time a
successor shall be elected by the stockholders to fill the unexpired term, if any,
of such Director.

If the Board of Directors shall for any reason be unable to agree upon, or to
select a successor to fill such vacancy, they may, in their discretion call a special
meeting of the stockholders of said Company for the purpose of making a choice
to fill such vacancy; or if the Board of Directors has failed to fill such vacancy, or
fails or refuse to call a special meeting of the stockholders to fill such vacancy, on
the written request of the stockholders holding ten per cent (10%) of the shares
of said Company, notice by the President shall be given of a special meeting of
the stockholders to be held for the purpose of electing a stockholder to fill the
vacancy on the Board of Directors; such election to be held as at the annual
stockholders’ meeting.



VL.

VII.

VIII.

Officers of the Board of Directors.

At the first regular meeting of the Board of Directors following the annual
meeting of the stockholders, the Board shall organize and elect a President and a
Vice President from their number. Such election shall be by ballot, and the
affirmative vote of the majority of the whole Board shall be required for each
election.

When a vacancy shall occur in the office of President or Vice President, it shall be
filled at the regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors called for the
purpose by a vote of a majority of the whole Board. Each member of the Board
shall be notified of the proposed election.

Regular Meetings of the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors shall hold its regular meeting on the first Wednesday
after the first Monday of each month, beginning at such hour as may be
designated from time to time.

Special Meetings of the Board of Directors.

Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called at any time by the
President, and shall be called by the President upon request, in writing, of any
two directors.

Quorum.

At a meeting of the Board Directors three members present in person shall
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

Powers of the Board of Directors.
All corporate powers shall be and hereby are vested in and shall be exercised by
the Board of Directors, who shall have full control and authority over the

Corporation and shall have power:

i. To appoint and remove at pleasure all employees and agents of the
Company, prescribe their duties and fix their compensation;

ii. To call special meetings of the stockholders;

iii. To make all rules and regulations for the guidance of the officers, and for
the management of the affairs of the Corporation;



iv. To borrow money on the credit or responsibility of the Corporation, for
the uses, needs and demands of the objectives and aims for which the
Corporation is organized, as outlined in its articles of incorporation,
hereby conferring on said Board of Directors, the power to mortgage or
pledge all the rights, properties and franchise of said Corporations;

v. To grant, bargain, sell and convey, in whole or in part, the lands,
franchises, rights and properties of the Corporation, rendering the entire,
full an absolute consideration therefore to the beneficial uses and needs
of the Corporation. Further to lease, exchange, transfer, and otherwise
dispose of all or any part of the Corporation’s property and assets;

vi. To do all other things necessary to the proper management and control
of the Corporation, including the right to make purchases for and on
behalf of the Corporation, to enter and carry on suits at law, and to any
and all other things not inconsistent with these rules; subject to the laws
of the State of Colorado, which may seem to them wise and for the best
interests of the Corporation;

vii. To make such prudential By-Laws as they shall, from time to time, deem
proper for the management of the Corporation.

V. Officers and Employees

The elective officers shall be President, Vice President, and the appointive officers shall be a
Secretary, a Treasurer, an attorney, and such superintendent or superintendents, manager, or
managers, agents, ditch riders, keepers, custodians, or other officers as in the discretion of the
Board of Directors may, from time to time, be necessary to appoint and employ, for the
furtherance of the best interest of the corporation, subject to the limitations of these rules and
of the articles of incorporation.

The Board of Directors shall elect the President and Vice President from their number, who
shall hold office for one year or until their successors are elected and qualified.

The office of Secretary and the office of Treasurer may be combined at the option of the Board
of Directors.

The Secretary, and all other appointive officers, clerks and employees, shall hold office during
the pleasure of the Board.

The Treasurer shall be such person or institution as in the judgment of the Board of Directors
shall be a person of integrity, worth and responsibility, and unless such Treasurer shall be an
institution of known responsibility, subject to the examination of a bank examiner, or like



officer, said Treasurer shall be obligated to furnish to the Board of Directors, for the benefit of
this corporation, a good and sufficient bond in the sum of at least Ten Thousand Dollars in each
instance, which bond shall be executed by a reputable surety company, and the Board of
Directors shall pay the premium on such bond, as an expense incurred for this Corporation;
provided, if at any time the Board of Directors, on account of the large amount of money held
by such Treasurer for this Corporation, may deem a bond of such minimum amount insufficient,
they may require an increased bond of such amount as may seem best.

The Secretary shall furnish a like bond, concerning which the foregoing regulations shall also
apply.

And, if it seems best to the Board of Directors, they may require bonds from any or all other

officers or employees, for such amounts as they think best, the premiums on which bonds shall
be paid as above provided.

VI. Duties of Officers
[ President.

The duties and powers of the President shall be those usual to the executive
officer of a corporation.

Il Vice President.

The duties and powers of the Vice President shall be the same as those of the
President, but they shall be exercised only in the absence, resignation, death or
removal or other inability of the President.

Ill.  Secretary.

The duties of the Secretary shall be the usual duties of such an officer in a
corporation of this kind and nature, as modified by these rules.

In the case of the absence or inability of the Secretary to discharge the usual
duties of a Secretary at any time or place, the Board of Directors may appoint a
Secretary pro tem, or may supply the vacancy by appointment.

V. Treasurer.

The Treasurer shall be the custodian of such money as from time to time shall be
deposited with the Treasurer by the Secretary or other officers or agents of the
Corporation, or by individuals or Corporations for the account of this
Corporation, and shall pay out such money only on properly drawn orders or



checks, countersigned by the President or Vice President and Secretary or
Treasurer of the Corporation, and shall as often as may be required by the
Secretary or President, or Board of Directors, make a written statement of the
sums received on behalf of the Corporation since the Treasurer’s last report, the
amount paid out on orders as above provided, and the sum remaining to the
credit of the Corporation.

V. Other Officers.

The duties of the other officers and employees of the Company shall be as from
time to time prescribed by the Board of Directors.

VII. Compensation of Officers and Employees

The officers and employees of this company shall receive such salary and compensation or
remuneration for their services as the Board of Directors, in their discretion, shall from time to
time determine.

VIII. Issue and Transfer of Stock

Certificates of the capital stock of the Corporation shall be numbered and registered as they are
issued. They shall exhibit the holder’s name, post office address or residence when known, and
the number of shares, and shall be signed by the President and countersigned or attested by
the Secretary, and shall bear the corporate seal.

The total number of shares outstanding shall never exceed the authorized capital stock of the
Corporation. Guaranteed signatures shall normally be furnished for the transfer of stock on the
books of the Corporation and shall be furnished whenever North Poudre so requires. Transfers
of stock may also be made in the presence of the Secretary or President, by the holder, either in
person or by an attorney-in-fact, or by a legal representative who shall surrender the certificate
for cancellation, which certificate shall be cancelled and a transfer fee as set from time to time
by the Board of Directors paid to the Secretary, before a new certificate shall be issued in lieu
thereof. Other transfer requirements shall be as required by the Board of Directors. The
surrendered certificate shall be kept on file in the Secretary’s office.

The mere possession of a certificate of stock as between the Corporation and the holder shall
not be regarded as vesting any ownership of the same in any person other than the registered
owner until transfer thereof is made on the books of the Corporation.

Unless waived in writing by the Board for good cause shown, no transfer of stock shall be made

or shall be valid, until all assessments against the same have been fully paid. However, if any
portion of the stock is being reissued without any change in ownership, or reissued to add or
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delete a spouse’s name, with the spouse’s approval, and written proof is furnished as to who is
to pay assessments, the assessments as to such stock need to be paid only if delinquent.
Assessments do not have to be paid when any stockholder creates a voluntary lien against the
stock, for example, by a security agreement or deed of trust.

Except for shares now issued which may be transferred as existing, no certificates of stock shall
be issued or transferred in any multiple other than one share, and the owner of the stock
according to the records of the Company shall be liable for all assessments.

On a transfer of stock or preferred water right in Fossil Creek Reservoir other than through a
regular assignment without the necessity of supporting documentation the North Poudre
Irrigation Company will charge such attorney fees and expenses as are necessary to satisfy itself
as to the sufficiency of the transfer documents and may also require an indemnity agreement
as a condition of transfer.

Certificates for rights in Fossil Creek Reservoir shall be issued or transferred only on the basis of
one preferred right per certificate. No fractional certificates are allowed.

IX. Stock Ledger

The Secretary shall keep a book called a stock ledger containing the names of all persons who
are or shall have been within one year, stockholders in the Corporation, showing their place of
residence, as last known, the number of shares of stock held by them respectively; and the time
when they respectively became the owners thereof; which book shall, during the usual business
hours of the day, be open for inspection of the stockholders and creditors of the Corporation,
and their personal representative, at its principal office; and any and every stockholder,
creditor or representative shall have the right to make extracts from said book. The secretary
shall also keep a certificate e book and stubs. The stub shall show how the certificate was
issued.

Upon written request of a North Poudre stockholder of record, stating a proper purpose and
payment of $25.00, such stockholder shall be entitled to a copy of the list of North Poudre
stockholders then being used by the Company. On written request for a list of more recent
date by a stockholder of record, North Poudre will extend the list to a more recent date upon
payment in advance of the approximate cost of revising the list. Any stockholder who uses the
list and runs for office of director shall be refunded the amount paid, whether or not elected.
Any stockholder requesting a list shall state the purpose for which it is to be used, and shall
agree and certify in writing that the list will not be sold or released to anyone. The Secretary
may decline to furnish the list if, in the Secretary’s judgment that the request is improper for
any reason. Denial of the list by the Secretary may be appealed in writing to the North Poudre
Board within thirty days after the written refusal to furnish same.

11



X. Voting Stock

The stock shall be considered and treated by the Corporation as personal property, and any
person pledging or mortgaging the same as security for any debt, shall be considered as holding
the same and liable accordingly as a stockholder.

Every personal representative, legal representative, executor, administrator, conservator and
guardian shall represent the stock in his or her hands at all stockholder’s meetings, and shall
vote the same as a stockholder, and shall be liable in the same manner and to the same extent
as the testator, intestate or ward would or should if living or competent to act; and every
person who shall pledge or mortgage his or her stock as collateral security or as security for
any debt shall nevertheless be entitled to vote the same at all stockholders’” meetings while he
or she remains the equitable owner and until the legal and equitable title shall have been
forfeited against him or her by foreclosure.

XI. Paid Up Stock

The stock of the Corporation shall all be issued as fully paid stock, and shall not be liable to
future calls.

XII. Assessments

When the corporation shall have no income or funds sufficient to meet the necessary expenses
of maintenance and repairs of its property, to pay its officers, agents and employees, to protect
and defend its rights, and to pay its legal indebtedness of whatever nature, an assessment shall
be levied on its paid up stock, pro rata, on all shares, and payable in money. Except as provided
by law, no assessment shall be made unless the question of making the same shall have first
been submitted to the stockholders at an annual meeting, or a special meeting called for that
purpose and a majority of the stockholders, either in person or by proxy, voting thereon, shall
vote in favor of making such assessment.

When such an assessment shall have been duly made, any stockholder who shall fail, neglect or
refuse to pay the same when due and after notice thereof, shall not be entitled to draw or
receive any water from the canals or reservoirs of the Corporation or to receive other benefits
of any kind or nature by reason of his or her ownership in the capital stock of the Corporation,
until assessment is fully paid.

The Board to reduce administrative expense may prescribe certain minimum assessment
payments which shall be made in one lump sum by the date required.

All assessments shall be due and payable as soon as levied, and shall be delinquent at such time
as the Board of Directors shall prescribe, and shall draw interest from the date they are
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delinquent until they are paid, at such rate of interest as may be prescribed by the Board of
Directors.

The interest on an unpaid assessment is an integral part of the assessment and no stockholder
who fails, neglects or refuses to pay the interest on a past due assessment after notice thereof
shall be entitled to draw or receive any water from the canals or reservoirs of the Corporation
or receive other benefits of any kind or nature by reason of ownership in the capital stock of
the Corporation until the unpaid interest is paid in full.

When assessments are unpaid and interest has accrued thereon any payment of any
installment or assessment upon the stock pursuant to the determination and levy of the Board
of Directors for the period of thirty days after personal notice thereof, and demand thereof by
the Secretary or after a written or printed notice and demand therefore has been deposited in
the post office, properly addressed to the last known post office address of such delinquent
stockholder, the Board of Directors at any meeting may order that the share or shares of stock
held by such delinquent stockholder therein be sold by the President at Public Auction at some
certain time and place to be designated in such order, to the highest bidder for cash; provided,
however, that notice of such sale shall be published in some public newspaper published in Fort
Collins, and provided further that the proceeds of any such sale over and above the amount
due on such share or shares for delinquent assessments, interest, expenses, and reasonable
attorney fees incurred or paid by the company incident to such sale, shall be paid to the
delinquent stockholder. Each stockholder shall be liable to pay all interest, costs, expenses and
reasonable attorney fees paid or incurred by the company with regard to efforts to collect any
delinquent stock assessments and interest thereon.

The perpetual lien for assessment provided for by CRS 7-42-104 shall be prior to any other lien,
voluntary or involuntary, and however created, against the stock assessed.

XIII. Notice of Assessments

The Secretary shall, as early as possible after the same is levied, notify each stockholder of his
or her assessment and demand payment thereof. Notice shall be made by delivery to each
stockholder, either personally or by depositing in the post office such written notice and
demand, properly stamped, and addressed to the place last known to be the residence of such
stockholder according to North Poudre records. The stockholder shall furnish any changes of
address to North Poudre in writing.

XIV. Amendments to By-Laws

These By-Laws may be amended at any meeting of the Board of Directors by a majority vote of
the full Board.
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XV. Park Creek

The Park Creek Dam was constructed by the North Poudre Irrigation Company with an outlet
that makes it possible for the Company to deliver water from Park Creek Dam to a supplier of
domestic water. The potential to deliver water from Park Creek Dam for domestic purpose is a
valuable asset of The North Poudre Irrigation Company, and The North Poudre Irrigation
Company intends to receive fair and reasonable compensation for the delivery of any water
from Park Creek Reservoir for domestic purposes. Any delivery of water from Park Creek for
domestic purposes shall be only on such terms and conditions as The North Poudre Irrigation
Company approves after taking into consideration the expense of constructing and paying for
Park Creek Dam. Accordingly, no individual stockholder or stockholders shall be allowed to
receive water for domestic purposes directly from Park Creek Dam or at any point where
delivery is made possible because of the existence of Park Creek Dam. Nothing in this By-Law
shall prevent the delivery of water for irrigation purposes.

The By-Law is further enacted to protect the Company from any claim which might be made by
the Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District, it being the Company’s present
understanding that the Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District may contend that The
North Poudre Irrigation Company cannot receive water for $1.50 per acre-foot unit if it supplies
water for domestic use. (4-7-1971)

XVI. Application for a Headgate

No applications for a headgate will be accepted unless ten shares of stock or mare are owned
and water for said shares is delivered through the proposed headgate and measuring device.
This By-Law does not require the Company to approve a headgate even if ten shares or more
are involved but shall serve as a general guideline. (7/3/1971)

XVIIL Indemnification

Each Director, officer, employee or agent of the Company (and his heirs, executors and
administrators) shall be indemnified by the Company against expenses reasonably incurred by
or imposed upon him in connection with or arising out of any action, suit or proceeding in
which he may be involved or to which he may be made a party by reason of his being or having
been a Director, officer, employee or agent of the Company or at its request, of any other
Company of which it is a shareholder or creditor and from which he is not entitled to be
indemnified (whether or not he continues to be a Director or officer at the time of imposing or
incurring such expenses), to the fullest extent permitted by the laws of Colorado, as they exist
or may hereafter be amended, including in circumstances in which indemnification is otherwise
discretionary under Colorado law, in accordance with and subject to the limitations which may
be contained in the bylaws of the Company from time to time in effect. The foregoing right of
indemnification shall not be exclusive of other rights to which he may be entitled under
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applicable law. (2/9/2011)

XVIII. Augmentation Water

The following shall be a By-Law effective immediately governing delivery of any water within
the North Poudre system, namely, that no water shall be delivered for replacement water for
any land not irrigated through the North Poudre system of ditches and reservoirs nor shall
water from the North Poudre System be delivered where it can be used for replacement water
for wells not under the North Poudre system.

This By-Law is necessary to preserve the rights of the North Poudre stockholders and to
preserve the flexibility necessary to make water exchanges to keep the total system functioning
effectively and to avoid claimed violations of Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District
rules, policies, or by-laws. (4/3/1974)

XIX. Abandoned Headgates

When no water has been delivered through a headgate for a period of one year or more as
disclosed by the Company’s records or a report to the Board of Directors, and the stock records
of the North Poudre Irrigation company and other available information indicate the stock is no
longer owned to provide water to land below the headgate, upon the direction of the Board of
Directors, the Secretary/Manager of the North Poudre Irrigation Company shall cause the
headgate to be locked or removed as the Board may direct. At the end of each irrigation
season, the Secretary/Manager shall advise the Board of Directors of those headgates to be
locked or removed. Thereafter, the headgate may be used or replaced only if there is
compliance with the By-Laws, rules and regulations of the Company regarding the installation
of a new headgate. (4/9/1976)

XX. Cachela Poudre Drainage Basin

The Cache la Poudre Water Users Association has objected to the use of water outside the
Cache La Poudre Basin, citing the City of Boulder v. the Boulder and Left Hand Ditch Company
case, No. 26996, decided December 13, 1976, 192 Colo. 219, 519, 557 P. 2d, 1182 (1976), by
the Colorado Supreme Court. The Colorado Supreme Court, in this case, again recognized that
junior appropriators have rights in return flow to the extent that they may not be injured by a
change in the place of use of the irrigation water which provides the return flow.

The Board of Directors in considering the best interest of The North Poudre Irrigation Company
and the fact it must exchange water with other users does not wish to cause injury to
stockholders in The North Poudre Irrigation Company, nor to other water users in the Cache la
Poudre Basin.
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The Board of Directors believes and finds that it is in the best interest of The North Poudre
Irrigation Company to prohibit the delivery of water which a stockholder would receive because
of the ownership of stock in the North Poudre Irrigation Company outside of the drainage basin
of the Cache La Poudre River and this By-Law hereby prohibits the delivery of any water where
the use of same would be outside the drainage basis of the Cache la Poudre River.

This By-Law shall be effective on January 1, 1978, but stockholders of record as of August 3,
1977 shall have until January 1, 1981, before delivery to such stockholder under this By-Law is
prohibited. (8/3/1978)

XXI. Policies, Rules and Regulations

Rules, regulations, policies, and forms may be adopted, supplemented, or amended by the
Board of Directors from time to time to assist the operation of the Company.

XXII.  Change of Water Rights
I.  Application-Review-Standard.

Any stockholder (Applicant) desiring a change of water right as defined in the Water
Right Determination and Administration Act of 1967, Colorado Revised Statutes §37-
92-101 et. seq., including but not limited to, a change in point of diversion, type of
use, or place of use of any water that the Applicant is entitled to receive as a result
of stock ownership must first make a written Application to the directors of the
Company. A change of water right shall also, without limitation, include the use of
water the shareholder is entitled to as a result of stock ownership as augmentation
water in a plan for augmentation or exchange. The request should detail the
requested change and include adequate terms and conditions to prevent injury to
the Company and its shareholders. In evaluating whether the requested change of
water rights can be made without injury to the Company and its shareholders, the
Company may obtain an engineering and legal analysis of the requested change by
the Applicant and the terms and conditions offered by the Applicant.

a. The Applicant shall include a deposit of One Thousand Dollars
(51000.00) payable to the Company which shall be used by the
Company to pay all costs and expenses incurred by the
Company for any initial estimate of reasonable engineering,
expert and attorney fees for the review as contemplated in
Paragraph Four (4). Any part of the One Thousand Dollar
(51000.00) deposit remaining after determination of the initial
estimate, if any, will be applied toward the deposit required in
Paragraph Five (5).
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Il. Timely Review.

The Company shall evaluate the proposed Application for change of water right
within a reasonable amount of time which shall be defined as not less than sixty (60)
days nor more than one hundred fifty (150) days after,

a. A completed Application as described in Paragraph One (1) and
Paragraph Five (5) has been received by the Company and

b. The deposit as described in Paragraph Five (5) has been accepted
by the Company.

Ill. Board Approval Required.

No Application for approval for a change of water right or plan for augmentation as
described above may be made to the District Court for any Water Division, State of
Colorado (Water Court), unless and until the same has been approved or denied by
the Company. If an Application has been approved by the Company, the Applicant
must include terms and conditions at least as stringent as those approved by the
Company in an Application to the District Court for Water Division No. 1, State of
Colorado.

IV.  Applicant pays all costs, fees and expenses.

Any Applicant submitting a proposal for a change of water rights to the Company for
review, evaluation and comment whether approved or not approved by the
Company, must reimburse the Company for all reasonable costs, fees, and expenses,
including a charge for time spent by the Directors and any Company employees in
analyzing the Application to the Company. Said Applicant shall also be responsible
for all legal, engineering and other expert review and analysis of said Application
that may be incurred by the Company. Furthermore, the Applicant shall be
responsible for all costs, fees and expenses incurred by the Company including
reasonable engineering, expert and attorney fees for any filing Water Court,
including opposition. Court expenses and fees shall include but not be limited to
administrative hearings, referee hearings, water court proceedings in Water Division
No. 1 and any appeals therefrom or thereafter.

V. Payment of estimated costs.

Prior to analyzing the proposed change, the Company will make an initial estimate of
all costs, fees and expenses as described in Paragraph 1 (a). The Company shall
make such estimate within forty-five (45) days of an Application by the Applicant to
the Company. The Applicant shall then have thirty (30) days after receipt of the

17



estimate from the Company to make a deposit of estimated expenses which can be
in the form of an interest bearing account in the name of the Company, bond or
other instrument as may be approved by the Company. The Company shall not
commence any action on any Application until, and unless the Applicant makes said
deposit. If the estimate and deposit needs to be adjusted by further payment or
reimbursement, said adjustment shall be made upon the completion of the
evaluation or at any time subsequent thereto. In no event shall the Company be
required to finally approve or disapprove the proposed Application until all such
costs, fees and expenses incurred by the Company are fully reimbursed by the
Applicant. (3/5/2008)
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Water Rights
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2013 and 2012

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost for assets purchased and fair market value for donated assets.
All property and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as shown below,
using the straight-line method.

Life
Ditches and reservoirs 50-100 years
Buildings and improvements 10-40 years
Radio and office equipment 10 years
Machinery and equipment 10 years
Transportation equipment 5-10 years

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. When depreciable assets are disposed of, the
cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss is

reflected in earnings.

Included in construction in progress is $1,710,294 spent to date on a reservoir expansion project.

Deferred Gain on Sale of Property

During 2004, the Company sold the Halligan Reservoir to the City of Fort Coltins, a significant shareholder, and
related party, for approximately $5,200,000. The consideration given included approximately $1,000,000 of
cash and a non-interest bearing note receivable with gross payments of approximately $4,200,000 (see Note
3). The initial gain on the sale was deferred because the minimum initial investment by the buyer was less
than the amount required for full recognition. Therefore the gain is being recognized into income as
payments are received using the installment method. The installment method apportions each cash receipt
and principal payment by the buyer between cost recovered and profit. The apportionment is in the same
ratio as total cost and total profit bear to the sales value.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company periodically reviews long-lived assets, including identifiable intangibles, for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. The Company evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets based on estimated
undiscounted future cash flows and provides for impairment if such undiscounted cash flows are insufficient
to recover the carrying amount of the long-lived asset. If impaired, the long-lived asset is written down to its
estimated fair value. In September 2013, the Company incurred significant damage to the Fossil Creek inlet
and diversion structure related to a flooding event. No other assets were identified as impaired as a result of
the September flooding. The amount of the impairment loss for the inlet and diversion was $136,823. The
Company did not receive any insurance proceeds from the event nor do they expect to receive any.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments are cash equivalents, accounts receivable, notes receivable, accounts
payable, and notes payable. The recorded value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and
accounts payable approximate their fair values based on their short-term nature. The recorded values of
notes payable and the note receivable approximate their fair values, as interest approximates market rates.

F-7



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2013 and 2012

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation leave in varying amounts, depending upon the length of continuous service
the employee has given the Company. The Company’s liability for accrued compensated absences was
$22,595 and $23,352 at October 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

The Company izes revenues from 1ts and water sales as earned. Amounts billed in advance
of the period in which service is rendered are recorded as deferred revenue.

Five members provided approximately 64% of the assessments received by the Company for the years ended
October 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The organizational implications of these concentrations are
recognized by management and the Board.

The Company leases recreational rights to various organizations with initial terms ranging from three to ten
years. The Company has entered into two oil and gas leases ranging from three to five years and received
$460,605 in advance lease payments. This lease income is being amortized over the life of the leases on a
straight line basis. The Company also receives oil and gas royalties from producing wells on the Company’s
land.

Income Taxes

The Company is exempt from income taxes under IRC Section 501(c)(12). The Company retains this
exemption during years that 85% of the Company’s gross income is received from shareholders. During the
years ended October 31, 2013 and 2012, the 85% test was not met. Accordingly, the Company has filed
corporate federal and Colorado state income tax returns for the years ended October 31, 2013 and 2012.

The Company accounts for income taxes under the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC™)
740, Income Taxes, which require recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future
income tax consequences of transactions that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns.
Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the
financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using current enacted tax rates. The provision for
income taxes includes the amount due for the current period and the change in deferred taxes between
periods. The Company provides a valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets when it determines
that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets may not be realized.

The Company evaluates uncertainties related to its tax positions annually. Accordingly, the tax benefit from
an uncertain tax position is recognized only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained
upon eXamination by taxing authorities. The amount that is ultimately sustained for uncertain tax positions
could differ from the amount recognized. The Company believes that it has appropriate support for any tax
positions taken, and as such, does not have any uncertain tax positions that are material to the financial
statements at October 31, 2013 and 2012.

Management makes judgments regarding the interpretation of tax laws that might be challenged upon an
audit and cause changes to previous estimates of tax liability. In addition, the Company operates within
multiple taxing jurisdictions and is subject to audit in these jurisdictions, as well as by the Internal Revenue
Service.

In management’s opinion, adequate provisions for income taxes have been made for fiscal years 2010 through
2013 (all open years).

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2013 and 2012

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confermity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and Liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

2. Rental Income

The Company leases recreational rights to various organizations with initial terms ranging from three to ten
years. The costs of these depreciable assets are included on the balance sheets under the caption ditches
and reservoirs.

The following is a summary of the carrying amounts of property on lease by major class:

October 31, 2013 October 31, 2012
Accumulated Book Accumulated Book
Description Cost Depreciation Value Cost Depreciation Value
Ditches and
Reservoirs 515,062,763 5(5,151,722) $ 9,911,041 $15,062,763 $(4,933,155) 510,129,608
Totals $15,062,763  5(5,151,722) § 9,911,041 $15,062,763 5$(4,933,155) $10,129,608

Future minimum rental payments to be received on non-cancellable leases are contractually due as follows,
as of Octaber 31, 2013:

Year Ended
October 31, Amount
2014 $ 286,932
2015 192,381
2016 80,982
2017 83,739
2018 86,607
Thereafter 299,780
Total $ 1,030,421

3. Note Receivable

The Company has a non-interest bearing note receivable from the City of Fort Collins, Colorado, which
matures in 2031, The note requires annual payments of $188,244 and is secured by municipal bonds issued
by the City of Fort Collins, Colorado. The note has been recorded at the present value of future cash flows,
utilizing an imputed interest rate of 5.12%.

F-9



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The North Poudre Irrigation Company

The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

. Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2013 and 2012 October 31, 2013 and 2012

As discussed in Note 1, the gain on the sale was deferred, and is reflected as a discount of the note receivable

h bal: h The C: beli that th is fully collectible, theref Begiming i i
in the accompanying balance sheets. e Company eves that the note is fully collectible, therefore, no it Reti ts Balance One Y
allowance for uncollectable accounts is deemed to be required. At October 31, 2013 and 2012, the note Balance AddItiors e d e
receivable, net consisted of the following: Colorado Department of Natural
. Resources (Colorado Water
;‘5?( Y;?:;ab » October 31,  October 31, Conservation Board), 5% interest,
~ficing Jctoper 2013 2012 payable in 40 annual installments of
2012 $ -5 188,224 $67,192, principal and interest,
2013 188,224 188,224 beginning May 1, 1987, maturing May
Zg:; :a;;i: :s:gj 1, 2026. Collateralized by an
) ) .- " :
2016 188,224 188,224 undivided ?ne half interest in the No.
2017 188,224 188,224 15 Reservoir dam structure. 665,095 - 33,935 631,160 35,632
Thereafter 1,515,645 1,515,645
Colorado  Department of Natural
Note receivable - gross 2,456,765 2,644,989 Résiireas (Colorado Water
Less: discount on note receivable (708,908) (803,271) Conversation Board), 5% interest,
< s s
Less: deferred gain on sale (1,239,991) _ (1,306,579) N
507,866 535.139 payable in 40. ar.mual 1nstalln:1ents of
$23,574, principal and interest,
Note receivable - current portion (net) (28,670) (27,273) beginning May 1, 1989, maturing May
Note receivable - long-term (net) $ 479,196 § 507,866 1, 2028. Collateralized by an
undivided one half interest in the
4. Notes Payable Clarks Lake dam structure. 263,73 - 10,385 253,388 10,904
The following is a summary of activity in notes payable for the year ended October 31, 2013: Colorado  Department of Natural
Beginning Ending  Due Within Resoifoes;  (Golorada;  iwiaten
Balance Additions _ Retirements _ Balance One Year Conservation Board), 5% interest,
ble in 40 L installments of
Colorado  Department of Natural e & i ""7"“"’ E 3
$19,847, principal and interest,
Resources (Colorado Water - .
3 - beginning June 15, 1992, maturing
Conservation Board), 5% interest, 2
SABETHEAD FRSERITERE o June 15, 2031. Collateralized by an
p7\7la612 in . al:nnula msda len © undivided one half interest in the No.
P61z Fndeal, and Arerest; 2 dam structure. 239,854 5 7,854 232,000 8,247
beginning May 1, 1985, maturing on
May 1, 2024. Collateralized by the one Colorado Department of Natural
half interest in Fossil Creek Dam Resources (Colorado Water
Structure. $ 687,883 § - 0§ 43,225 5 644,658 § 45,387 Conservation Board), 2% interest,
payable in 40 annual instaliments of
$64,378, principal and interest,
beginning May 1, 1996, maturing May
1, 2035. Collateralized by #5 and #6
dam structures. 1,177,619 s 40,826 1,136,793 41,642
1
F-10 F-11
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2013 and 2012

Beginning
Balance

Additions __ Retirements

Ending
Balance

Colorado Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water
Conservation Board), 4.03% interest,
payable in 20 annual installments of
$36,889, principal and interest,
beginning August 31, 2000, maturing
August 31, 2019. Collateralized by the
No. 6 Reservoir outlet.

Colorado  Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water
Conservation Board), 4.04% interest,
payable in 20 annual installments of
646,061, principal and interest,
beginning May 1, 2005, maturing on
May 1, 2024. Collateralized by Indian
Creek, #4 and #5 Reservoirs.

Colorado Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water
Conservation Board), 3.25% interest,
payable in 20 annual instaltments of
$50,572, principal and interest,
beginning February 1, 2009, maturing
on February 1, 2027. Collateralized by
Miners Lake Reservoir.

To provide for short-term cash
requirements, the Company has
established a line of credit agreement
with a local financial institution to
borrow up to $500,000 at 4.25% rate
of interest, The loan is due March 3,
2013, and is secured by the revenues
of the Company.

221,163

431,288

592,949

112,000

2 27,976 193,187

= 28,638

402,650

2 31,301

561,648

400,000 452,000 60,000

Due Within
One Year

29,103

29,794

32,318

60,000

Totals

Less current portion
Totals

4,391,624 $ 400,000 S 676,140

54,055,485

336,139

F-12

22

293,027
$3,822,457

4,115,484 § 293,027

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2013 and 2012

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of October 31, 2013, are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Total Debt

Ending October 31 Principal Interest Service
2014 $ 293,027 $§ 153,09 S 446,123
2015 242,296 143,827 386,123
2016 251,961 134,162 386,123
2017 262,041 124,082 386,123
2018 272,556 113,567 386,123
2019-2023 1,380,365 405,501 1,785,866
2024-2028 941,583 253,578 1,195,161
2029-2033 346,659 75,603 422,262
2034-2035 124,994 7,475 132,469
Total $4,115,482 51,410,891 $5,526,373

5. Water Allotment Agreement

The Company entered into an agreement December 5, 1945, with the Northern Colorado Water Conservancy
District for the annual purchase of 40,000 acre feet of water, or any such portion that may be delivered, at
$1.50 per unit. Payment is due May 1 of every year and is secured by an irrevocable levy of assessment on
the capital stock of the Company. Payments shall continue until the delivery system is paid for and
thereafter for operating and maintenance changes.

6. Pension Plan

The Company sponsors a deferred compensation plan for all full-time employees. The Company matches
employee deferrals up ta a maximum of 3% of compensation. The Company’s contribution to the plan was
$4,823 and $5,259 for the years ended October 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

7. Income Taxes

The current and deferred income taxes for the years ended October 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:

October 31, 2013 2012

Current income tax expense $ 183,412 § 156,000

Deferred income tax benefit (5,000) (5,000)

Income tax expense $ 178,412 § 151,000
F-13



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2013 and 2012

A reconciliation of the effective tax rates and the statutory U.S. federal income tax rates are as follows:

Year Ended October 31, 2013 2012
Income tax expense at U.S. federal

statutory rates $ 161,412 § 137,000
State income taxes 22,000 19,000
Deferred tax (5,000) (5,000)
Income tax expense S 178,412 S 151,000

The only temporary differences between book and tax basis assets and liabilities and their approximate tax
effects that give rise to the net deferred tax liability relate to depreciation expense, represented by a
long-term deferred tax liability of $23,000 and $21,000, as of October 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

8. Subsequent Events

In November, the Company received an emergency loan from Colorado Water Conservation Board in the
amount of $481,770 for the Fossil Creek inlet and diversion structure emergency repairs. The loan is a 30
year term loan with no interest or principal payments until November 1, 2017. Interest is fixed at 2.35%.

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 18, 2013 the date that the financial
statements were available to be issued. There were no material subsequent events that required recognition
or additional disclosure, except as noted above.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AACM

Anton Cullins Micchell LLP

Accountants & Consuitants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
The North Poudre Irrigation Company

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of The North Poudre Irrigation Company (a nonprofit
corporation) (the “Company”) as of October 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related statements of income and
changes in retained earnings, and cash flows for the years then ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes, the
design, the implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether by fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of The North Poudre Irrigation Company as of October 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

ﬁmfén Collisa Hedibtr £ 472

Greeley, Colorado
December 18, 2013

www.acmilp.com
Northern Colorado Office 3545 West 12th Street, Suite 201 + Greeley, Colorado 80634 + 970,352,1700 + Fax 970.352.1708

Denver Office 17th & Grant Building - 303 East 17th avenu, Suite 600 + Denver, Colorado 80203 - 303.830.1120 - Fax 303.830.8130 f‘:ﬁmg’:
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The North Poudre Irrigation Company

Balance Sheets

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The North Poudre Irrigation Company

Balance Sheets

Octaber 31, 2014 2013
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents & 62,607 51,526
Assessments receivable 9,084 26,088
Accounts receivable, other 106,500 1,000
Income taxes receivable 425,225 -
Note receivable, related party 30,139 28,670
Accrued interest receivable 65,515 68,532
Prepaid expenses 25,831 22,317
Total current assets 724,901 198,133
Fixed assets, net
Land 528,544 528,544
Priorities, water rights and easements 425,650 425,650
Construction in progress 182,348 1,710,294
Ditches and reservoirs 15,471,603 15,471,603
Buildings and improvements 269,240 269,240
Radio and office equipment 42,695 42,695
Machinery and equipment 566,897 566,897
Transportation equipment 221,215 193,675
Total 17,708,192 19,208,598
Less: accumulated depreciation (6,191,588) (5,961,554)
Total fixed assets, net 11,516,604 13,247,044
Other assets
Note receivable, related party, net
of current portion above 449,057 479,196
Deferred income tax asset 724,000 -
Other assets 17,942 17,942
Total other assets 1,190,999 497,138

Total assets

$ 13,432,504 § 13,942,315

2014 2013

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 92,136 § 25,524

Accrued interest payable 81,710 78,609

Accrued compensated absences 25,446 22,595

Income taxes payable = 25,520

Deferred oil and gas lease income 46,740 105,383

Current portion of notes payable 890,483 293,027
Total current liabilities 1,136,515 550,658
Long-term liabilities

Notes payable, net of current portion above 4,287,794 3,822,457

Deferred oil and gas lease income 27,265 74,005

Deferred income tax liability - 23,000

Security deposit 5,000 5,000
Total long-term liabilities 4,320,059 3,924,462
Total liabilities 5,456,574 4,475,120
Stockholders’ equity

Common stock, $50 par value (10,000 shares authorized and

issued and 10,000 and 9,999.5 shares outstanding, respectively) 500,000 499,975

Additional paid in capital 941,340 834,865

Retained earnings 6,534,590 8,132,355
Total stockholders’ equity 7,975,930 9,467,195

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

$ 13,432,504 $ 13,942,315

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

F-3
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I FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The North Poudre Irrigation Company

The North Poudre Irrigation Company Statements of Cash Flows

Statements of Operations and Changes in Retained Earnings For the Years Ended October 31, 2014 2013

Cash flows from operating activities
For the Years Ended October 31, 2014 2013 Net income . ) $ (1,597,765) S 328,894
Adjustments to reconcile net income

to net cash flows from operating activities:

P

Operating revenues and gains

Assessments $1,382,243  § 1,294,253 Depreciation 265,994 261,772
Recreational lease revenue 407,733 377,442 (Gain) on sale of fixed assets (3,450) (1,200)
Water sales 159,499 174,269 Loss on abandonment of construction in progress 1,971,521 :
Qil and gas lease revenue 105,383 122,375 Impairment loss on fixed assets - 136,823
Other income 38,199 22,699 Amortization of deferred gain on sale of fixed assets (70,000) (66,588)
Net gain on sales of fixed assets 73,450 67,788 Amortization of deferred oil and gas lease income (105,383) (122,375)

Total operating revenues and gains 2,166,507 2,058,826 Deferred income taxes _ (747,000) 2,000

Decrease (increase) in operating assets:

Operating expenses Assessments receivables 17,004 (18,091)
Salaries and wages 508,587 399,923 Accounts receivable, other 1,000 (1,000)
Repairs, maintenance and supplies 1,421,190 275,371 Income taxes receivable (425,225) -
Depreciation 265,994 261,772 Accrued interest receivable 3,017 4,632
Water purchases and assessments 144,826 115,731 Prepaid expenses (3,514) (1,139)
Insurance 66,926 60,953 Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Accounting and legal fees 119,921 48,394 Accounts payable 66,612 1,823

Gas and oil 56,365 43,987 Income taxes payable (25,520) (52,960)

Payroll taxes 51,655 39,624 Other accrued expenses 5,952 (5,517)

Utilities and telephone 37,941 31,384 Net cash flows from operating activities (646,757) 467,074

Weed control 59,994 23,534

Employee benefits 47,059 18,224 Cash flow fram investing activities

Office and other expenses 19,522 17,181 Payments received for note receivable 98,670 93,861

Employee mileage 8,869 16,675 Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 3,850 1,200

Directors' fees and expense 13,942 11,410 Purchases of fixed assets (443,575) (250,372)

Engineering and other expense 8,970 4,740 ; . 3 o

Vehicle and other taxes 1,253 1,280 Net cash flows from investing activities (341,055) (155,311)

Loss on abandonment of construction in progress 1,971,521 - Cash flow from financing activities

Impairment loss on fixed assets = 136,823 Proceeds from short-term borrowing 855,000 400,000
Total operating expenses 4,804,535 1,507,106 Repayment of short-term borrowing (505,000) (452,000)

Proceeds from long-term borrowing 900,378 -

(Loss) income from operations (2,638,028) 551,720 Repayment of long-term debt (251,485) (224,140)

Other income (expenses) Net cash flows from financing activities 998,893 (276,140)
Interest income 89,312 90,595 7 R

1,0
0il and gas royalty fhcoime 68,078 26,142 i Net change in cash and cash equivalents 11,081 35,623
Interest expense (159,641) (159,151) I Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 51,526 15,903

Total other income (expenses) (2,251) (42,414) ‘ Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 62,607 § 51,526

Net (loss) income before income taxes (2,640,279) 509,306 v Supplemental cash flow information:

Income tax (benefit) expense (1,042,514) 180,412 Cash paid during the year for interest $ 156,540 § 163,911

Cash paid during the year for income taxes S 155,231 § 231,372

Net (loss) income (1,597,765) 328,894 - -

Supplemental noncash flow information:
Retained earnings at beginning of year 8,132,355 7,803,461 Fixed assets acquired through issuance of debt $ 63,900 $ -
Retained earnings at end of year $ 6,534,590 S 8,132,355 Sale of treasury stock through acceunts re;e[vable _ S 106.500 : $ =
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
F-4 F-5
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2014 and 2013

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

This summary of The North Poudre Irrigation Company’s (the “"Company”) signiﬁ'c_ant accounting poli;l_es is to
assist the reader in interpreting the financial statements and other data in this rep_nrt. The policies are
considered essential and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.

Operations

The Company was incorporated January 1, 1901, under the laws of the State of Colorado to provide irrigation
water for agricultural uses to its approximately 600 stockhalders in the Northern Colorado Front Range. The
Company’s business office and maintenance facilities are located in Wellington, Colorado.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments available for current use with an original maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Assessments and Other Receivables

Assessments and other receivables are recorded at the invoiced amount. The Company prov_ides an
allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the estimated uncollectible amounts. The Company’s estimate is
based on historical collection experience and a review of the current status of accounts recewable. It is
reasonably possible that the Company’s estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts will change. The
Company has determined that no allowance is necessary as of October 31, 2014 and 2013.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk, consist of
cash, cash equivalents and receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents are maintained at financial institutions and, at times, balances may exceed
federally insured limits. The Company has never experienced any losses related to these balances. The
Company had no amounts on deposit in excess of federally insured limits at October 31, 2014 and 2013.
Credit risk with respect to receivables is considered low based on past collection experience.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost for assets purchased and fair market value for donated assets.

All property and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as shown below,
using the straight-line method.

Life
Ditches and reservoirs 50-100 years
Buildings and improvements 10-40 years
Radio and office equipment 10 years
Machinery and equipment 10 years
Transportation equipment 5-10 years

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. When depreciable assets are disposed of, the

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2014 and 2013

cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss is
reflected in earnings.

Included in construction in progress is $43,751 for the construction of the Fossil Creek Inlet and $138,597 for
the rehabilitation of Reservoir No. 4,

During the year ended October 31, 2014 the Company abandoned construction in progress project of the
expansion of Halligan Reservoir which resulted in a loss of abandonment of $1 ,971,521.

Deferred Gain on Sale of Property

During 2004, the Company sold the Halligan Reservoir to the City of Fort Collins, a significant stockholder, and
related party, for approximately $5,200,000. The consideration given included approximately $1,000,000 of
cash and a non-interest bearing note receivable with gross payments of approximately $4,200,000 (see Note
3). The initial gain on the sale was deferred because the minimum initial investment by the buyer was less
than the amount required for full recognition. Therefore the gain is being recognized into income as
payments are received using the installment method. The installment method apportions each cash receipt
and principal payment by the buyer between cost recovered and profit. The apportionment is in the same
ratio as total cost and total profit bear to the sales value.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company periodically réviews long-lived assets, including identifiable intangibles, for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. The Company evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets based on estimated
undiscounted future cash flows and provides for impairment if such undiscounted cash flows are insufficient
to recover the carrying amount of the long-lived asset. If impaired, the long-lived asset is written down to its
estimated fair value. In September 2013, the Company incurred significant damage to the Fossil Creek inlet
and diversion structure related to a flooding event. No other assets were identified as impaired as a result of
the September flooding. The amount of the impairment loss for the inlet and diversion was $136,823. The
Company did not receive any insurance proceeds from the event nor do they expect to receive any. No
indicatians of impairment were identified during the year ended October 31, 2014.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments are cash equivalents, accounts receivable, notes receivable, accounts
payable, and notes payable. The recorded value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and
accounts payable approximate their fair values based on their short-term nature. The recorded values of
notes payable and the note receivable approximate their fair values, as interest approximates market rates,

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation leave in varying amounts, depending upon the length of continuous service
the employee has given the Company. The Company's liability for accrued compensated absences was.
$25,446 and $22,595 at October 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recagnizes revenues from assessments and water sales as earned. Amounts bitled in advance
of the period in which service is rendered are recorded as deferred revenue.

Five members provided approximately 64% of the assessments received by the Company for the years ended

F7
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The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2014 and 2013

October 31, 2014 and 2013. The organizational implications of these concentrations are recognized by
management and the Board.

The Company leases recreational rights to various organizations with initial terms ranging from three to ten
years. The Company has entered into two oil and gas leases ranging from three to five years and received
$460,605 in advance lease payments. This lease income is being amortized over the life of the leases on a
straight line basis. The Company also receives oil and gas royalties from producing wells on the Company’'s
land.

Income Taxes

The Company is exempt from income taxes under IRC Section 501(c)(12). The Company retains this
exemption during years that 85% of the Company’s gross income is received from stockholders. During the
years ended October 31, 2014 and 2013, the 85% test was not met. Accordingly, the Company has filed
corporate federal and Colorado state income tax returns for the years ended October 31, 2014 and 2013.

The Company accounts for income taxes under the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (*ASC”)
740, Income Taxes, which require recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future
income tax consequences of transactions that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns.
Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the
financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using current enacted tax rates. The provision for
income taxes includes the amount due for the current period and the change in deferred taxes between
periods. The Company provides a valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets when it determines
that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets may not be realized.

The Company evaluates uncertainties related to its tax positions annually. Accordingly, the tax benefit from
an uncertain tax position is recognized only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained
upon examination by taxing authorities. The amount that is ultimately sustained for uncertain tax positions
could differ from the amount recognized. The Company believes that it has appropriate support for any tax
positions taken, and as such, does not have any uncertain tax positions that are material to the financial
statements at October 31, 2014 and 2013.

Management makes judgments regarding the interpretation of tax laws that might be challenged upon an
audit and cause changes to previous estimates of tax liability. In addition, the Company operates within
multiple taxing jurisdictions and is subject to audit in these jurisdictions, as well as by the Internal Revenue
Service.

In management’s opinion, adequate provisions for income taxes have been made for fiscal years 2012 through
2014 (all open years).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America ("GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

2. Rental Income

The Company leases recreational rights to various organizations with initial terms ranging from three to ten
years. The costs of these depreciable assets are included on the balance sheets under the caption ditches

F-8
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and reservoirs.

The following is a summary of the carrying amounts of property on lease by major class:

October 31, 2014 October 31, 2013
Accumulated Book Accumulated Book
Description Cost Depreciation Value Cost. Depreciation Value
Ditches and
Reservoirs $14,778,174 5 (5,212,803) §9,565,371 $15,062,763 $(5,151,722) § 9,911,041
Totals $ 14,778,174 $(5,212,803) $9,565,371 515,062,763 $(5,151,722) S 9,911,041

Future minimum rental payments to be received on non-cancellable leases are contractually due as follows:

Year Ended
October 31, Amount
2015 $ 312,431
2016 201,032
2017 87,939
2018 86,607
2019 92,691
Thereafter 207,089
Total $ 987,789

3. Note Receivable

The Company has a non-interest bearing note receivable from the City of Fort Collins, Colorado, which
matures in 2031. The note requires annual payments of $188,244 and is secured by municipal bonds issued
by the City of Fort Collins, Colorado. The note has been recorded at the present value of future cash flows,
utilizing an imputed interest rate of 5.12%.

As discussed in Note 1, the gain on the sale was deferred, and is reflected as a discount of the note receivable
in the accompanying balance sheets. The Company believes that the note is fully collectible; therefore, no
allowance for uncollectable accounts is deemed to be required. At October 31, 2014 and 2013, the note
receivable, net consisted of the following:
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The North Poudre Irrigation Company The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements Notes to Financial Statements
October 31, 2014 and 2013 October 31, 2014 and 2013
Fiscal Year October 31,  October 31, Beginning Ending Due Within
Ending October 31 2014 2013 Balance Additions  Retirements Balance One Year
2013 $ - $ 188,224 Colorado Department of Natural
2014 188,224 188,224 Resources (Colorado Water
;gl: 155:;2: ::g:ii: Conservation Board), 5% interest,
2017 188,224 188,224 payable in 40 annual installments of
2018 188,224 188,224 $67,192, principal and interest,
Thereafter 1,327,421 1,327,421 beginning May 1, 1987, maturing May
Note receivable - gross 2,268,541 2,456,765 1, 2026.  Collateralized by an
Less: discount on note receivable (619,354) (708,908) undivided one half interest in the No.
Less: deferred gain on sale (1,169,991)  (1,239,991) 15 Reservoir dam structure. 631,160 . 35,632 595,528 37,414
479,196 507,866
Note receivable - current portion (net) (30,139) (28,670) Colorado  Department of = Natural
Note receivable - long-term (net) $ 449,057 5 479,196 Resourees tGolraco . Water
Conversation Board), 5% interest,
4. Notes Payable payable in 40 annual installments of
$23,574, principal and interest,
The following is a summary of activity in notes payable for the year ended October 31, 2014: beginning May 1, 1989, maturing May
X L 1, 2028, Collateralized by an
Beginning - ) Ending:  Dusikhin undivided one half interest in the
Balance Additions  Retirements Balance One Year
Clarks Lake dam structure. 253,388 - 11,449 241,939 11,449
Colorado  Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water Colorado Department of Natural
Conservation Board), 5% interest, Resources (Colorado Water
payable in 40 annual installments of Conservation Board), 5% interest,
§77,612, principal and interest, payable in 40 annual installments of
beginning May 1, 1985, maturing on $19,847, principal and interest,
May 1, 2024. Collateralized by the one beginning June 15, 1992, maturing
half interest in Fossil Creek Dam June 15, 2031. Collateralized by an
Structure, $ 644,658 - § 45,387 § 599,271 § 47,656 undivided one half interest in the No.
2 dam structure. 232,000 - 8,659 223,341 8,659
Colorado Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water
Conservation Board), 2% interest,
payable in 40 annual instaliments of
564,378, principal and interest,
beginning May 1, 1996, maturing May
1, 2035, Collateralized by #5 and #6
dam structures. 1,136,793 E 42,475 1,094,318 42,475
12
F-10 F-11
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The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2014 and 2013

October 31, 2014 and 2013

Beginning Ending Due Within Colorado Department of Natural
Balance Additions  Retirements Balance One Year Resources (Colorado Water
Colorado Department of Natural Conservation Board), 2.35% interest,
Resources (Colorado Water payable in 30 annual installments of
Conservation Board), 4.03% interest, which  will include principat and
payable in 20 annual installments of interest, beginning upon expending all
$36,889, principal and interest, approved funds ($1,636,200) or upon
beginning August 31, 2000, maturing project completion, whichever is
August 31, 2019. Collateralized by the sooner. Collateralized by Reservoir
No. 6 Reservoir outlet. 193,187 - 30,276 162,911 30,276 No.4, Contains a debt service
requirement which  begins upon
Colorado Department of Natural payment of first annual payment, 122,758 122,758
Resources (Colorado Water
Conservation Board), 4.04% interest, First National Bank, 2.75% interest,
payable in 20 annual installments of payable in 36 monthly installments of
546,061, principal and interest, $1,852 which includes principal and
beginning May 1, 2005, maturing on interest, beginning February 21,
May 1, 2024. Collateralized by Indian 2014, maturing on January 21, 2017.
Creek, #4 and #5 Reservairs. 402,650 - 29,794 372,856 30,998 Collateralized by two pickup trucks. - 63,900 15,494 48,406 21,161
Colorado  Department of Natural First National Bank, 3.75% interest,
Resources {Colorado Water payable in three annual installments
Conservation Board), 3.25% interest, of $242,338 which includes principal
payable in 20 annual installments of and interest, beginning July 15, 2015,
$50,572, principal and interest, maturing  on July 15, 2017.
beginning February 1, 2009, maturing Collateralized by the City of Fort
on February 1, 2027. Collateralized by Collins installment agreement. 675,000 675,000 217,026
Miners Lake Reservoir, 561,648 = 32,319 529,329 33,369
To provide for short-term cash
Colorado Department of Natural requirements, the Company has
Resources (Colorado Water established a line of credit agreement
Conservation Board), 2.35% interest, with a local financial institution to
payable in 27 annual installments of borrow up to $500,000 at 4.25% rate
$24,301, principal and interest, of interest. The loan is due March 3,
beginning  November 1, 2017, 2015, and is secured by the revenues
maturing on November 1, 2043. of the Company. 60,000 855,000 505,000 410,000 410,000
;:SZ:::‘_ZEd by  Fossil Creek ) i i 102,620 . Totals 4,115,484 $1,819,278 § 756,485 5,178,277 § 890,483
Less current portion 293,027 890,483
Totals $3,822,457 $4,287,794
F-12 F-13
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The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2014 and 2013

The annual requirements to amortize all outstanding debt are as follows:

Fiscal Year Total Debt
Ending October 31 Principal Interest Service

2015 $ 890,483 § 170,205 §$1,060,688

2016 498,876 151,812 650,688

2017 513,325 144,159 657,484

2018 285,840 124,585 410,425

2019 295,946 113,306 409,252

2020-2024 1,472,328 395,200 1,867,528

2025-2029 794,529 146,979 941,508

2030-2034 364,666 50,858 415,524

2035-203% 62,284 1,262 63,546

Total $5,178,277 $1,298,366 $6,476,643

5. Water Allotment Agreement

The Company entered into an agreement December 5, 1945, with the Northern Colorado Water Conservancy
District for the annual purchase of 40,000 acre feet of water, or any such portion that may be delivered, at
$1.50 per unit. Payment is due May 1 of every year and is secured by an irrevocable levy of assessment on
the capital stock of the Company. Payments shall continue until the delivery system is paid for and
thereafter for operating and maintenance changes.

6. Pension Plan

The Company sponsors a deferred compensation plan for all full-time employees. The Company matches
employee deferrals up to a maximum of 3% of compensation. The Company’s contribution to the plan was
$6,041 and $4,823 for the years ended October 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

7. Income Taxes

The current and deferred income taxes for the years ended October 31, 2014 and 2013, were as follows:

October 31, 2014 2013
Current income tax expense (benefit) $ (295,514) S 185,412
Deferred income tax (benefit) (747,000) (5,000)
Income tax expense (benefit) $(1,042,514) S 180,412
F-14
26
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A reconciliation of the effective tax rates and the statutory U.S. federal income tax rates are as follows:

Year Ended Octcber 31, 2014 2013

Income tax expense at U.S. federal

statutory rates $
State income taxes
Deferred tax

(295,514) S 163,412

- 22,000
(747,000) (5,000)
$(1,042,514) $ 180,412

Income tax (benefit) expense

The only temporary differences between book and tax basis assets and liabilities and thei il

orary their approximate tax
effects that give rise to thq net deferred tax liability relate to depreciation expense, I‘e;fesented by a
long-term deferred tax liability of $-0- and $23,000, as of October 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

For the year ended October 31, 2014 the Company experienced a net operating loss (“NOL™) on their tax

return. The Company elected, for federal tax purposes, to carryback the NOL twe years and carry the

remaining NOL forward for 20 years (expiring in 2034). Thi i i i
b Ll L (expiring ) is resulted in an income tax benefit of

8. Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 10, 2014 the date i i

- that the financial
statements were available to be issued. There were no material subse u’entevents that i iti
or additional disclosure, except as noted above. 9 BRI scranttion

F-15
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The North Poudre Irrigation Company A—AHEA@(M—;.WE
Contents A h

Independent Auditor’s Report
Independent Auditor’s Report : J J

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Wellington, Colorado

Basic Financial Statements

Balance Sheets F-2-3

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of The North Poudre Irrigation Company (a nonprofit

corporation) {the "Company”) as of October 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related statements of operations and
changes in retained earnings, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial

Statements of Cash Flows F-5 statements.

Statements of Operations and Changes in Retained Earnings F-4

Notes to Financial Statements F6-15 Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in -
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, the implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether by fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of The North Poudre Irrigation Company as of October 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of

its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Bnha (s Priklel! L2

Greeley, Colorado
January 13, 2016 hemter | Boukder® oo (0 aako L rsan

www.acmllp.com

Northern Colorado Office 3545 West 12th Street, Suite 201 + Greeley, Colorado 80634 - 970.352.1700 - Fax 970.352.1708
Denver Office 17th & Grant Building - 303 East 17th avenue, Suite 600 + Denver, Colorado 80203 * 303.830.1120 * Fax 303.830.8130
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The North Poudre Irrigation Company The North Poudre Irrigation Company

Balance Sheets Balance Sheets

October 31, 2015 2014 2015 2014
Assets
Current assets

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents $ 332,490 S 62,607 Accounts payable S 86,738 92,136
Assessments receivable 17,368 9,084 Accrued interest payable 71,077 81,710
Accounts receivable, other - 106,500 Accrued compensated absences 29,853 25,446
Income taxes receivable - 425,225 Deferred oil and gas lease income, net of current portion 27,265 46,740
Note receivable, related party 31,683 30,139 Current portion of notes payable 408,386 890,483
Accrued interest receivable 65,477 65,515 ot 623 319 1,136,515
Bhehaid e ienas 26,024 25,831 Total current liabilities s ,136,

Long-term liabilities
Total current assets 473,042 724,901 8
. - Notes payable, net of current portion 3,882,371 4,287,794
Property and equipment, net Deferred oil and gas lease income, net of current portion - 27,265
Land 528,544 528,544 Deferred income tax liability 11,000 N
Priorities, water rights and easements 425,650 425,650 Security deposit 5,000 5,000
Construction in progress 720,083 182,348 bl 3,898,371 4,320,059
Ditches and reservoirs 15,471,603 15,471,603 Totel longterm iabllitles — ;
Buildings and improvements 346,552 269,240 Total liabilities 4,521,690 5,456,574
Radio and office equipment 42,695 42,695 i .
Machinery and equipment 566,897 566,897 Btocknolders aquity .
Transpartation equipment 221,215 221,215 Common stock, $50 par value (10,000 shares aut_horlzed and.
issued and 10,000 and 10,000 shares outstanding, respectively) 500,000 500,000
18,323,239 17,708,192 Additional paid in capital 941,340 941,340
Less: accumulated depreciation (6,470,492) (6,191,588) Retained earnings 7,154,075 6,534,590

Total property and equipment, net 11,852,747 11,516,604 Total stockholders' equity 8,595,415 7,975,930

Other assets
Note receivable, related party, net

of current portion 417,374 449,057
Deferred income tax asset 356,000 724,000
Other assets 17,942 17,942
ACtaliotherssets 791,316 1,120,999 Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 13,117,105 § 13,432,504
Total assets $ 13,117,105 $ 13,432,504 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
F-2 B
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The North Poudre Irrigation Company

Statements of Operations and Changes in Retained Earnings

Ended October 31, 2015 2014
Operating revenues and gains
Assessments $ 2,032,904 S 1,382,243
Water sales 419,273 407,733
Recreational lease revenue 768,901 159,499
0il and gas lease revenue 46,740 105,383
Other income 114,874 38,199
Net gain on sales of property and equipment 73,587 73,450
Total operating revenues and gains 3,456,279 2,166,507
Operating expenses
Repairs, maintenance and supplies 749,413 1,421,190
Salaries and wages 541,090 508,587
Depreciation 278,904 265,994
Water purchases and assessments 200,950 144,826
Accounting and legal fees 172,388 119,921
Office and other expenses 116,817 19,522
Insurance 67,855 66,926
Weed control 59,698 59,994
Payroll taxes 53,044 51,655
Employee benefits 44,039 47,059
Utilities and telephone 33,499 37,941
Gas and oil 32,996 56,365
Employee mileage 25,812 8,869
Directors' fees and expense 11,902 13,942
Vehicle and other taxes 1,181 1,253
Engineering and other expense 593 8,970
Loss on abandonment of construction in progress - 1,971,521
Total operating expenses 2,390,181 4,804,535
Income (Loss) from operations 1,066,098 (2,638,028)
Other income (expenses)
Interest income 84,460 89,312
Oil and gas royalty income 11,711 68,078
Interest expense (163,784) (159,641)
Total other (expenses) (67,613) (2,251)
Net income (loss) before income taxes 998,485 (2,640,279)
Income tax expense (benefit) 379,000 (1,042,514)
Net income (loss) 619,485 (1,597,765)
Retained earnings at beginning of year 6,534,590 8,132,355

Retained earnings at end of year

$ 7,154,075 § 6,534,590

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

F-4
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The North Poudre Irrigation Company

Statements of Cash Flows

Ended October 31,

2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss) $ 619,485 $ (1,597,765)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss)
to net cash flows from operating activities:
Depreciation 278,904 265,994
(Gain) on sale of fixed assets - (3,450)
Loss on abandonment of construction in progress - 1,971,521
Amortization of deferred gain on sale of fixed assets (73,587) (70,000)
Amortization of deferred oil and gas lease income (46,740) (105,383)
Deferred income taxes 379,000 (747,000)
Decrease (increase) in operating assets:
Assessments receivables (8,284) 17,004
Accounts receivable, other = 1,000
Income taxes receivable 425,225 (425,225)
Accrued interest receivable 38 3,017
Prepaid expenses (193) (3,514)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable (5,398) 66,612
Income taxes payable - (25,520)
Other accrued expenses (6,226) 5,952
Net cash flows from operating activities 1,562,224 (646,757)
Cash flow from investing activities
Payments received for note receivable 103,726 98,670
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 2 3,850
Purchases of fixed assets (615,047) (443,575)
Net cash flows from investing activities (511,321) (341,055)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from short-term borrowing - 855,000
Repayment of short-term borrowing (410,000) (505,000)
Proceeds from the sale of common stock 106,500 -
Proceeds from long-term borrowing 331,747 900,378
Repayment of long-term debt (809,267) (251,485)
Net cash flows from financing activities (781,020) 998,893
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 269,883 11,081
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 62,607 51,526
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 332,490 S 62,607
Supplemental cash flow information;
Cash paid during the year for interest S 163,822 § 163,911
Cash paid during the year for income taxes S - 5 231,372
Supplemental noncash flow information:
Fixed assets acquired through issuance of debt S (63,900) $§ -
Sale of treasury stock through accounts receivable S {106,500) § -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2015 and 2014

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

This summary of The North Poudre Irrigation Company’s (the "Company”) signific_ant accounting palipies is to
assist the reader in interpreting the financial statements and other data in 1h!s repprt. The policies are
considered essential and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.
Operations

The Company was incorporated January 1, 1901, under the laws of the State of Colorado to provide irrigation
water for agricultural uses to its approximately 600 stockholders in the Northern Colorado Front Range. The
Company’s business office and maintenance facilities are located in Wellington, Colorado.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments available for current use with an original maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

A and Other Receivabl

Assessments and other receivables are recorded at the invoiced amount. The Company pm\{ides an
allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the estimated uncollectible amounts. The Company’s_estlmate is
based on historical collection experience and a review of the current status of accounts recewame. It is
reasonably possible that the Company’s estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts will change. The
Company has determined that no allowance is necessary as of October 31, 2015 and 2014.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk, consist of
cash, cash equivalents and receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents are maintained at financial institutions and, at times, balances may exceed
federally insured limits. The Company has never experienced any losses related to these balances. The
Company had no amounts on deposit in excess of federally insured limits at October 31, 2015 and 2014.
Credit risk with respect to receivables is considered low based on past collection experience.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost for assets purchased and fair market value for donated assets.

All property and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as shown below,
using the straight-line method.

Life
Ditches and reservoirs 50-100 years
Buildings and improvements 10-40 years
Radio and office equipment 10 years
Machinery and equipment 10 years
Transportation equipment 5-10 years

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. When depreciable assets are disposed of, the
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cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss is
reflected in earnings.

Included in construction in progress as of October 31, 2015 and 2014 is 565,817 and $43,751, respectively, for
the construction of the Fossil Creek Inlet, $485,729 and $1 38,597, respectively, for the rehabilitation of
Reservoir No. 4, $132,502 and 50, respectively for the Boxelder flood dams and $36,035 and $0, respectively,
for other projects.

During the year ended October 31, 2014 the Company abandoned construction in progress project of the
expansion of Halligan Reservoir which resulted in a loss of abandonment of $1,971,521.

Deferred Gain on Sale of Property

During 2004, the Company sold the Halligan Reservoir to the City of Fort Collins, a significant stockholder, and
related party, for approximately $5,200,000. The consideration given included approximately $1,000,000 of
cash and a non-interest bearing note receivable with gross payments of approximately $4,200,000 (see Note
3). The initial gain on the sale was deferred because the minimum initial investment by the buyer was less
than the amount required for full recognition. Therefore the gain is being recognized into income as
payments are received using the installment method. The installment method apportions each cash receipt
and principal payment by the buyer between cost recovered and profit. The apportionment is in the same
ratio as total cost and total profit bear to the sales value.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company periodically reviews long-lived assets, including identifiable intangibles, for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. The Company evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets based on estimated
undiscounted future cash flows and provides for impairment if such undiscounted cash flows are insufficient
to recover the carrying amount of the long-lived asset. If im paired, the long-lived asset is written down to its
estimated fair value. No indications of impairment were identified during the year ended October 31,2015

or 2014.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments are cash equivalents, accounts receivable, notes receivable, accounts
payable, and notes payable. The recorded value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and
accounts payable approximate their fair values based on their short-term nature. The recorded values of
notes payable and the note receivable approximate their fair values, as interest approximates market rates.

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation leave in varying amounts, depending upon the length of continuous service
the employee has given the Company. The Company’s liability for accrued compensated absences was
$29,853 and $25,446 at October 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively,

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenues from assessments and water sales as earned. Amounts billed in advance
of the period in which service is rendered are recorded as deferred revenue.

Two members provided approximately 36% and 47% (each individually more than 10%) of the assessments
received by the Company for the years ended October 31 » 2015 and 2014, respectively. The organizational
F-7
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implications of these concentrations are recognized by management and the Board.

The Company leases recreational rights to various organizations with initial terms ranging from three to ten
years, The Company has entered into two oil and gas leases ranging from three to five years and received
5460,605 in advance lease payments. This lease income is being amortized over the life of the leases on a
straight line basis. The Company also receives oil and gas royalties from producing wells on the Company’s
land.

Income Taxes

The Company is exempt from income taxes under IRC Section 501(c)(12). The Company retains this
exemption during years that 85% of the Company’s gross income is received from stockholders. During the
years ended October 31, 2015 and 2014, the 85% test was not met. Accordingly, the Company has filed
corporate federal and Colorado state income tax returns for the years ended October 31, 2015 and 2014.

The Company accounts for income taxes under the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC”)
740, Income Taxes, which require recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future
income tax consequences of transactions that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns.
Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the
financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using current enacted tax rates. The provision for
income taxes includes the amount due for the current period and the change in deferred taxes between
periods. The Company provides a valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets when it determines
that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets may not be realized.

The Company evaluates uncertainties related to its tax positions annually. Accordingly, the tax benefit from
an uncertain tax position is recognized only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained
upon examination by taxing authorities. The amount that is ultimately sustained for uncertain tax positions
could differ from the amount recognized. The Company believes that it has appropriate support for any tax
positions taken, and as such, does not have any uncertain tax positions that are material to the financial
statements at October 31, 2015 and 2014.

Management makes judgments regarding the interpretation of tax laws that might be challenged upon an
audit and cause changes to previous estimates of tax liability. In addition, the Company operates within
multiple taxing jurisdictions and is subject to audit in these jurisdictions, as well as by the Internal Revenue
Service.

In management's opinion, adequate provisions for income taxes have been made for fiscal years 2013 through
2015 (all open years).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America ("GAAP") requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

2. Rental Income

The Company leases recreational rights to various organizations with initial terms ranging from three to ten
years. The costs of these depreciable assets are included on the balance sheets under the caption ditches
and reservoirs.

F-8
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The following is a summary of the carrying amounts of property on lease by major class:

October 31, 2015 October 31, 2014
Accumulated Book Accumulated Book
Description Cost Depreciation Value Cost Depreciation Value
Ditches and
Reservoirs $14,778,174 $(5,428,523) $9,349,651 $14,778,174 $(5,212,803) § 9,565,371
Totals $14,778,174 $(5,428,523) $9,349,651 §14,778,174 $(5,212,803) § 9,565,371

Future minimum rental payments to be received on non-cancellable leases are contractually due as follows:

Year Ended October 31,

Amount

2016 $ 201,032
2017 87,939
2018 86,607
2019 92,691
2020 89,867
Thereafter 111,222
Total S 669,358

3. Note Receivable, Related Party

The Company has a non-interest bearing note receivable from the City of Fort Collins, Colorado, which
matures _in 2031. The note requires annual payments of $188,244 and is secured by municipal bonds issued
by the City of Fort Collins, Colorado. The note has been recorded at the present value of future cash flows,
utilizing an imputed interest rate of 5.12%.

55 discussed in No!:e 1, the gain on the sale was deferred, and is reflected as a discount of the note receivable
in the accompanying balance sheets. The Company believes that the note is fully collectible; therefore, no

allowance for uncollectable accounts is deemed to be required. At October 31, 2015 and 2014, the note
receivable, net consisted of the following:

F9
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Fiscal Year October 31,  October 31,
Ending October 31 2015 2014
2013 $ - § 188,224
2014 188,224 188,224
2015 188,224 188,224
2016 188,224 188,224
2017 188,224 188,224
2018 188,224 188,224
Thereafter 1,139,197 1,139,197
Note receivable - gross 2,080,317 2,268,541
Less: discount on note receivable (534,856) (619,354)
Less: deferred gain on sale (1,096,404)  (1,169,991)
449,057 479,196
Note receivable - current portion (net) (31,683) (30,139)
Note receivable - long-term (net) § 417,374 § 449,057

4. Notes Payable
The following is a summary of activity in notes payable for the year ended October 31, 2015:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions _ Retirements  Balance Qne Year

Colorade Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water
Conservation Board), 5% interest,
payable in 40 annual installments of
$77,612, principal and interest,
beginning May 1, 1985, maturing on
May 1, 2024, Collateralized by the one
half interest in Fossil Creek Dam
Structure. $ 599,271 S - § 47,646 S 551,625 S 50,039

Colorado  Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water
Conservation Board), 5% interest,
payable in 40 annual installments of
$67,192, principal and interest,
beginning May 1, 1987, maturing May
1, 2026. Colateralized by an
undivided one half interest in the No.
15 Reservoir dam structure. 595,528 - 37,414 558,114 39,285

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions _ Retirements  Balance One Year
Colorado  Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water
Conversation Board), 5% interest,
payable in 40 annual installments of
$23,574, principal and interest,
beginning May 1, 1989, maturing May
1, 2028. Collateralized by an
undivided one half interest in the
Clarks Lake dam structure. 241,939 & 11,449 230,490 12,022
Colorado Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water
Conservation Board), 5% interest,
payable in 40 annual installments of
$19,847, principal and interest,
beginning June 15, 1992, maturing
June 15, 2031, Collateralized by an
undivided one half interest in the No.
2 dam structure. 223,341 & 8,659 214,682 9,092
Colorado  Department of Natural
Resources (Colorade Water
Conservation Board), 2% interest,
payable in 40 annuat instalments of
$64,378, principal and interest,
beginning May 1, 1996, maturing May
1, 2035. Collateralized by #5 and #6
dam structures. 1,094,318 - 42,475 1,051,843 43,325
Colorado Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water
Conservation Board), 4.03% interest,
payable in 20 annual installments of
$36,889, principal and interest,
beginning August 31, 2000, maturing
August 31, 2019. Collateralized by the
No. 6 Reservoir outlet. 162,911 5 30,276 132,635 31,496
12
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October 31, 2015 and 2014 October 31, 2015 and 2014

Beginning Ending Due Within Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions _Retirements __ Balance One Year Balance Additions _ Retirements  Balance One Year
Colorado  Department of Natural Colorado Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water Resources (Colorado Water
Conservation Board), 4.04% interest, Conservation Board), 2.35% interest,
payable in 20 annual installments of payable in 30 annual installments of
546,061, principal and interest, which  will include principal and
beginning May 1, 2005, maturing on interest, beginning upon expending all
May 1, 2024. Collateralized by Indian approved funds ($1,636,200) or upon
Creek, #4 and #5 Reservoirs. 372,856 30,998 341,858 32,250 project completion, whichever s
B £ Nawral sooner. Collateralized by Reservoir
Ealorado E:pal(‘;'m;ntd 0 :Iu:a No.4. Contains a debt service
esources olorado ater :
. y requirement which  begins upon
C""SZ{‘@‘”;‘UB“’d)'l ?-2:”‘llr;“‘e:es"f payment of first annual payment. 122,758 287,024 409,782 -
payable in 20 annual installments of
$50,572, principal  and intere.st, First National Bank, 2.75% interest,
bengnr;mg Fe:wruzaorz;,cwlgzv ml?m;;g payable in 36 monthly installments of
on February 1, - Collateralized by $1,852 which includes principal and
) ] 34,453 7
Miners Lake Reservoir. 529,329 33,369 495,960 5 interest, beginning February 21,
éoloradi; Department. of ikl 2014, maturing on January 21, 2017.
A (Colorado Water Collateralized by two pickup trucks.
Conservation Board), 2.35% interest, Th: :25 D:m ;: 1;“ :unng ihezyear 4
payable in 27 annual installments of ended October 31, 2015. 48,406 48,406 - -
224f30_1’ p:"o?:a‘be and1 mtezroe:;, First National Bank, 3.75% interest,
mber s ; :
egt'"n_'n”g Teveniar ’1 ot payable in three annual instalments
el .
rcn:[:cr;:uz:: by mFossily Creek of $242,338 which includes principal
v 4 102,620 44724 147,344 and interest, beginning July 15, 2015,
4 2 4 maturing on  July 15, 2017.
Collateralized by the City of Fort
Collins installment agreement, 675,000 - 518,576 156,424 156,424
F-12 F-13
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Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions __ Retirements _ Balance One Year
To provide for short-term cash
requirements, the Company has
established a line of credit agreement
with a local financial institution to
borrow up to $500,000 at 4.25% rate
of interest. The loan is due March 3,
2015, and is secured by the revenues
of the Company. 410,000 5 410,000 -
Totals 5,178,277 § 331,748 $1,219,268 4,290,757 § 408,386
Less current portion 890,483 408,386
Totals 54,287,794 $3,882,371

The annual requirements to amortize all outstanding debt are as follows:

Fiscal Year Total Debt
Ending October 31 Principal Interest Service

2016 S 408,386 § 132,450 § 540,836

2017 262,041 116,195 378,236

2018 272,556 106,533 379,089

2019 282,349 102,601 384,950

2020 258,074 91,159 349,233

2021-2025 1,332,757 284,682 1,617,439

2026-2030 596,367 83,245 679,612

2031-2035 321,101 19,381 340,482

Total $3,733,631 § 936,246 $4,669,877

The Colorado Water Conservation Board loans collateralized by the Fossil Creek and Reservoir No. 4 projects,
totaling $557,126 as of October 31, 2015, are not reflected in the above amortization, as the payments will
not start until the projects are deemed complete.

5. Water Allotment Agreement

The Company entered into an agreement December 5, 1945, with the Northern Colorade Water Conservancy
District for the annual purchase of 40,000 acre feet of water, or any such portion that may be delivered, at
$1.50 per unit. Payment is due May 1 of every year and is secured by an irrevocable levy of assessment on
the capital stock of the Company. Payments shall continue until the delivery system is paid for and
thereafter for operating and maintenance changes.

6. Pension Plan

The Company sponsors a deferred compensation plan for all full-time employees. The Company matches
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employee deferrals up to a maximum of 3% of compensation. The Company’s contribution to the plan was
$5,007 and $6,041 for the years ended October 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

7. Income Taxes

The current and deferred income taxes for the years ended October 31, 2015 and 2014, were as follows:

October 31, 2015

2014
Current income tax expense (benefit) $ - § (295,514)
Deferred income tax (benefit) 379,000 {747,000)
Income tax expense (benefit) $ 379,000 $ (1,042,514)

A reconciliation of the effective tax rates and the statutory U.S. federal income tax rates are as follows:

Years Ended October 31, 2015 2014
Income tax expense at U.S. federal

statutory rates $ - § (295,514)
Deferred tax 379,000 (747,000)
Income tax (benefit) expense $ 379,000 $ (1,042,514)

The only temporary differences between book and tax basis assets and liabilities and their approximate tax
effects that give rise to the net deferred tax liability relate to depreciation expense, represented by a
long-term deferred tax asset of $11,000 and $0, as of October 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

For the year ended October 31, 2014 the Company experienced a net operating loss (“NOL”) on their tax
return. The Company elected, for federal tax purposes, to carryback the NOL two years and carry the
remaining NOL forward for 20 years (expiring in 2034). As of October 31, 2015, the remaining NOL
approximated $1,000,000.

8. Subsequent Events

Management has ev:aluated subsequent events through January 13, 2016 the date that the financial
statemﬁnts were available to be issued. There were no material subsequent events that required recognition
or additional disclosure, except as noted above.
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost for assets purchased and fair market value for donated assets.
All property and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as shown below,
using the straight-line method.

Life
Ditches and reservoirs 50-100 years
Buildings and improvements 10-40 years
Radio and office equipment 10 years
Machinery and equipment 10 years
Transportation equipment 5-10 years

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. When depreciable assets are disposed of, the
cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss is

reflected in earnings.

Included in construction in progress is $1,710,294 spent to date on a reservoir expansion project.

Deferred Gain on Sale of Property

During 2004, the Company sold the Halligan Reservoir to the City of Fort Coltins, a significant shareholder, and
related party, for approximately $5,200,000. The consideration given included approximately $1,000,000 of
cash and a non-interest bearing note receivable with gross payments of approximately $4,200,000 (see Note
3). The initial gain on the sale was deferred because the minimum initial investment by the buyer was less
than the amount required for full recognition. Therefore the gain is being recognized into income as
payments are received using the installment method. The installment method apportions each cash receipt
and principal payment by the buyer between cost recovered and profit. The apportionment is in the same
ratio as total cost and total profit bear to the sales value.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company periodically reviews long-lived assets, including identifiable intangibles, for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. The Company evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets based on estimated
undiscounted future cash flows and provides for impairment if such undiscounted cash flows are insufficient
to recover the carrying amount of the long-lived asset. If impaired, the long-lived asset is written down to its
estimated fair value. In September 2013, the Company incurred significant damage to the Fossil Creek inlet
and diversion structure related to a flooding event. No other assets were identified as impaired as a result of
the September flooding. The amount of the impairment loss for the inlet and diversion was $136,823. The
Company did not receive any insurance proceeds from the event nor do they expect to receive any.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments are cash equivalents, accounts receivable, notes receivable, accounts
payable, and notes payable. The recorded value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and
accounts payable approximate their fair values based on their short-term nature. The recorded values of
notes payable and the note receivable approximate their fair values, as interest approximates market rates.
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Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation leave in varying amounts, depending upon the length of continuous service
the employee has given the Company. The Company’s liability for accrued compensated absences was
$22,595 and $23,352 at October 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

The Company izes revenues from 1ts and water sales as earned. Amounts billed in advance
of the period in which service is rendered are recorded as deferred revenue.

Five members provided approximately 64% of the assessments received by the Company for the years ended
October 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The organizational implications of these concentrations are
recognized by management and the Board.

The Company leases recreational rights to various organizations with initial terms ranging from three to ten
years. The Company has entered into two oil and gas leases ranging from three to five years and received
$460,605 in advance lease payments. This lease income is being amortized over the life of the leases on a
straight line basis. The Company also receives oil and gas royalties from producing wells on the Company’s
land.

Income Taxes

The Company is exempt from income taxes under IRC Section 501(c)(12). The Company retains this
exemption during years that 85% of the Company’s gross income is received from shareholders. During the
years ended October 31, 2013 and 2012, the 85% test was not met. Accordingly, the Company has filed
corporate federal and Colorado state income tax returns for the years ended October 31, 2013 and 2012.

The Company accounts for income taxes under the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC™)
740, Income Taxes, which require recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future
income tax consequences of transactions that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns.
Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the
financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using current enacted tax rates. The provision for
income taxes includes the amount due for the current period and the change in deferred taxes between
periods. The Company provides a valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets when it determines
that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets may not be realized.

The Company evaluates uncertainties related to its tax positions annually. Accordingly, the tax benefit from
an uncertain tax position is recognized only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained
upon eXamination by taxing authorities. The amount that is ultimately sustained for uncertain tax positions
could differ from the amount recognized. The Company believes that it has appropriate support for any tax
positions taken, and as such, does not have any uncertain tax positions that are material to the financial
statements at October 31, 2013 and 2012.

Management makes judgments regarding the interpretation of tax laws that might be challenged upon an
audit and cause changes to previous estimates of tax liability. In addition, the Company operates within
multiple taxing jurisdictions and is subject to audit in these jurisdictions, as well as by the Internal Revenue
Service.

In management’s opinion, adequate provisions for income taxes have been made for fiscal years 2010 through
2013 (all open years).
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confermity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and Liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

2. Rental Income

The Company leases recreational rights to various organizations with initial terms ranging from three to ten
years. The costs of these depreciable assets are included on the balance sheets under the caption ditches
and reservoirs.

The following is a summary of the carrying amounts of property on lease by major class:

October 31, 2013 October 31, 2012
Accumulated Book Accumulated Book
Description Cost Depreciation Value Cost Depreciation Value
Ditches and
Reservoirs 515,062,763 5(5,151,722) $ 9,911,041 $15,062,763 $(4,933,155) 510,129,608
Totals $15,062,763  5(5,151,722) § 9,911,041 $15,062,763 5$(4,933,155) $10,129,608

Future minimum rental payments to be received on non-cancellable leases are contractually due as follows,
as of Octaber 31, 2013:

Year Ended
October 31, Amount
2014 $ 286,932
2015 192,381
2016 80,982
2017 83,739
2018 86,607
Thereafter 299,780
Total $ 1,030,421

3. Note Receivable

The Company has a non-interest bearing note receivable from the City of Fort Collins, Colorado, which
matures in 2031, The note requires annual payments of $188,244 and is secured by municipal bonds issued
by the City of Fort Collins, Colorado. The note has been recorded at the present value of future cash flows,
utilizing an imputed interest rate of 5.12%.
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. Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2013 and 2012 October 31, 2013 and 2012

As discussed in Note 1, the gain on the sale was deferred, and is reflected as a discount of the note receivable

h bal: h The C: beli that th is fully collectible, theref Begiming i i
in the accompanying balance sheets. e Company eves that the note is fully collectible, therefore, no it Reti ts Balance One Y
allowance for uncollectable accounts is deemed to be required. At October 31, 2013 and 2012, the note Balance AddItiors e d e
receivable, net consisted of the following: Colorado Department of Natural
. Resources (Colorado Water
;‘5?( Y;?:;ab » October 31,  October 31, Conservation Board), 5% interest,
~ficing Jctoper 2013 2012 payable in 40 annual installments of
2012 $ -5 188,224 $67,192, principal and interest,
2013 188,224 188,224 beginning May 1, 1987, maturing May
Zg:; :a;;i: :s:gj 1, 2026. Collateralized by an
) ) .- " :
2016 188,224 188,224 undivided ?ne half interest in the No.
2017 188,224 188,224 15 Reservoir dam structure. 665,095 - 33,935 631,160 35,632
Thereafter 1,515,645 1,515,645
Colorado  Department of Natural
Note receivable - gross 2,456,765 2,644,989 Résiireas (Colorado Water
Less: discount on note receivable (708,908) (803,271) Conversation Board), 5% interest,
< s s
Less: deferred gain on sale (1,239,991) _ (1,306,579) N
507,866 535.139 payable in 40. ar.mual 1nstalln:1ents of
$23,574, principal and interest,
Note receivable - current portion (net) (28,670) (27,273) beginning May 1, 1989, maturing May
Note receivable - long-term (net) $ 479,196 § 507,866 1, 2028. Collateralized by an
undivided one half interest in the
4. Notes Payable Clarks Lake dam structure. 263,73 - 10,385 253,388 10,904
The following is a summary of activity in notes payable for the year ended October 31, 2013: Colorado  Department of Natural
Beginning Ending  Due Within Resoifoes;  (Golorada;  iwiaten
Balance Additions _ Retirements _ Balance One Year Conservation Board), 5% interest,
ble in 40 L installments of
Colorado  Department of Natural e & i ""7"“"’ E 3
$19,847, principal and interest,
Resources (Colorado Water - .
3 - beginning June 15, 1992, maturing
Conservation Board), 5% interest, 2
SABETHEAD FRSERITERE o June 15, 2031. Collateralized by an
p7\7la612 in . al:nnula msda len © undivided one half interest in the No.
P61z Fndeal, and Arerest; 2 dam structure. 239,854 5 7,854 232,000 8,247
beginning May 1, 1985, maturing on
May 1, 2024. Collateralized by the one Colorado Department of Natural
half interest in Fossil Creek Dam Resources (Colorado Water
Structure. $ 687,883 § - 0§ 43,225 5 644,658 § 45,387 Conservation Board), 2% interest,
payable in 40 annual instaliments of
$64,378, principal and interest,
beginning May 1, 1996, maturing May
1, 2035. Collateralized by #5 and #6
dam structures. 1,177,619 s 40,826 1,136,793 41,642
1
F-10 F-11
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The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2013 and 2012

Beginning
Balance

Additions __ Retirements

Ending
Balance

Colorado Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water
Conservation Board), 4.03% interest,
payable in 20 annual installments of
$36,889, principal and interest,
beginning August 31, 2000, maturing
August 31, 2019. Collateralized by the
No. 6 Reservoir outlet.

Colorado  Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water
Conservation Board), 4.04% interest,
payable in 20 annual installments of
646,061, principal and interest,
beginning May 1, 2005, maturing on
May 1, 2024. Collateralized by Indian
Creek, #4 and #5 Reservoirs.

Colorado Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water
Conservation Board), 3.25% interest,
payable in 20 annual instaltments of
$50,572, principal and interest,
beginning February 1, 2009, maturing
on February 1, 2027. Collateralized by
Miners Lake Reservoir.

To provide for short-term cash
requirements, the Company has
established a line of credit agreement
with a local financial institution to
borrow up to $500,000 at 4.25% rate
of interest, The loan is due March 3,
2013, and is secured by the revenues
of the Company.

221,163

431,288

592,949

112,000

2 27,976 193,187

= 28,638

402,650

2 31,301

561,648

400,000 452,000 60,000

Due Within
One Year

29,103

29,794

32,318

60,000

Totals

Less current portion
Totals

4,391,624 $ 400,000 S 676,140

54,055,485

336,139

F-12

22

293,027
$3,822,457

4,115,484 § 293,027

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2013 and 2012

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of October 31, 2013, are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Total Debt

Ending October 31 Principal Interest Service
2014 $ 293,027 $§ 153,09 S 446,123
2015 242,296 143,827 386,123
2016 251,961 134,162 386,123
2017 262,041 124,082 386,123
2018 272,556 113,567 386,123
2019-2023 1,380,365 405,501 1,785,866
2024-2028 941,583 253,578 1,195,161
2029-2033 346,659 75,603 422,262
2034-2035 124,994 7,475 132,469
Total $4,115,482 51,410,891 $5,526,373

5. Water Allotment Agreement

The Company entered into an agreement December 5, 1945, with the Northern Colorado Water Conservancy
District for the annual purchase of 40,000 acre feet of water, or any such portion that may be delivered, at
$1.50 per unit. Payment is due May 1 of every year and is secured by an irrevocable levy of assessment on
the capital stock of the Company. Payments shall continue until the delivery system is paid for and
thereafter for operating and maintenance changes.

6. Pension Plan

The Company sponsors a deferred compensation plan for all full-time employees. The Company matches
employee deferrals up ta a maximum of 3% of compensation. The Company’s contribution to the plan was
$4,823 and $5,259 for the years ended October 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

7. Income Taxes

The current and deferred income taxes for the years ended October 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:

October 31, 2013 2012

Current income tax expense $ 183,412 § 156,000

Deferred income tax benefit (5,000) (5,000)

Income tax expense $ 178,412 § 151,000
F-13
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The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2013 and 2012

A reconciliation of the effective tax rates and the statutory U.S. federal income tax rates are as follows:

Year Ended October 31, 2013 2012
Income tax expense at U.S. federal

statutory rates $ 161,412 § 137,000
State income taxes 22,000 19,000
Deferred tax (5,000) (5,000)
Income tax expense S 178,412 S 151,000

The only temporary differences between book and tax basis assets and liabilities and their approximate tax
effects that give rise to the net deferred tax liability relate to depreciation expense, represented by a
long-term deferred tax liability of $23,000 and $21,000, as of October 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

8. Subsequent Events

In November, the Company received an emergency loan from Colorado Water Conservation Board in the
amount of $481,770 for the Fossil Creek inlet and diversion structure emergency repairs. The loan is a 30
year term loan with no interest or principal payments until November 1, 2017. Interest is fixed at 2.35%.

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 18, 2013 the date that the financial
statements were available to be issued. There were no material subsequent events that required recognition
or additional disclosure, except as noted above.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AACM

Anton Cullins Micchell LLP

Accountants & Consuitants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
The North Poudre Irrigation Company

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of The North Poudre Irrigation Company (a nonprofit
corporation) (the “Company”) as of October 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related statements of income and
changes in retained earnings, and cash flows for the years then ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes, the
design, the implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether by fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of The North Poudre Irrigation Company as of October 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

ﬁmfén Collisa Hedibtr £ 472

Greeley, Colorado
December 18, 2013

www.acmilp.com
Northern Colorado Office 3545 West 12th Street, Suite 201 + Greeley, Colorado 80634 + 970,352,1700 + Fax 970.352.1708

Denver Office 17th & Grant Building - 303 East 17th avenu, Suite 600 + Denver, Colorado 80203 - 303.830.1120 - Fax 303.830.8130 f‘:ﬁmg’:
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Balance Sheets

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The North Poudre Irrigation Company

Balance Sheets

Octaber 31, 2014 2013
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents & 62,607 51,526
Assessments receivable 9,084 26,088
Accounts receivable, other 106,500 1,000
Income taxes receivable 425,225 -
Note receivable, related party 30,139 28,670
Accrued interest receivable 65,515 68,532
Prepaid expenses 25,831 22,317
Total current assets 724,901 198,133
Fixed assets, net
Land 528,544 528,544
Priorities, water rights and easements 425,650 425,650
Construction in progress 182,348 1,710,294
Ditches and reservoirs 15,471,603 15,471,603
Buildings and improvements 269,240 269,240
Radio and office equipment 42,695 42,695
Machinery and equipment 566,897 566,897
Transportation equipment 221,215 193,675
Total 17,708,192 19,208,598
Less: accumulated depreciation (6,191,588) (5,961,554)
Total fixed assets, net 11,516,604 13,247,044
Other assets
Note receivable, related party, net
of current portion above 449,057 479,196
Deferred income tax asset 724,000 -
Other assets 17,942 17,942
Total other assets 1,190,999 497,138

Total assets

$ 13,432,504 § 13,942,315

2014 2013

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 92,136 § 25,524

Accrued interest payable 81,710 78,609

Accrued compensated absences 25,446 22,595

Income taxes payable = 25,520

Deferred oil and gas lease income 46,740 105,383

Current portion of notes payable 890,483 293,027
Total current liabilities 1,136,515 550,658
Long-term liabilities

Notes payable, net of current portion above 4,287,794 3,822,457

Deferred oil and gas lease income 27,265 74,005

Deferred income tax liability - 23,000

Security deposit 5,000 5,000
Total long-term liabilities 4,320,059 3,924,462
Total liabilities 5,456,574 4,475,120
Stockholders’ equity

Common stock, $50 par value (10,000 shares authorized and

issued and 10,000 and 9,999.5 shares outstanding, respectively) 500,000 499,975

Additional paid in capital 941,340 834,865

Retained earnings 6,534,590 8,132,355
Total stockholders’ equity 7,975,930 9,467,195

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

$ 13,432,504 $ 13,942,315

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

F-3
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The North Poudre Irrigation Company Statements of Cash Flows

Statements of Operations and Changes in Retained Earnings For the Years Ended October 31, 2014 2013

Cash flows from operating activities
For the Years Ended October 31, 2014 2013 Net income . ) $ (1,597,765) S 328,894
Adjustments to reconcile net income

to net cash flows from operating activities:

P

Operating revenues and gains

Assessments $1,382,243  § 1,294,253 Depreciation 265,994 261,772
Recreational lease revenue 407,733 377,442 (Gain) on sale of fixed assets (3,450) (1,200)
Water sales 159,499 174,269 Loss on abandonment of construction in progress 1,971,521 :
Qil and gas lease revenue 105,383 122,375 Impairment loss on fixed assets - 136,823
Other income 38,199 22,699 Amortization of deferred gain on sale of fixed assets (70,000) (66,588)
Net gain on sales of fixed assets 73,450 67,788 Amortization of deferred oil and gas lease income (105,383) (122,375)

Total operating revenues and gains 2,166,507 2,058,826 Deferred income taxes _ (747,000) 2,000

Decrease (increase) in operating assets:

Operating expenses Assessments receivables 17,004 (18,091)
Salaries and wages 508,587 399,923 Accounts receivable, other 1,000 (1,000)
Repairs, maintenance and supplies 1,421,190 275,371 Income taxes receivable (425,225) -
Depreciation 265,994 261,772 Accrued interest receivable 3,017 4,632
Water purchases and assessments 144,826 115,731 Prepaid expenses (3,514) (1,139)
Insurance 66,926 60,953 Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Accounting and legal fees 119,921 48,394 Accounts payable 66,612 1,823

Gas and oil 56,365 43,987 Income taxes payable (25,520) (52,960)

Payroll taxes 51,655 39,624 Other accrued expenses 5,952 (5,517)

Utilities and telephone 37,941 31,384 Net cash flows from operating activities (646,757) 467,074

Weed control 59,994 23,534

Employee benefits 47,059 18,224 Cash flow fram investing activities

Office and other expenses 19,522 17,181 Payments received for note receivable 98,670 93,861

Employee mileage 8,869 16,675 Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 3,850 1,200

Directors' fees and expense 13,942 11,410 Purchases of fixed assets (443,575) (250,372)

Engineering and other expense 8,970 4,740 ; . 3 o

Vehicle and other taxes 1,253 1,280 Net cash flows from investing activities (341,055) (155,311)

Loss on abandonment of construction in progress 1,971,521 - Cash flow from financing activities

Impairment loss on fixed assets = 136,823 Proceeds from short-term borrowing 855,000 400,000
Total operating expenses 4,804,535 1,507,106 Repayment of short-term borrowing (505,000) (452,000)

Proceeds from long-term borrowing 900,378 -

(Loss) income from operations (2,638,028) 551,720 Repayment of long-term debt (251,485) (224,140)

Other income (expenses) Net cash flows from financing activities 998,893 (276,140)
Interest income 89,312 90,595 7 R

1,0
0il and gas royalty fhcoime 68,078 26,142 i Net change in cash and cash equivalents 11,081 35,623
Interest expense (159,641) (159,151) I Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 51,526 15,903

Total other income (expenses) (2,251) (42,414) ‘ Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 62,607 § 51,526

Net (loss) income before income taxes (2,640,279) 509,306 v Supplemental cash flow information:

Income tax (benefit) expense (1,042,514) 180,412 Cash paid during the year for interest $ 156,540 § 163,911

Cash paid during the year for income taxes S 155,231 § 231,372

Net (loss) income (1,597,765) 328,894 - -

Supplemental noncash flow information:
Retained earnings at beginning of year 8,132,355 7,803,461 Fixed assets acquired through issuance of debt $ 63,900 $ -
Retained earnings at end of year $ 6,534,590 S 8,132,355 Sale of treasury stock through acceunts re;e[vable _ S 106.500 : $ =
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
F-4 F-5
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The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2014 and 2013

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

This summary of The North Poudre Irrigation Company’s (the “"Company”) signiﬁ'c_ant accounting poli;l_es is to
assist the reader in interpreting the financial statements and other data in this rep_nrt. The policies are
considered essential and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.

Operations

The Company was incorporated January 1, 1901, under the laws of the State of Colorado to provide irrigation
water for agricultural uses to its approximately 600 stockhalders in the Northern Colorado Front Range. The
Company’s business office and maintenance facilities are located in Wellington, Colorado.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments available for current use with an original maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Assessments and Other Receivables

Assessments and other receivables are recorded at the invoiced amount. The Company prov_ides an
allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the estimated uncollectible amounts. The Company’s estimate is
based on historical collection experience and a review of the current status of accounts recewable. It is
reasonably possible that the Company’s estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts will change. The
Company has determined that no allowance is necessary as of October 31, 2014 and 2013.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk, consist of
cash, cash equivalents and receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents are maintained at financial institutions and, at times, balances may exceed
federally insured limits. The Company has never experienced any losses related to these balances. The
Company had no amounts on deposit in excess of federally insured limits at October 31, 2014 and 2013.
Credit risk with respect to receivables is considered low based on past collection experience.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost for assets purchased and fair market value for donated assets.

All property and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as shown below,
using the straight-line method.

Life
Ditches and reservoirs 50-100 years
Buildings and improvements 10-40 years
Radio and office equipment 10 years
Machinery and equipment 10 years
Transportation equipment 5-10 years

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. When depreciable assets are disposed of, the

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2014 and 2013

cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss is
reflected in earnings.

Included in construction in progress is $43,751 for the construction of the Fossil Creek Inlet and $138,597 for
the rehabilitation of Reservoir No. 4,

During the year ended October 31, 2014 the Company abandoned construction in progress project of the
expansion of Halligan Reservoir which resulted in a loss of abandonment of $1 ,971,521.

Deferred Gain on Sale of Property

During 2004, the Company sold the Halligan Reservoir to the City of Fort Collins, a significant stockholder, and
related party, for approximately $5,200,000. The consideration given included approximately $1,000,000 of
cash and a non-interest bearing note receivable with gross payments of approximately $4,200,000 (see Note
3). The initial gain on the sale was deferred because the minimum initial investment by the buyer was less
than the amount required for full recognition. Therefore the gain is being recognized into income as
payments are received using the installment method. The installment method apportions each cash receipt
and principal payment by the buyer between cost recovered and profit. The apportionment is in the same
ratio as total cost and total profit bear to the sales value.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company periodically réviews long-lived assets, including identifiable intangibles, for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. The Company evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets based on estimated
undiscounted future cash flows and provides for impairment if such undiscounted cash flows are insufficient
to recover the carrying amount of the long-lived asset. If impaired, the long-lived asset is written down to its
estimated fair value. In September 2013, the Company incurred significant damage to the Fossil Creek inlet
and diversion structure related to a flooding event. No other assets were identified as impaired as a result of
the September flooding. The amount of the impairment loss for the inlet and diversion was $136,823. The
Company did not receive any insurance proceeds from the event nor do they expect to receive any. No
indicatians of impairment were identified during the year ended October 31, 2014.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments are cash equivalents, accounts receivable, notes receivable, accounts
payable, and notes payable. The recorded value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and
accounts payable approximate their fair values based on their short-term nature. The recorded values of
notes payable and the note receivable approximate their fair values, as interest approximates market rates,

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation leave in varying amounts, depending upon the length of continuous service
the employee has given the Company. The Company's liability for accrued compensated absences was.
$25,446 and $22,595 at October 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recagnizes revenues from assessments and water sales as earned. Amounts bitled in advance
of the period in which service is rendered are recorded as deferred revenue.

Five members provided approximately 64% of the assessments received by the Company for the years ended

F7
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The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2014 and 2013

October 31, 2014 and 2013. The organizational implications of these concentrations are recognized by
management and the Board.

The Company leases recreational rights to various organizations with initial terms ranging from three to ten
years. The Company has entered into two oil and gas leases ranging from three to five years and received
$460,605 in advance lease payments. This lease income is being amortized over the life of the leases on a
straight line basis. The Company also receives oil and gas royalties from producing wells on the Company’'s
land.

Income Taxes

The Company is exempt from income taxes under IRC Section 501(c)(12). The Company retains this
exemption during years that 85% of the Company’s gross income is received from stockholders. During the
years ended October 31, 2014 and 2013, the 85% test was not met. Accordingly, the Company has filed
corporate federal and Colorado state income tax returns for the years ended October 31, 2014 and 2013.

The Company accounts for income taxes under the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (*ASC”)
740, Income Taxes, which require recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future
income tax consequences of transactions that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns.
Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the
financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using current enacted tax rates. The provision for
income taxes includes the amount due for the current period and the change in deferred taxes between
periods. The Company provides a valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets when it determines
that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets may not be realized.

The Company evaluates uncertainties related to its tax positions annually. Accordingly, the tax benefit from
an uncertain tax position is recognized only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained
upon examination by taxing authorities. The amount that is ultimately sustained for uncertain tax positions
could differ from the amount recognized. The Company believes that it has appropriate support for any tax
positions taken, and as such, does not have any uncertain tax positions that are material to the financial
statements at October 31, 2014 and 2013.

Management makes judgments regarding the interpretation of tax laws that might be challenged upon an
audit and cause changes to previous estimates of tax liability. In addition, the Company operates within
multiple taxing jurisdictions and is subject to audit in these jurisdictions, as well as by the Internal Revenue
Service.

In management’s opinion, adequate provisions for income taxes have been made for fiscal years 2012 through
2014 (all open years).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America ("GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

2. Rental Income

The Company leases recreational rights to various organizations with initial terms ranging from three to ten
years. The costs of these depreciable assets are included on the balance sheets under the caption ditches

F-8
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October 31, 2014 and 2013

and reservoirs.

The following is a summary of the carrying amounts of property on lease by major class:

October 31, 2014 October 31, 2013
Accumulated Book Accumulated Book
Description Cost Depreciation Value Cost. Depreciation Value
Ditches and
Reservoirs $14,778,174 5 (5,212,803) §9,565,371 $15,062,763 $(5,151,722) § 9,911,041
Totals $ 14,778,174 $(5,212,803) $9,565,371 515,062,763 $(5,151,722) S 9,911,041

Future minimum rental payments to be received on non-cancellable leases are contractually due as follows:

Year Ended
October 31, Amount
2015 $ 312,431
2016 201,032
2017 87,939
2018 86,607
2019 92,691
Thereafter 207,089
Total $ 987,789

3. Note Receivable

The Company has a non-interest bearing note receivable from the City of Fort Collins, Colorado, which
matures in 2031. The note requires annual payments of $188,244 and is secured by municipal bonds issued
by the City of Fort Collins, Colorado. The note has been recorded at the present value of future cash flows,
utilizing an imputed interest rate of 5.12%.

As discussed in Note 1, the gain on the sale was deferred, and is reflected as a discount of the note receivable
in the accompanying balance sheets. The Company believes that the note is fully collectible; therefore, no
allowance for uncollectable accounts is deemed to be required. At October 31, 2014 and 2013, the note
receivable, net consisted of the following:
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The North Poudre Irrigation Company The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements Notes to Financial Statements
October 31, 2014 and 2013 October 31, 2014 and 2013
Fiscal Year October 31,  October 31, Beginning Ending Due Within
Ending October 31 2014 2013 Balance Additions  Retirements Balance One Year
2013 $ - $ 188,224 Colorado Department of Natural
2014 188,224 188,224 Resources (Colorado Water
;gl: 155:;2: ::g:ii: Conservation Board), 5% interest,
2017 188,224 188,224 payable in 40 annual installments of
2018 188,224 188,224 $67,192, principal and interest,
Thereafter 1,327,421 1,327,421 beginning May 1, 1987, maturing May
Note receivable - gross 2,268,541 2,456,765 1, 2026.  Collateralized by an
Less: discount on note receivable (619,354) (708,908) undivided one half interest in the No.
Less: deferred gain on sale (1,169,991)  (1,239,991) 15 Reservoir dam structure. 631,160 . 35,632 595,528 37,414
479,196 507,866
Note receivable - current portion (net) (30,139) (28,670) Colorado  Department of = Natural
Note receivable - long-term (net) $ 449,057 5 479,196 Resourees tGolraco . Water
Conversation Board), 5% interest,
4. Notes Payable payable in 40 annual installments of
$23,574, principal and interest,
The following is a summary of activity in notes payable for the year ended October 31, 2014: beginning May 1, 1989, maturing May
X L 1, 2028, Collateralized by an
Beginning - ) Ending:  Dusikhin undivided one half interest in the
Balance Additions  Retirements Balance One Year
Clarks Lake dam structure. 253,388 - 11,449 241,939 11,449
Colorado  Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water Colorado Department of Natural
Conservation Board), 5% interest, Resources (Colorado Water
payable in 40 annual installments of Conservation Board), 5% interest,
§77,612, principal and interest, payable in 40 annual installments of
beginning May 1, 1985, maturing on $19,847, principal and interest,
May 1, 2024. Collateralized by the one beginning June 15, 1992, maturing
half interest in Fossil Creek Dam June 15, 2031. Collateralized by an
Structure, $ 644,658 - § 45,387 § 599,271 § 47,656 undivided one half interest in the No.
2 dam structure. 232,000 - 8,659 223,341 8,659
Colorado Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water
Conservation Board), 2% interest,
payable in 40 annual instaliments of
564,378, principal and interest,
beginning May 1, 1996, maturing May
1, 2035, Collateralized by #5 and #6
dam structures. 1,136,793 E 42,475 1,094,318 42,475
12
F-10 F-11
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The North Poudre Irrigation Company

The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2014 and 2013

October 31, 2014 and 2013

Beginning Ending Due Within Colorado Department of Natural
Balance Additions  Retirements Balance One Year Resources (Colorado Water
Colorado Department of Natural Conservation Board), 2.35% interest,
Resources (Colorado Water payable in 30 annual installments of
Conservation Board), 4.03% interest, which  will include principat and
payable in 20 annual installments of interest, beginning upon expending all
$36,889, principal and interest, approved funds ($1,636,200) or upon
beginning August 31, 2000, maturing project completion, whichever is
August 31, 2019. Collateralized by the sooner. Collateralized by Reservoir
No. 6 Reservoir outlet. 193,187 - 30,276 162,911 30,276 No.4, Contains a debt service
requirement which  begins upon
Colorado Department of Natural payment of first annual payment, 122,758 122,758
Resources (Colorado Water
Conservation Board), 4.04% interest, First National Bank, 2.75% interest,
payable in 20 annual installments of payable in 36 monthly installments of
546,061, principal and interest, $1,852 which includes principal and
beginning May 1, 2005, maturing on interest, beginning February 21,
May 1, 2024. Collateralized by Indian 2014, maturing on January 21, 2017.
Creek, #4 and #5 Reservairs. 402,650 - 29,794 372,856 30,998 Collateralized by two pickup trucks. - 63,900 15,494 48,406 21,161
Colorado  Department of Natural First National Bank, 3.75% interest,
Resources {Colorado Water payable in three annual installments
Conservation Board), 3.25% interest, of $242,338 which includes principal
payable in 20 annual installments of and interest, beginning July 15, 2015,
$50,572, principal and interest, maturing  on July 15, 2017.
beginning February 1, 2009, maturing Collateralized by the City of Fort
on February 1, 2027. Collateralized by Collins installment agreement. 675,000 675,000 217,026
Miners Lake Reservoir, 561,648 = 32,319 529,329 33,369
To provide for short-term cash
Colorado Department of Natural requirements, the Company has
Resources (Colorado Water established a line of credit agreement
Conservation Board), 2.35% interest, with a local financial institution to
payable in 27 annual installments of borrow up to $500,000 at 4.25% rate
$24,301, principal and interest, of interest. The loan is due March 3,
beginning  November 1, 2017, 2015, and is secured by the revenues
maturing on November 1, 2043. of the Company. 60,000 855,000 505,000 410,000 410,000
;:SZ:::‘_ZEd by  Fossil Creek ) i i 102,620 . Totals 4,115,484 $1,819,278 § 756,485 5,178,277 § 890,483
Less current portion 293,027 890,483
Totals $3,822,457 $4,287,794
F-12 F-13
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The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2014 and 2013

The annual requirements to amortize all outstanding debt are as follows:

Fiscal Year Total Debt
Ending October 31 Principal Interest Service

2015 $ 890,483 § 170,205 §$1,060,688

2016 498,876 151,812 650,688

2017 513,325 144,159 657,484

2018 285,840 124,585 410,425

2019 295,946 113,306 409,252

2020-2024 1,472,328 395,200 1,867,528

2025-2029 794,529 146,979 941,508

2030-2034 364,666 50,858 415,524

2035-203% 62,284 1,262 63,546

Total $5,178,277 $1,298,366 $6,476,643

5. Water Allotment Agreement

The Company entered into an agreement December 5, 1945, with the Northern Colorado Water Conservancy
District for the annual purchase of 40,000 acre feet of water, or any such portion that may be delivered, at
$1.50 per unit. Payment is due May 1 of every year and is secured by an irrevocable levy of assessment on
the capital stock of the Company. Payments shall continue until the delivery system is paid for and
thereafter for operating and maintenance changes.

6. Pension Plan

The Company sponsors a deferred compensation plan for all full-time employees. The Company matches
employee deferrals up to a maximum of 3% of compensation. The Company’s contribution to the plan was
$6,041 and $4,823 for the years ended October 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

7. Income Taxes

The current and deferred income taxes for the years ended October 31, 2014 and 2013, were as follows:

October 31, 2014 2013
Current income tax expense (benefit) $ (295,514) S 185,412
Deferred income tax (benefit) (747,000) (5,000)
Income tax expense (benefit) $(1,042,514) S 180,412
F-14
26
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The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2014 and 2013

A reconciliation of the effective tax rates and the statutory U.S. federal income tax rates are as follows:

Year Ended Octcber 31, 2014 2013

Income tax expense at U.S. federal

statutory rates $
State income taxes
Deferred tax

(295,514) S 163,412

- 22,000
(747,000) (5,000)
$(1,042,514) $ 180,412

Income tax (benefit) expense

The only temporary differences between book and tax basis assets and liabilities and thei il

orary their approximate tax
effects that give rise to thq net deferred tax liability relate to depreciation expense, I‘e;fesented by a
long-term deferred tax liability of $-0- and $23,000, as of October 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

For the year ended October 31, 2014 the Company experienced a net operating loss (“NOL™) on their tax

return. The Company elected, for federal tax purposes, to carryback the NOL twe years and carry the

remaining NOL forward for 20 years (expiring in 2034). Thi i i i
b Ll L (expiring ) is resulted in an income tax benefit of

8. Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 10, 2014 the date i i

- that the financial
statements were available to be issued. There were no material subse u’entevents that i iti
or additional disclosure, except as noted above. 9 BRI scranttion

F-15
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The North Poudre Irrigation Company A—AHEA@(M—;.WE
Contents A h

Independent Auditor’s Report
Independent Auditor’s Report : J J

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Wellington, Colorado

Basic Financial Statements

Balance Sheets F-2-3

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of The North Poudre Irrigation Company (a nonprofit

corporation) {the "Company”) as of October 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related statements of operations and
changes in retained earnings, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial

Statements of Cash Flows F-5 statements.

Statements of Operations and Changes in Retained Earnings F-4

Notes to Financial Statements F6-15 Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in -
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, the implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether by fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of The North Poudre Irrigation Company as of October 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of

its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Bnha (s Priklel! L2

Greeley, Colorado
January 13, 2016 hemter | Boukder® oo (0 aako L rsan

www.acmllp.com

Northern Colorado Office 3545 West 12th Street, Suite 201 + Greeley, Colorado 80634 - 970.352.1700 - Fax 970.352.1708
Denver Office 17th & Grant Building - 303 East 17th avenue, Suite 600 + Denver, Colorado 80203 * 303.830.1120 * Fax 303.830.8130
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The North Poudre Irrigation Company The North Poudre Irrigation Company

Balance Sheets Balance Sheets

October 31, 2015 2014 2015 2014
Assets
Current assets

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents $ 332,490 S 62,607 Accounts payable S 86,738 92,136
Assessments receivable 17,368 9,084 Accrued interest payable 71,077 81,710
Accounts receivable, other - 106,500 Accrued compensated absences 29,853 25,446
Income taxes receivable - 425,225 Deferred oil and gas lease income, net of current portion 27,265 46,740
Note receivable, related party 31,683 30,139 Current portion of notes payable 408,386 890,483
Accrued interest receivable 65,477 65,515 ot 623 319 1,136,515
Bhehaid e ienas 26,024 25,831 Total current liabilities s ,136,

Long-term liabilities
Total current assets 473,042 724,901 8
. - Notes payable, net of current portion 3,882,371 4,287,794
Property and equipment, net Deferred oil and gas lease income, net of current portion - 27,265
Land 528,544 528,544 Deferred income tax liability 11,000 N
Priorities, water rights and easements 425,650 425,650 Security deposit 5,000 5,000
Construction in progress 720,083 182,348 bl 3,898,371 4,320,059
Ditches and reservoirs 15,471,603 15,471,603 Totel longterm iabllitles — ;
Buildings and improvements 346,552 269,240 Total liabilities 4,521,690 5,456,574
Radio and office equipment 42,695 42,695 i .
Machinery and equipment 566,897 566,897 Btocknolders aquity .
Transpartation equipment 221,215 221,215 Common stock, $50 par value (10,000 shares aut_horlzed and.
issued and 10,000 and 10,000 shares outstanding, respectively) 500,000 500,000
18,323,239 17,708,192 Additional paid in capital 941,340 941,340
Less: accumulated depreciation (6,470,492) (6,191,588) Retained earnings 7,154,075 6,534,590

Total property and equipment, net 11,852,747 11,516,604 Total stockholders' equity 8,595,415 7,975,930

Other assets
Note receivable, related party, net

of current portion 417,374 449,057
Deferred income tax asset 356,000 724,000
Other assets 17,942 17,942
ACtaliotherssets 791,316 1,120,999 Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 13,117,105 § 13,432,504
Total assets $ 13,117,105 $ 13,432,504 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
F-2 B
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The North Poudre Irrigation Company

Statements of Operations and Changes in Retained Earnings

Ended October 31, 2015 2014
Operating revenues and gains
Assessments $ 2,032,904 S 1,382,243
Water sales 419,273 407,733
Recreational lease revenue 768,901 159,499
0il and gas lease revenue 46,740 105,383
Other income 114,874 38,199
Net gain on sales of property and equipment 73,587 73,450
Total operating revenues and gains 3,456,279 2,166,507
Operating expenses
Repairs, maintenance and supplies 749,413 1,421,190
Salaries and wages 541,090 508,587
Depreciation 278,904 265,994
Water purchases and assessments 200,950 144,826
Accounting and legal fees 172,388 119,921
Office and other expenses 116,817 19,522
Insurance 67,855 66,926
Weed control 59,698 59,994
Payroll taxes 53,044 51,655
Employee benefits 44,039 47,059
Utilities and telephone 33,499 37,941
Gas and oil 32,996 56,365
Employee mileage 25,812 8,869
Directors' fees and expense 11,902 13,942
Vehicle and other taxes 1,181 1,253
Engineering and other expense 593 8,970
Loss on abandonment of construction in progress - 1,971,521
Total operating expenses 2,390,181 4,804,535
Income (Loss) from operations 1,066,098 (2,638,028)
Other income (expenses)
Interest income 84,460 89,312
Oil and gas royalty income 11,711 68,078
Interest expense (163,784) (159,641)
Total other (expenses) (67,613) (2,251)
Net income (loss) before income taxes 998,485 (2,640,279)
Income tax expense (benefit) 379,000 (1,042,514)
Net income (loss) 619,485 (1,597,765)
Retained earnings at beginning of year 6,534,590 8,132,355

Retained earnings at end of year

$ 7,154,075 § 6,534,590

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The North Poudre Irrigation Company

Statements of Cash Flows

Ended October 31,

2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss) $ 619,485 $ (1,597,765)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss)
to net cash flows from operating activities:
Depreciation 278,904 265,994
(Gain) on sale of fixed assets - (3,450)
Loss on abandonment of construction in progress - 1,971,521
Amortization of deferred gain on sale of fixed assets (73,587) (70,000)
Amortization of deferred oil and gas lease income (46,740) (105,383)
Deferred income taxes 379,000 (747,000)
Decrease (increase) in operating assets:
Assessments receivables (8,284) 17,004
Accounts receivable, other = 1,000
Income taxes receivable 425,225 (425,225)
Accrued interest receivable 38 3,017
Prepaid expenses (193) (3,514)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable (5,398) 66,612
Income taxes payable - (25,520)
Other accrued expenses (6,226) 5,952
Net cash flows from operating activities 1,562,224 (646,757)
Cash flow from investing activities
Payments received for note receivable 103,726 98,670
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 2 3,850
Purchases of fixed assets (615,047) (443,575)
Net cash flows from investing activities (511,321) (341,055)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from short-term borrowing - 855,000
Repayment of short-term borrowing (410,000) (505,000)
Proceeds from the sale of common stock 106,500 -
Proceeds from long-term borrowing 331,747 900,378
Repayment of long-term debt (809,267) (251,485)
Net cash flows from financing activities (781,020) 998,893
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 269,883 11,081
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 62,607 51,526
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 332,490 S 62,607
Supplemental cash flow information;
Cash paid during the year for interest S 163,822 § 163,911
Cash paid during the year for income taxes S - 5 231,372
Supplemental noncash flow information:
Fixed assets acquired through issuance of debt S (63,900) $§ -
Sale of treasury stock through accounts receivable S {106,500) § -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2015 and 2014

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

This summary of The North Poudre Irrigation Company’s (the "Company”) signific_ant accounting palipies is to
assist the reader in interpreting the financial statements and other data in 1h!s repprt. The policies are
considered essential and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.
Operations

The Company was incorporated January 1, 1901, under the laws of the State of Colorado to provide irrigation
water for agricultural uses to its approximately 600 stockholders in the Northern Colorado Front Range. The
Company’s business office and maintenance facilities are located in Wellington, Colorado.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments available for current use with an original maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

A and Other Receivabl

Assessments and other receivables are recorded at the invoiced amount. The Company pm\{ides an
allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the estimated uncollectible amounts. The Company’s_estlmate is
based on historical collection experience and a review of the current status of accounts recewame. It is
reasonably possible that the Company’s estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts will change. The
Company has determined that no allowance is necessary as of October 31, 2015 and 2014.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk, consist of
cash, cash equivalents and receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents are maintained at financial institutions and, at times, balances may exceed
federally insured limits. The Company has never experienced any losses related to these balances. The
Company had no amounts on deposit in excess of federally insured limits at October 31, 2015 and 2014.
Credit risk with respect to receivables is considered low based on past collection experience.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost for assets purchased and fair market value for donated assets.

All property and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as shown below,
using the straight-line method.

Life
Ditches and reservoirs 50-100 years
Buildings and improvements 10-40 years
Radio and office equipment 10 years
Machinery and equipment 10 years
Transportation equipment 5-10 years

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. When depreciable assets are disposed of, the

F6
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The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2015 and 2014

cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss is
reflected in earnings.

Included in construction in progress as of October 31, 2015 and 2014 is 565,817 and $43,751, respectively, for
the construction of the Fossil Creek Inlet, $485,729 and $1 38,597, respectively, for the rehabilitation of
Reservoir No. 4, $132,502 and 50, respectively for the Boxelder flood dams and $36,035 and $0, respectively,
for other projects.

During the year ended October 31, 2014 the Company abandoned construction in progress project of the
expansion of Halligan Reservoir which resulted in a loss of abandonment of $1,971,521.

Deferred Gain on Sale of Property

During 2004, the Company sold the Halligan Reservoir to the City of Fort Collins, a significant stockholder, and
related party, for approximately $5,200,000. The consideration given included approximately $1,000,000 of
cash and a non-interest bearing note receivable with gross payments of approximately $4,200,000 (see Note
3). The initial gain on the sale was deferred because the minimum initial investment by the buyer was less
than the amount required for full recognition. Therefore the gain is being recognized into income as
payments are received using the installment method. The installment method apportions each cash receipt
and principal payment by the buyer between cost recovered and profit. The apportionment is in the same
ratio as total cost and total profit bear to the sales value.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company periodically reviews long-lived assets, including identifiable intangibles, for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. The Company evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets based on estimated
undiscounted future cash flows and provides for impairment if such undiscounted cash flows are insufficient
to recover the carrying amount of the long-lived asset. If im paired, the long-lived asset is written down to its
estimated fair value. No indications of impairment were identified during the year ended October 31,2015

or 2014.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments are cash equivalents, accounts receivable, notes receivable, accounts
payable, and notes payable. The recorded value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and
accounts payable approximate their fair values based on their short-term nature. The recorded values of
notes payable and the note receivable approximate their fair values, as interest approximates market rates.

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation leave in varying amounts, depending upon the length of continuous service
the employee has given the Company. The Company’s liability for accrued compensated absences was
$29,853 and $25,446 at October 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively,

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenues from assessments and water sales as earned. Amounts billed in advance
of the period in which service is rendered are recorded as deferred revenue.

Two members provided approximately 36% and 47% (each individually more than 10%) of the assessments
received by the Company for the years ended October 31 » 2015 and 2014, respectively. The organizational
F-7
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The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2015 and 2014

implications of these concentrations are recognized by management and the Board.

The Company leases recreational rights to various organizations with initial terms ranging from three to ten
years, The Company has entered into two oil and gas leases ranging from three to five years and received
5460,605 in advance lease payments. This lease income is being amortized over the life of the leases on a
straight line basis. The Company also receives oil and gas royalties from producing wells on the Company’s
land.

Income Taxes

The Company is exempt from income taxes under IRC Section 501(c)(12). The Company retains this
exemption during years that 85% of the Company’s gross income is received from stockholders. During the
years ended October 31, 2015 and 2014, the 85% test was not met. Accordingly, the Company has filed
corporate federal and Colorado state income tax returns for the years ended October 31, 2015 and 2014.

The Company accounts for income taxes under the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC”)
740, Income Taxes, which require recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future
income tax consequences of transactions that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns.
Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the
financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using current enacted tax rates. The provision for
income taxes includes the amount due for the current period and the change in deferred taxes between
periods. The Company provides a valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets when it determines
that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets may not be realized.

The Company evaluates uncertainties related to its tax positions annually. Accordingly, the tax benefit from
an uncertain tax position is recognized only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained
upon examination by taxing authorities. The amount that is ultimately sustained for uncertain tax positions
could differ from the amount recognized. The Company believes that it has appropriate support for any tax
positions taken, and as such, does not have any uncertain tax positions that are material to the financial
statements at October 31, 2015 and 2014.

Management makes judgments regarding the interpretation of tax laws that might be challenged upon an
audit and cause changes to previous estimates of tax liability. In addition, the Company operates within
multiple taxing jurisdictions and is subject to audit in these jurisdictions, as well as by the Internal Revenue
Service.

In management's opinion, adequate provisions for income taxes have been made for fiscal years 2013 through
2015 (all open years).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America ("GAAP") requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

2. Rental Income

The Company leases recreational rights to various organizations with initial terms ranging from three to ten
years. The costs of these depreciable assets are included on the balance sheets under the caption ditches
and reservoirs.

F-8
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The North Poudre Irrigation Company
Notes to Financial Statements

October 31, 2015 and 2014

The following is a summary of the carrying amounts of property on lease by major class:

October 31, 2015 October 31, 2014
Accumulated Book Accumulated Book
Description Cost Depreciation Value Cost Depreciation Value
Ditches and
Reservoirs $14,778,174 $(5,428,523) $9,349,651 $14,778,174 $(5,212,803) § 9,565,371
Totals $14,778,174 $(5,428,523) $9,349,651 §14,778,174 $(5,212,803) § 9,565,371

Future minimum rental payments to be received on non-cancellable leases are contractually due as follows:

Year Ended October 31,

Amount

2016 $ 201,032
2017 87,939
2018 86,607
2019 92,691
2020 89,867
Thereafter 111,222
Total S 669,358

3. Note Receivable, Related Party

The Company has a non-interest bearing note receivable from the City of Fort Collins, Colorado, which
matures _in 2031. The note requires annual payments of $188,244 and is secured by municipal bonds issued
by the City of Fort Collins, Colorado. The note has been recorded at the present value of future cash flows,
utilizing an imputed interest rate of 5.12%.

55 discussed in No!:e 1, the gain on the sale was deferred, and is reflected as a discount of the note receivable
in the accompanying balance sheets. The Company believes that the note is fully collectible; therefore, no

allowance for uncollectable accounts is deemed to be required. At October 31, 2015 and 2014, the note
receivable, net consisted of the following:

F9
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Fiscal Year October 31,  October 31,
Ending October 31 2015 2014
2013 $ - § 188,224
2014 188,224 188,224
2015 188,224 188,224
2016 188,224 188,224
2017 188,224 188,224
2018 188,224 188,224
Thereafter 1,139,197 1,139,197
Note receivable - gross 2,080,317 2,268,541
Less: discount on note receivable (534,856) (619,354)
Less: deferred gain on sale (1,096,404)  (1,169,991)
449,057 479,196
Note receivable - current portion (net) (31,683) (30,139)
Note receivable - long-term (net) § 417,374 § 449,057

4. Notes Payable
The following is a summary of activity in notes payable for the year ended October 31, 2015:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions _ Retirements  Balance Qne Year

Colorade Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water
Conservation Board), 5% interest,
payable in 40 annual installments of
$77,612, principal and interest,
beginning May 1, 1985, maturing on
May 1, 2024, Collateralized by the one
half interest in Fossil Creek Dam
Structure. $ 599,271 S - § 47,646 S 551,625 S 50,039

Colorado  Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water
Conservation Board), 5% interest,
payable in 40 annual installments of
$67,192, principal and interest,
beginning May 1, 1987, maturing May
1, 2026. Colateralized by an
undivided one half interest in the No.
15 Reservoir dam structure. 595,528 - 37,414 558,114 39,285

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions _ Retirements  Balance One Year
Colorado  Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water
Conversation Board), 5% interest,
payable in 40 annual installments of
$23,574, principal and interest,
beginning May 1, 1989, maturing May
1, 2028. Collateralized by an
undivided one half interest in the
Clarks Lake dam structure. 241,939 & 11,449 230,490 12,022
Colorado Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water
Conservation Board), 5% interest,
payable in 40 annual installments of
$19,847, principal and interest,
beginning June 15, 1992, maturing
June 15, 2031, Collateralized by an
undivided one half interest in the No.
2 dam structure. 223,341 & 8,659 214,682 9,092
Colorado  Department of Natural
Resources (Colorade Water
Conservation Board), 2% interest,
payable in 40 annuat instalments of
$64,378, principal and interest,
beginning May 1, 1996, maturing May
1, 2035. Collateralized by #5 and #6
dam structures. 1,094,318 - 42,475 1,051,843 43,325
Colorado Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water
Conservation Board), 4.03% interest,
payable in 20 annual installments of
$36,889, principal and interest,
beginning August 31, 2000, maturing
August 31, 2019. Collateralized by the
No. 6 Reservoir outlet. 162,911 5 30,276 132,635 31,496
12
F-11
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Beginning Ending Due Within Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions _Retirements __ Balance One Year Balance Additions _ Retirements  Balance One Year
Colorado  Department of Natural Colorado Department of Natural
Resources (Colorado Water Resources (Colorado Water
Conservation Board), 4.04% interest, Conservation Board), 2.35% interest,
payable in 20 annual installments of payable in 30 annual installments of
546,061, principal and interest, which  will include principal and
beginning May 1, 2005, maturing on interest, beginning upon expending all
May 1, 2024. Collateralized by Indian approved funds ($1,636,200) or upon
Creek, #4 and #5 Reservoirs. 372,856 30,998 341,858 32,250 project completion, whichever s
B £ Nawral sooner. Collateralized by Reservoir
Ealorado E:pal(‘;'m;ntd 0 :Iu:a No.4. Contains a debt service
esources olorado ater :
. y requirement which  begins upon
C""SZ{‘@‘”;‘UB“’d)'l ?-2:”‘llr;“‘e:es"f payment of first annual payment. 122,758 287,024 409,782 -
payable in 20 annual installments of
$50,572, principal  and intere.st, First National Bank, 2.75% interest,
bengnr;mg Fe:wruzaorz;,cwlgzv ml?m;;g payable in 36 monthly installments of
on February 1, - Collateralized by $1,852 which includes principal and
) ] 34,453 7
Miners Lake Reservoir. 529,329 33,369 495,960 5 interest, beginning February 21,
éoloradi; Department. of ikl 2014, maturing on January 21, 2017.
A (Colorado Water Collateralized by two pickup trucks.
Conservation Board), 2.35% interest, Th: :25 D:m ;: 1;“ :unng ihezyear 4
payable in 27 annual installments of ended October 31, 2015. 48,406 48,406 - -
224f30_1’ p:"o?:a‘be and1 mtezroe:;, First National Bank, 3.75% interest,
mber s ; :
egt'"n_'n”g Teveniar ’1 ot payable in three annual instalments
el .
rcn:[:cr;:uz:: by mFossily Creek of $242,338 which includes principal
v 4 102,620 44724 147,344 and interest, beginning July 15, 2015,
4 2 4 maturing on  July 15, 2017.
Collateralized by the City of Fort
Collins installment agreement, 675,000 - 518,576 156,424 156,424
F-12 F-13
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Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions __ Retirements _ Balance One Year
To provide for short-term cash
requirements, the Company has
established a line of credit agreement
with a local financial institution to
borrow up to $500,000 at 4.25% rate
of interest. The loan is due March 3,
2015, and is secured by the revenues
of the Company. 410,000 5 410,000 -
Totals 5,178,277 § 331,748 $1,219,268 4,290,757 § 408,386
Less current portion 890,483 408,386
Totals 54,287,794 $3,882,371

The annual requirements to amortize all outstanding debt are as follows:

Fiscal Year Total Debt
Ending October 31 Principal Interest Service

2016 S 408,386 § 132,450 § 540,836

2017 262,041 116,195 378,236

2018 272,556 106,533 379,089

2019 282,349 102,601 384,950

2020 258,074 91,159 349,233

2021-2025 1,332,757 284,682 1,617,439

2026-2030 596,367 83,245 679,612

2031-2035 321,101 19,381 340,482

Total $3,733,631 § 936,246 $4,669,877

The Colorado Water Conservation Board loans collateralized by the Fossil Creek and Reservoir No. 4 projects,
totaling $557,126 as of October 31, 2015, are not reflected in the above amortization, as the payments will
not start until the projects are deemed complete.

5. Water Allotment Agreement

The Company entered into an agreement December 5, 1945, with the Northern Colorade Water Conservancy
District for the annual purchase of 40,000 acre feet of water, or any such portion that may be delivered, at
$1.50 per unit. Payment is due May 1 of every year and is secured by an irrevocable levy of assessment on
the capital stock of the Company. Payments shall continue until the delivery system is paid for and
thereafter for operating and maintenance changes.

6. Pension Plan

The Company sponsors a deferred compensation plan for all full-time employees. The Company matches

F-14
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employee deferrals up to a maximum of 3% of compensation. The Company’s contribution to the plan was
$5,007 and $6,041 for the years ended October 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

7. Income Taxes

The current and deferred income taxes for the years ended October 31, 2015 and 2014, were as follows:

October 31, 2015

2014
Current income tax expense (benefit) $ - § (295,514)
Deferred income tax (benefit) 379,000 {747,000)
Income tax expense (benefit) $ 379,000 $ (1,042,514)

A reconciliation of the effective tax rates and the statutory U.S. federal income tax rates are as follows:

Years Ended October 31, 2015 2014
Income tax expense at U.S. federal

statutory rates $ - § (295,514)
Deferred tax 379,000 (747,000)
Income tax (benefit) expense $ 379,000 $ (1,042,514)

The only temporary differences between book and tax basis assets and liabilities and their approximate tax
effects that give rise to the net deferred tax liability relate to depreciation expense, represented by a
long-term deferred tax asset of $11,000 and $0, as of October 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

For the year ended October 31, 2014 the Company experienced a net operating loss (“NOL”) on their tax
return. The Company elected, for federal tax purposes, to carryback the NOL two years and carry the
remaining NOL forward for 20 years (expiring in 2034). As of October 31, 2015, the remaining NOL
approximated $1,000,000.

8. Subsequent Events

Management has ev:aluated subsequent events through January 13, 2016 the date that the financial
statemﬁnts were available to be issued. There were no material subsequent events that required recognition
or additional disclosure, except as noted above.
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COLORADO WATER CONSERVATION BOARD
WATER PROJECT LOAN APPLICATION

Instructions: This application should be typed or printed neatly with black ink. Attach additional
sheets as necessary to fully answer any question or to provide additional information that would be
helpful in the evaluation of this application. When finished, please sign and return this application
to:

THE COLORADO WATER CONSERVATION BOARD
Finance Section

1580 Logan St., Suite 600

Denver, CO 80203

Attn: Anna Mauss, P.E.

Phone: (303) 866-3441 x3224 Fax (303) 894-2578
Email: anna.mauss @state.co.us

Part A. - Description of the Applicant (Generally, the applicant is also the prospective owner and
sponsor of the proposed project)

Name of applicant _The North Poudre Irrigation Company

Mailing Address _ P.O. Box 100, Wellington, CO 80549

Business Phone (970 ) 568-3612 Fax (970 )?221-4659

Federal ID Number email shummer@NPICwater.com

| Person to contact regarding this application:

Name Scott Hummer

Position/Title Manager

Address P.O. Box 100, Wellington, CO 80549

Business Phone (970) 568-3612 Cell (970) 222-3405

Email shummer@NPICwater.com

I Type of organization (Ditch Co., Irrigation District, Municipality, etc.): Mutual Ditch Company

Date of Annual Meeting 1* Monday in February

Is the organization incorporated in the State of Colorado? YES x NO (If YES, please
include a copy of the articles of incorporation, and the bylaws)



CWCB Water Project Loan Application

Please provide a brief description of the owner's existing water supply facilities and describe
any existing operational or maintenance problems. Attach a map of the servicearea
See Feasibility Study for description and map.

For existing facilities indicate:

Number of shareholders 568 or Number of customers served
Current Assessment per share $ 200 Number of shares _10,000
Number of acres irrigated 28,000 Water Right: See Feasibility Study CFS.

Average water diverted per year: See Feasibility Study acre-feet.

Part B. - Description of the Project

L.

2.

Name of the Project North Poudre Irrigation Mountain Supply Reservoir No. 10 Repairs

Purpose of this loan application. Check one.

New project
X Rehabilitation or replacement of existing facility
Enlargement of existing facility

Emergency Repair

Other (describe)

If the project is for rehabilitation of an existing reservoir, is the reservoir currently under a

storage restriction order from the State Engineer? YES_X NO_

General location of the project. (Please include county, and approximate distance and direction
from nearest town, as well as legal description, if known.

Approximately 3 miles south and 3 miles west of Wellington. Located in section 13,
township 6 north, range 60 west of the sixth prime meridian

Please provide a brief narrative description of the proposed project including purpose, need,
facilities, type of water uses to be served and service area. Attach separate sheet, ifneeded.

See Feasibility Study.

Will the acquisition of additional water rights benecessary? YES NO_X

If YES, please explain.




CWCB Water Project Loan Application

7. Please list the names, addresses and phone numbers of the Applicants’ engineer(s) and

attorney(s).
NAME ADDRESS and PHONE
Tessara Water, LLC 13101 Cavanaugh Road Hudson, CO 80642 (303) 990-5128

Lind, Ottenhoff and Root LLP 355 Eastman Park Drive, Suite 200 Windsor, CO 80550

8. List any feasibility studies or other investigations that have been completed or are now in
progress for the proposed project. If so, submit one copy of the study with this application

Feasibility of North Poudre Irrigation Company Mountain Supply Reservoir No.
10 Repairs

9. Estimated cost of the project. Please include estimated engineering costs, and estimated
construction costs, if known.

Estimated Engineering Costs: $ 98,588

Estimated Construction Costs:  $ 394.350

Estimated Other Costs: $ (land, water rights purchase,etc.)

Estimated Total Costs:  $492.938

10. Loan amount and terms you are requesting.

Requested Loan Amount: $494,900 (Usually 90 % of est. Total Costs)
Term (length) of loan: 30 years (Usually 10, 20, or 30 years)
Interest Rate: 2.50% (Please call for our current rates)

Part C. - Project Sponsor Financial Information

Because the CWCB’s Fund is a revolving fund, it is important that the project sponsor have the
financial capacity to repay any loans made by the CWCB. The following information is needed to
assist the CWCB in a preliminary assessment of the applicant's financial capacity. The project
sponsor will submit the three most recent annual financial statements.

1. List any existing long-term liability (multi-year) or indebtedness that exceeds one thousand
dollars. For example, bank loans, government agency loans, bond issues, accounts payable, etc.
Include names and addresses of lenders, amounts, due dates and maturity dates.



CWCB Water Project Loan Application

4.

Remaining Annual  Maturity
Lender Name & Address Amount Payment Date

See Feasibility Study

Are any of the above liabilities now in default, or been in default at any time in the past?

YES NOx . IfYES, please give detailed explanation.

Please provide a brief narrative description of sources of funding, in addition to the CWCB,
which have been explored for this project (Examples would be Banks, USDA Rural
Development, NRCS, Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority, Colorado
Division of Local Government, etc.). _1* National Bank, Fort Collins.

What collateral will you be offering for this loan? Possibilities include a pledge of revenues,
the project itself, real estate, water rights. _Annual assessments, the project itself.

The above statements are true, to the best of my knowledge:

Signature of Applicant_~ 7%§ 7%

Printed Name: Nels Nelson

Title  President

1-27-2017
Date
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